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Company Secretary
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Authorised Representatives
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Central, Hong Kong

Legal Advisers as to Hong Kong Laws

Chiu & Partners
40th Floor
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Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
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Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Principal Place of Business in the
People’s Republic of China
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

REEHR

Headquarters and Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

Room 4006, 40th Floor
Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Principal Share Registrar
and Transfer Office

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
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Hong Kong

Company’s Website

www.dalipal.com

Stock Code
1921

Principal Bankers
Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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GLOSSARY

i

"AGM"
[RBFARE ]

“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”
[4BAI ISk B4 =2 AR A

“AP|"
[API]

"associate(s)”

[BEA

“Audit and Risk Management
Committee”
[EEkEAREEZES

“Board”

===

“Board Diversity Policy”
[BEE2 LB

“Bohai New District Factory”
[0 8R T

“Business Day(s)"”

[&%A ]

“BVI"

[REEARES]

“Cayman Islands Companies Law”

or “Companies Law”
[FERSRRNEI[ARNE]
“CG Code”

[EEERSTAI

“close associate(s)”

[EEBEA

“CNOOC”

[/ %

"CNPC”

[ | ¥

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 22
May 2024
RATER202455 A22 B RITHRERRBF RS

the amended and restated articles of association of our Company, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
RRARIRMERT RS EF BB EIRAMA - SARERT ~ fHF A A 77
Bl

&

American Petroleum Institute

XEAHES

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LRI THRE
the audit and risk management committee of the Board
EEgNERLREAREELZES

the board of Directors
4

a board diversity policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board
—EHIENESTE LN ENESTS S TLEER

our factory located in Bohai New District, Cangzhou, Hebei Province, the
PRC
BAICLR AR B 3E & V8 M 5 3 = 1) TR

a day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday) in Hong Kong on
which banks in Hong Kong are open generally for normal banking business
FEERITEBTE —RAMERERITESHAF(EHN - EHHERIAR
REARRSI)

the British Virgin Islands
REGRARHS

the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands
FEEEEMIF25RANE(1961FEIREN - Kire RIEFT)

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules

X ERRAIMERCIB R REATRI

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmRRIRTE T aRE

China National Offshore Oil Corporation (F3 B8 ¥ A S A R A 7))
RS A RERAR]

China National Petroleum Corporation (FF B/l A AR AR A &)
FREARKARER AR



“Company” or “our Company”

ZAVNCIN
"Company Secretary”
[REHE ]

“connected person(s)”

[BAEAL

“Connected Persons’
Share Award Plan”

[ B8 A LRt 22EhaH &I ]

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[P ER
“core connected person(s)”

[T LREAL]

"Covenantors”

EIN

“Dalipal Pipe”

“Deed of Non-competition”
[ TR R

"Director(s)”

[E%]

"EGM"
[RRAFRIAE

“Eligible Shareholder(s)”

[REMBR]

Annual Report 2023 45 9

GLOSSARY

A

Dalipal Holdings Limited (GZ ) E12XER A7), an exempted company
limited by shares incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28 August 2018
under the Companies Law

ENEERBRAR - R2018F8 A28BTH SR SIRIE A LA
WEHR RN AR AT

a company secretary of the Company

EA/NCIE PN

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmRRIPTE T rRE

the share award plan for directors and chief executives of the Group,
adopted by the Company on 31 May 2022, as amended on 19 December
2022 as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December
2022

RRFR2022F5 A3 BRI EREBER RESTRABLEH RN
Rl 702022F12 A 19RBRTIER2022F 12 A 19A R AR A EH

=

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules, and, in the case of
our Company, means Mr. Meng, Mr. YX Meng and Rosy Astral individually
and as a group of persons

BERLTRRAMETHRE  MARAME @ @Rl RAREREE - &
FAxREREE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

A EmRRIPTE T rRE

Mr. Meng, Mr. YX Meng and Rosy Astral
hEE  RFAREREE

Dalipal Pipe Company* (¥ & A BEAE B R A F) (formerly known as
Cangzhou Huabei Petroleum OCTG Co., Ltd* BN EIL AHEREMBR A
&) and Huabei China Petroleum Cangzhou OCTG Co., Ltd.* ZFE4LAJAAE M
EREMARAR]), alimited liability company established under the laws of
the PRC on 18 September 1998 and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
our Company
ENEDRERAEERAR(AIEBAMNELAREAEM AR AR RELA
HAMEREMERAR) - N1998F9 B 18ARBHBUEEKZHBRA
Al RARREEZEAMB AR

the non-compete undertaking dated 19 June 2019 and executed by our
Controlling Shareholders in favour of our Company
ERIER AR RG] AZmAZEY HAIA201966 198 M F&eE

the director(s) of our Company

ARBES

an extraordinary general meeting of our Company

ARBBEREHAE

any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
—HBRNENERERE ARBE AR AR RAERENAIRRHE
AT DR +DZ —H— B ERER
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GLOSSARY

e

“ESG”
[ESG

"ESG Committee”
[ESGEE® |

“Group” or “our Group” or
“we” or “our” or “us”

[R5 H s 34

“"Hong Kong” or “HK"
[HH]

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK$”
[

“IDP"
[1DP]

“IPO"
N-PANGE:S

“Listing”
=

“Listing Date”
[ ERH]
“Listing Rules”
[ Er#R Al

“Macau”
[ BT

“Main Board”

[ER]

“Memorandum” or

“Memorandum of Association”

[ KA kT B AH ]

“Model Code”
[1Z=2E<F Al ]

“Mr. Cheng”
[R5

“Mr. Guo”
[ER5EA |

environmental, social and governance
RIE - HERER

the ESG committee of the Board
EEEMWESGEZEE

collectively, our Company and its subsidiaries
RRR R EM B A RHGE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEIEERFRTTH R

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BBEEES

Individual Development Plan
& A 3 Rt 2l

the initial public offering of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on Listing
Date
ISR ) R = AYNEE -y S

the listing of our Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

B R R PR E AR _E T

8 November 2019, the date on which the Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange by way of IPO
2019511 A8H » BIRM BB BE R AFEERERMER M2 A

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

B PrES EMARA - EARHERT « MR SAR I B

the Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI RITTER R

the stock market (excluding the options market) operated by the Stock
Exchange and which is independent from and operated in parallel with
GEM. For the avoidance of doubt, the Main Board excludes GEM
BERPTEENRET S (T REERETS) - B NGEMI E A1 TEE -
RREE - EIRTBEHEGEM

the amended and restated memorandum of association of our Company, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
RRBMERT RAEFABERARM - KTEHER] s AT E
2

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
TR AIM ERCIATHE S E BT AE S ETE SR HHIFETA

Mr. Cheng Haitao (A%/&/5), an independent non-executive Director

RAEBRL - REMIFMTES

Mr. Guo Kaigi (Z3F5H), an independent non-executive Director

FEEELE - RELIFMTES



“Mr. Meng”

[t

“Mr. Wong”
[E5E4]

“Mr. Yin"
(B4 ]

“Mr. YX Meng”

BFARLE]

“Mr. Zhang”
[RsEA]
“Ms. Gan”
[TzL]
“Ms. Xu"”
MRz L]

“Nomination Committee”
[IREEEE]

“Non-Connected Persons’ Share
Award Plan”

[ FERAE A L Rt) 2RD=T 3 )

“North China Second Drilling”
[ZEJ0 5 — B |

“Phase Two Expansion”

[ —HitEee ]

“Polaris Swift”

(25
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A

Mr. Meng Fanyong (# JLE), one of our founders, chairman of our Board,
an executive Director and a Controlling Shareholder. He is the father of Mr.
YX Meng

BNBEAE  BEIRALZ — FEEFSIE  NTESRIERRER - HAR
FALRAERRR

Mr Wong Jovi Chi Wing (E7&48), an independent non-executive Director

THEEREE - REMIFNITES

Mr. Yin Zhixiang (BX %), a non-executive Director

BUSHERE - RIFITESR

Mr. Meng Yuxiang (& #)), an executive Director, deputy chief executive
officer of our Group and a Controlling Shareholder. He is the son of Mr.
Meng

AFARE  NTEE - RAEERNTTHAESIERIIR - WARHELEN
RF

Mr. Zhang Hongyao (SRAL#E), vice-chairman of our Board, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Group

SRALIBSTE - REFERIER - IITEFRAKEITTHAR

Ms. Gan Shuya (Fiftge), an executive Director and chief operating officer of
our Group

THEBLL: - ATEZRAAREEERE

Ms. Xu Wenhong (fR34T), an executive Director and chief legal officer of
our Group

HXART  WITESERAREEAREE

the nomination committee of the Board

EFEMRAERE

the share award plan for full-time employees of the Group, adopted by the
Company on 31 May 2022, as amended on 19 December 2022 as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2022
RRFR2022F5 831 IR EAEE 2 BE 5 2 Ha i) BEhET & -
2022912 A198 &I M2022F 12 A19B R AR AL R HE

North China Petroleum Administration Bureau Second Drilling Engineering
Company* FEILAHEE BB _EHITEAQF
FiAmERRFE _EBHFTIEAF

the phase two production capacity expansion at the Group’s factory located
at Bohai New District

REBAINEEHER TR — BEER

POLARIS SWIFT LIMITED (28R 72 7]), a company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability on 25 April 2018, wholly owned by certain employees of
the Group and a connected person of our Company by virtue of it being a
substantial Shareholder

ERFARDA M2018F4 25 E R BHBRBESEMRIINARLD
8 BAKREETEEZEHE  ARNHATERR  MAKRRAGBEA
+

11
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GLOSSARY

e

“PRC” or “China”

[

“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”

[BRAFRBERIERETE
“Proposal”
=

"Prospectus”

[HBRER]

“R&D"
[12 |

“Reallocation”

(&3]

“Requisition”
[EkE]

“Remuneration Committee”

B eSS

"Risk Management Committee”

[AREBEES

“"RMB”
[AR®)

“Rosy Astral”

(B2 ]

“SFO"
[ & 75 M B 16451 |

“Share(s)”
[ 15 |

“Share Award Plans”

[ R in B2 =t & )

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purposes of this annual report
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARANE - RAFHME - TREEE  RFINAE

the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by our Company on
19 June 2019
AR EF201996 A 19 B L& R & IR A5 % & AR &

a written notice of the proposal by a shareholder to put forward proposal at
a general meeting of the Company

BERIMAREARBIRRAE FIR2EZENEZHAE B

the prospectus of the Company dated 28 October 2019
AATHBA2019610 A28 B WBRETR

research and development
T 7e e

the reallocation of part of the unutilised net proceeds from the IPO originally
allocated for the Phase Two Expansion to the repayment of certain existing
interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as resolved by the Board on 10
June 2020

IEFEH 202096 7108 FURS - 1§ FADE BR = IEROBH EK
NFAEERPAMGRIBFRENDEARNEERNEEE TRAEAEE
a written requisition by the Eligible shareholder(s) who wish to convene an
EGM

BEAABRRFIAGHN A ERBRRAENEZEENK

the remuneration committee of the Board
EFEgnNEEEe

the risk management committee of the Board

EFenEREERES

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARBTT  HBEVEEER

ROSY ASTRAL LIMITED (38 2R A F]), a company incorporated in the BVI

with limited liability on 26 April 2018, and owned as to 80.63% by Mr.

Meng, 19.37% by Mr. YX Meng, being one of our Controlling Shareholders

BREBRAT  M2018F4 26 RE# B RS EMAIHERA

; CHALEERAFAREDBIHEE80.63% K% K119.37% + AEMIERA
Z_

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FREPIFRSTEEF LG GG - G TRHER] - MEs AR M BN

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of our Company
ARA TR AR FAREEO. 10748 T A LB

the Connected Persons' Share Award Plan and Non-Connected Persons'
Share Award Plan
A A L RR () 22BN ET B K FEREE A TR 22 R 2l



"Share Option Scheme”
[EEAHEE 2

“Shareholder(s)"”
[ A%

“Share Incentive Committee”
[RIDBEBEZEE ]
“Sinopec”

(A1t

"sqm.”

Bt

“Stock Exchange”

[ B 32 AT

“subsidiary(ies)”

(B AR

“substantial shareholder(s)”
[ ZERE ]

"US dollars”

E

“Year”

[AFE ]

nop
[%]

Annual Report 2023 45 ’l 3

GLOSSARY

A

the share option scheme was adopted by a resolution in writing by the then
shareholders of the Company on 19 June 2019
RABERRRN2019F6 A 19 BB EMRABRRAN B IIETE

holder(s) of the Shares
B EEE A

the share incentive committee of the Board, which comprises Directors and/
or senior management of the Group

EZ2NRHBBDEES  hEER REREEEEX

China Petroleum and Chemical Corporation (ff B4 h{t TEE Q7))
PR ARE TEE AR

square metres

FIH

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEMERHMBR AR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

A EmRAIRTE TrRE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmRAIPTE TR E

United states dollars, the lawful currency of the united sates of America
ETT - XEVEEE

the financial year ended 31 December 2023

EZE2023F12 831 B ILHIERFE

per cent

Ekepzd
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present you the
Annual Report of the Company for the Year.

2023 was the first year during which the world has been looking
forward to economic recovery and development after three years of
fierce battle with the COVID-19 Pandemic. However, in the face of a
less-than-expected recovery, weak industry demand and a complex
market environment, the Company’s business and development
have experienced numerous challenges and tests. However, with
the support of all investors, friends from all walks of life, partners,
product users, and all the hard-working Dalipal employees and
their families who care about the development of the Group, the
Company has maintained its strategic focus, faced challenges
head-on, and created a year of improvement of “taking finance as
the core”, a year of optimization of comprehensive management
improvement, and a year of joint advancement of collaborative
services, and has maintained a steady development trend. This year,
the Group achieved revenue of approximately RMB3.85 billion and
profit for the Year of approximately RMB134.5 million. The Board of
Directors resolved to declare a final dividend of HK$0.04 per share.

Looking back on 2023, based on the background of uncertain
changes in the domestic and international economic situation,
the Company adhered to being market-oriented and driven by
innovation, and achieved a series of important achievements. The
Group has been focusing on the following aspects:

1. Optimize internal management and
governance

We continued to strengthen internal process optimization to
improve production efficiency and operational benefits. We
comprehensively promoted talent training and team building,
stimulated employees’ innovation and creativity, organized
a number of talent management activities, and improved
employee skills through multiple channels. We continued to
improve employees’ living and working environment, and
continued to meet employees’ new expectations for a better
future.

EMAEAR

FARRREFEMAR BTREARAANE

EHE -

2023 - BERIKEFTEEIEEE = F1% - B
KOEERRME—F - AMmEETRIBHNE
ERIBEN - TR ERAITERRS RIS SREM TS
RIB - ARANERERLRE T EEkEE
BER - BEFMEELAEBERNIZTES 1T
eEAPE - AEEY ERAF - 2RIHPE
BRENTARTKBMOZIET - AAUREE
BEE T - EEKE - TE T BB AR MR
T - FAEBERNENELSF - RRBKHLE
F RETEROHERES - £AFE A&EHE
RO AREE3SSETT » AEERFPDARE
1345E B EFERETIRAHRE AT
0.04/87T »

BIEE20234F » AAREBAIMNEBETL BT
BENBSST  BRUMSRER - B R
N BIST —RINEZRR - AREERFART
VAT 248 77 T B0 T4

1. B{eAMEEREGE

BB MR ARIZEL - RSEEME
MES e - DEEEAS TR MEBZZ
® OB THRIFMANRES - BRZEA
FTEREE  ZRERITE TG 18R
FREETMAERTIERE  THmEET
B RAF R AR A o



2. Further optimization of market products

and customers

The Company has adhered to the business philosophy of “taking
finance as the core” and continued to adjust the three major
structures of “market, product, and customer”. Cooperation
with domestic “three barrels of oil” customers goes hand
in hand, opening a new year for the Company’s large-scale
offshore oil pipe market. New products of our perforating gun
tubes, crane jib tubes, high-pressure boiler tubes, etc. continued
to be launched, and the product structure is further optimized;
in terms of overseas market expansion, we have increased
our efforts to explore overseas markets, successfully obtained
certification from many well-known overseas oil companies and
oil field customers, enhanced our brand influence and visibility,
broken through barriers to enter into the international market,
and increased our direct export volume.

Innovation drives development

The Company firmly believes in the high-quality development
concept of “keeping integrity and innovation”, promotes the
steady development of new projects, maintains investment in
research and development, and actively promotes technology
and product innovation. High-end oil drilling and energy
equipment pipe production projects have been launched
one after another and are advancing steadily. Relying on
the production, marketing and research platform, we have
strengthened external exchanges and reached strategic
cooperation with a number of universities and industry-leading
enterprises to effectively enhance the Company’s endogenous
power. Focusing on actual business processes and needs,
independently customized and developed 15 software systems
for smooth application in production operations, further
promoting refined management and enhancing the Company’s
competitiveness.

2.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

4. Continue to promote ESG work

The Company has always adhered to the concept of green and
low-carbon sustainable development and actively implemented
green development plans. We continue to strengthen
environmental management, promote green production
and green products, and reduce resource consumption
and emissions. New products serve new energy customers,
assist geothermal energy mining, and reuse refining slag to
achieve a double harvest of emission reduction and efficiency
increase, strengthen process control, overcome system
bottlenecks, achieve significant results in the investigation and
management of environmental hazards, and effectively promote
environmental management work to a new level. The Group
was successfully rated as a national green factory. We also
actively carry out public welfare and charity activities. During
the year, we organized and participated in disaster relief and
donated to education activities many times to repay the society,
care for different communities, and convey the positive energy
of Dalipal.

Establish strategic development in the
Middle East

The Group has set sail for the “Belt and Road Initiative” and
plan for the development in the Middle East. As a global hub
connecting the three continents of Asia, Europe and Africa, the
Middle East has always been one of the Company’s important
overseas markets. The Middle East is rich in natural energy
resources and has huge demand potential for products such as
oil and gas pipes and new energy transmission pipes. This Year,
we anchored the future long-term development strategy in the
Middle East and determined important development directions
such as serving first-class customers in the world’s energy field
and exploring international markets in the Middle East, Africa,
Europe and the United States.

HEHRBESGTIE

RRB—HRAKRE KRR AT FEERIE
2 BREITRERETE o RIUFEMNR
RGN  HIRELERREER B
BIRBFEMBER - ERREHEREP -
By M BBERER - IRRBERILBAA - B
BRPHEME LY - REREER R R
RS - RREBBHEGIREIS RN -
EHHERREETHEBLNGHE  £K
BRI ERFE R AR E TR - RIFIBEERRH
RADEZEE  FRZREMS RN
CIREBDHEE  Mmite  BETAREM
B BRENEDLXRICEE -

B PREKERE

BRI -] HmRTRER - PRIFS
BTN - BUNRIEN = KM 24 -
—HERARREE/INTIHZ —  PRAR
REREREE  AHRKARBENIERE
ZREEEMBRENER « NFE - HfidH
ERRARKEPBE R - T RB 6
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Looking forward to 2024, the macroeconomic and market
environment is still expected to be foggy and volatile. But no matter
how difficult it is, Dalipal will strive to make progress, regardless of
difficulties and challenges, and strive for progress and upstream in
the volatile energy industry and market segments. The Company
will continue to focus on its strategic priorities and be proactive in
“transforming methods, adjusting structure, improving quality, and
increasing efficiency”, striving to promote effective improvement
in quality and reasonable growth in quantity in production and
operations, and; coordinating high-quality development and
high-level safety. We strive to create benefits and efficiency from
management, enhance the effectiveness of management and
control, prevent and resolve risks, and use the determination and
persistence of the blade to inward, strive to innovate and upgrade
comprehensive management, practice the idea of ESG sustainable
development, and continues to move towards the vision of “building
first-class, lasting for a hundred years”.

2024 is the year when the goals of Dalipal’s “Sixth Five-Year Plan”
become more clearly. All Dalipal employees will definitely take
advantage of the situation to effectively implement the Middle East
development strategy, continue to innovate and advance the digital
transformation and upgrading of management in an orderly manner,
forge ahead and work hard to efficiently construct pipes for high-
end oil drilling and energy equipment projects! On behalf of the
Board of Directors, | would like to promise that the Group will take
proactive measures in the coming year to embrace opportunities and
respond to challenges, strive to achieve steady growth in operating
performance, and create the best returns for shareholders. Finally, |
would also like to express my most heartfelt thanks to all investors,
friends from all walks of life, partners, product users, all hard-
working Dalipal employees and their families who care about and
support the development of the Group!

Meng Fanyong
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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EENSREEEBN

Executive Directors
Mr. Meng Fanyong (& JLE), aged 61

Executive Director and Chairman of the Board

Mr. Meng is an executive Director and Chairman of the Board
responsible for the overall strategic development of the Group.
Mr. Meng is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. He was
appointed as Director on 28 August 2018 and re-designated as
executive Director on 27 February 2019. Mr. Meng has over 41
years of experience in oilfield equipment business. He also has over
23 years of experience in operation and management business of
OCTG manufacturing. He joined the Group on 18 September 1998.
Mr. Meng has been a director and chairman of Dalipal Pipe since
September 1998. Prior to joining the Group, he acquired knowledge
and experiences in operation of oilfield and oil pipe manufacturing
industry by holding various positions in North China Second Drilling,
which principally engages in maintenance of oilfield equipment
and oilfield service, including technician, dispatcher of machine
maintenance factory, workshop director, manager of machine
maintenance factory, and deputy factory director of operational and
services department from September 1981 to July 1999. Mr. Meng
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Meng is
the father of Mr. YX Meng, an executive Director and the deputy
chief executive officer of the Group. Mr. Meng graduated from
Communist Party of China Hebei Provincial Party School Party and
Government Cadres College* (F3£/AdbA Z B E BUEr&F (X 2
B) in the PRC in July 1998. Mr. Meng holds approximately 80.6%
of the issued share capital of Rosy Astral Limited, which has interest
in such number of Shares of the Company under Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” in this report.
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Mr. Zhang Hongyao (FRAL#&), aged 54

Executive Director, Vice-Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer

Mr. Zhang was appointed as Director on 27 February 2019, re-
designated as a non-executive Director and vice-chairman of
the Board on 19 June 2019, and re-designated as an executive
Director from non-executive Director on 1 January 2020, and was
appointed as chief executive officer of the Group on 4 April 2022.
He is responsible for leading the business development of the
Group including sales, marketing and investment management,
etc. Mr. Zhang has more than 18 years of experience in oil pipe
manufacturing industry. Prior to joining the Group, he has been
the deputy general manager of Baosteel America Inc.* (E 83
BBR 72 a]) since July 2015; the deputy general manager of the steel
pipe department of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (& L& %
ABR7AA]) from August 2007 to July 2015; the general manager
and director of Yantai Lubao Steel Pipe Company Limited (B2 %5
ZiNEARET AT from August 2004 to June 2005 and from
June 2005 to August 2007 respectively; and the deputy general
manager of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. Steel Pipe Branch* (&
1L £ # Bz 1 B R A Al #E 5 A 7)) from August 2004 to June
2005. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in trade economics
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (_E)8Bf 48K
) in July 1992 and a master’s degree of arts from West Virginia
University in December 2001. Mr. Zhang has interest in such number
of underlying Shares of the Company under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” in this report.
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Ms. Xu Wenhong (R X 4L), aged 54

Executive Director and chief legal officer

Ms. Xu is an executive Director appointed on 27 February 2019 and
the chief legal officer responsible for the overall legal compliance
of the Group. Ms. Xu is the chairlady of the ESG Committee. Ms.
Xu has more than 30 years of experience in commercial legal
advisory and over 20 years of experience in management of oil
pipe manufacturing business. She joined the Group on 1 April
2003. She has been the chief legal consultant and secretary of
the board of director of Dalipal Pipe since April 2003 and June
2014, respectively. She was also a director of Dalipal Pipe from
August 2007 to April 2010 and since October 2013. Ms. Xu has
been the deputy general manager of Dalipal Pipe Company Bohai
New District Branch Company* (ZNERBEREBRAGNE
¥l@ 972 8]) from November 2011 to October 2012, the deputy
general manager of Dalipal Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*
(EHTHREEFR2AA) from July 2009 to November 2011.
She has also been the assistant of the general manager of Dalipal
Pipe from April 2003 to December 2005 and the deputy general
manager of Dalipal Pipe from December 2005 to October 2016.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Xu was a lawyer in Hebei Jinsheng
Law Firm* GA[4t4& B2 RHEFEFT) from June 2001 to March 2003;
a legal officer of North China Petroleum Science and Industrial
Company* (GEJLAMEI TE LR F]) (currently known as Rengiu
City Huabei Qilfield Technology Industrial Trade General Company*
(EETELHAR T Z 42 F])) from September 1997 to June
2001; and legal officer of North China Second Drilling from March
1993 to March 1998. Ms. Xu is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Ms. Xu obtained a diploma in legal education in
network education institute of Shandong University* (1L 5 K248
BB BBt) in July 2004, the qualification of PRC lawyer in June
1996, the qualification of Senior Corporate Compliance Specialist in
December 2022, and the qualification of registered ESG analyst in
October 2023.
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Mr. Meng Yuxiang (ZF#), aged 37

Executive Director and deputy chief executive officer

Mr. YX Meng is an executive Director appointed on 27 February
2019 and the deputy chief executive officer responsible for the
overall human resources and production operational management of
the Group. Mr. YX Meng is a member of Remuneration Committee.
He has over 11 years of experience in management. Mr. YX Meng
joined the Group on 21 May 2017. He has been the deputy general
manager and a director of Dalipal Pipe since December 2017 and
June 2017, respectively. Mr. YX Meng was the assistant of the
general manager of Dalipal Pipe from May 2017 to December 2017.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. YX Meng worked in Beijing Dacheng
Real Estate Development Company Limited* (1t 5 ARk = i & F 3%
BRREEAF) as the deputy head of the follow-up working group
from January 2014 to January 2015 and head of land resources
management group from February 2015 to April 2017. He was also
the head of planning and design department and office executive
assistant of Beijing BBMG Property Co., Ltd.* Jt RE&BEXAR
2 @) from February 2011 to February 2012 and from March 2012
to January 2014, respectively; and an engineering staff member of
BBMG Property Management Co., Ltd. Jiahua Branch* (t & B4
EERBRETRAIEBEESD A A]) from July 2008 to February
2011. Mr. YX Meng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. YX Meng is the son of Mr. Meng Fanyong, an executive
Director and chairman of the Board. Mr. YX Meng obtained a
bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from Beijing Construction
Engineering College (3L REZEE T2 M) (currently known as Beijing
University of Civil Engineering and Architecture (3t K EZ) in
July 2008, and obtained a master of business administration from
Peking University (1t XA E2) in June 2022.
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Ms. Gan Shuya (F#fzz), aged 56

Executive Director and chief operating officer

Ms. Gan is an executive Director appointed on 27 February
2019 and the chief operating officer responsible for the overall
operational and financial management of the Group. Ms. Gan has
more than 38 years of experience in auditing and accounting in oil-
related industry. She joined the Group on 23 August 2010. She
has been the director and financial director of Dalipal Pipe since
October 2016 and December 2017, respectively. Ms. Gan has been
the assistant to the general manager of Dalipal Pipe from October
2010 to December 2017; the manager of finance department and
assistant of the general manager of Dalipal Special Type Equipment
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (N EHFAEFEEGRAA]) from
August 2009 to September 2010 and from July 2009 to September
2010, respectively; and department head and manager of finance
department of Dalipal Group Co., Ltd.* (&7 & EB AR A A]) from
October 2007 to March 2008 and from April 2008 to June 2009,
respectively. Prior to joining the Group, she held various positions in
Hebei Yanhua Accounting Firm Company Limited* (aldb#EEE 5t
B FTAMR A R)), including the auditor, project manager, senior
project manager and department manager from December 1998 to
September 2007. She was also the auditor of North China Petroleum
Audit Office Fourth Audit Office* (FEJL A BT R FIUZETE) from
January 1997 to November 1998; the auditor and the accountant
of North China Second Drilling from July 1991 to December 1996
and from May 1985 to August 1988, respectively; and the worker of
Cangzhou Machine Maintenance Factory of North China Petroleum
Second Drilling Company* FEILAHEERE_EHITERFAE
MHBIEHR) from September 1984 to April 1985. Ms. Gan is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Gan completed
a course in accountancy at the Adult Higher Education, School of
Continuing Education, Hebei University* Ga/db AZ7K£) in July
2001. She obtained the qualification of PRC certified public valuer
in September 2005 and the qualification of PRC certified public
accountant in May 1995. Ms. Gan has interest in such number of
underlying Shares of the Company under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” in this report.
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Non-executive Director
Mr. Yin Zhixiang (B8 % %f), aged 66

Non-Executive Director (Re-designated from executive Director with
effect from 4 April 2022)

Mr. Yin was an executive Director appointed on 27 February 2019
and the chief technical officer responsible for the overall research
and development and technical management of the Group. With
effect from 4 April 2022, Mr. Yin was re-designated as a non-
executive Director. He has more than 41 years of experience in the
operation of oilfield. He joined the Group on 23 August 2010. Mr.
Yin has been the chief technical expert and deputy general manager
of Dalipal Pipe since June 2017 and October 2016, respectively; the
project manager of Dalipal Pipe since January 2018; and the deputy
general manager for general affairs from November 2011 to October
2016 and the director of technical centre from December 2012 to
October 2015 of Dalipal Pipe. He was also the general manager of
Dalipal Pipe Company Bohai New District Branch Company* (& 77 &
BHERAEARAREEHERDAF]) from November 2011 to May
2016. He was also the deputy manager for general affairs of Dalipal
Special Type Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (i H &R EE
LB EPR /A F]) from July 2009 to November 2011 and the deputy
general manager of Dalipal Group Co., Ltd.* (ZHEEBER A
7)) from July 2008 to July 2009. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the director and deputy general manager of Rongsheng Machinery
Manufacture Ltd. of Huabei Oilfield, Hebei (A/dbZEdt Ak 28 B 1%
HEEGR A E]) from May 2002 to July 2008; and the dispatcher,
chief of production division, branch factory manager and deputy
factory manager, of the second machinery factory of North China
Petroleum Management Authority* (ZEJbME 12 H 5 — # R ER)
from August 1981 to May 2002. Mr. Yin gained his experiences
in machinery production in a factory located in Jiangsu in the PRC
from March 1977 to August 1979. Mr. Yin had been a director of
Dalipal Pipe prior to September 2020. Mr. Yin obtained a diploma
in economics management from Communist Party of China Central
Party College* (FPrh R E R HHEEEPT) in December 1995 and a
diploma in statistics from Hebei University in December 1989.
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Independent non-executive Directors
Guo Kaiqi (ZB}E), aged 68

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Guo is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 19
June 2019. Mr. Guo is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, Nomination Committee and ESG Committee. Mr. Guo
has over 47 years of experience in operation of oilfield. Mr. Guo
was the party committee secretary and deputy general manager of
China Petroleum Materials Corporation (FFEIf R #&E A al) from
November 2007 to July 2015; the party committee secretary, party
committee deputy secretary, secretary for committee of discipline
inspection and union president of North China Oilfield Branch
Company* (ZEALRMA S 2 F]) from July 1999 to November 2007;
the deputy director of North China Petroleum Administration Bureau
from November 1997 to July 1999; the party committee secretary,
party committee deputy secretary, party committee member, chief
of corporate management department and committee member of
organisation department of North China Petroleum Administration
Bureau Underground Operation Company* (ZEit A EEEREBH T
YEZ /2 7)) from July 1985 to November 1997; and the worker and
committee member, of Dagang oilfield, and North China oilfield
from November 1972 to September 1983. Mr. Guo obtained a
master’s degree in corporate management in Petroleum University
(Beijing)* (FAiAAEZ (4E70)) in June 2002. Mr. Guo has an interest
in such number of underlying Shares of the Company under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO as disclosed in the section
headed “Directors and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” in this report.

Wong Jovi Chi Wing (E£%%8), aged 43

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive Director appointed on
19 June 2019. Mr. Wong is the chairman of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and a member of the ESG Committee.
Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience of corporate finance,
investment and asset management experience. Mr. Wong is
currently the investment director of TGG Ventures Limited and
an independent non-executive directors of Golden Faith Group
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2863), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was the managing director
of Seazen Resources Asset Management Limited from April 2022
to October 2023; an executive director of Wonder Capital Group
Limited from March 2018 to April 2022; a director of distribution
department of Janus Henderson Investors (Hong Kong) Limited from
July 2014 to March 2018. Before engaging in asset management
business, Mr. Wong served at the investment banking division of
China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Ltd. and Haitong International
Capital Limited respectively with extensive experience in Initial
Public Offer and Merge and Acquisition. Mr. Wong also worked in
Auto22.com Ltd from December 2002 to February 2010, and his
last position was general manager. Mr. Wong holds a Master of
Business Administrative from the Hong Kong University of Science
& Technology and a Bachelor of Science from The University of
Auckland. He is also a member of CPA Australia.
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Cheng Haitao (R /&7%), aged 65

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Cheng is an independent non-executive Director appointed
on 19 June 2019. Mr. Cheng is a member of each of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. Cheng has over 28 years of experience
in the steel pipe manufacturing industry. Since March 2019, Mr.
Cheng has been the part-time consultant of Mongolia Baogang
Steel Union Company Limited* (N5 & &2 30 sl 8 AR (D B R A 7).
Mr. Cheng has been the honorary director of the Expert Committee
of the Shanghai Steel Pipe Industry Association* (- /&8l%E 1T
SHEREZEE) since May 2018 and he has been certified as the
consultant of Steel Pipe Division, China Steel Construction Society*
(PS4 EME D L) in April 2017, Prior to July 2019, he
was a committee member of the Fourth Steel Pipe Technician Sub-
committee, National Steel Standardisation Committee* (2B #iiZ
EZEGENENESHINE B ), and president and editor of
Steel Pipe ( {$%& ) #5%), a publication relating to the steel and
metal pipe industry published in the PRC, from September 1999
and April 2007, respectively, to June 2020. Mr. Cheng was also the
deputy manager and deputy general manager of Pangang Group
Chengdu Vanadium Steel Company Limited* (225 B &P 5
fR 2 A]) from August 2008 to May 2014 and from May 2014 to May
2017 respectively; deputy manager of Pangang Group Chengdu
Steel and Metal Company* (2255 B ZBR 8 AR E T A7) from
June 2002 to August 2008; the deputy general manager of Pangang
Group Chengdu Seamless Steel Pipe Company Limited* (23 2=
R EP 458 B PR E LA R)) from December 2000 to May 2002;
the chief engineer, deputy general manager and chief dispatcher
from June 1995 to December 2000 of Chengdu Seamless Steel Pipe
Factory* (AKX #BEE4EIHER); and the deputy factory director and
the factory director of Chengdu Seamless Rolling Factory* (A £B£E
42 B HR) from June 1993 to May 1995; and the deputy factory
director of Chengdu Seamless Tube Factory I1* (A &PEELEE]E — 5
&) from May 1991 to May 1993. Mr. Cheng gained his experiences
in production of metal in a factory located in Sichuan in the PRC
from July 1987 to May 1989 and technical experiences in iron and
steel metallurgical processing and thermal processing in a research
institute in the PRC from May 1982 to August 1984. Mr. Cheng
obtained a master’s degree in metal pressure processing in Beijing
Steel and Metal College* (b 5l #Z2F%) in June 1987.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
EEREREEEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (2|%£t), aged 50

Company secretary and finance and investor relations director

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (R ££) is the director of finance and investor
relations and the company secretary of the Group. He joined
the Group in December 2021. Prior to joining to the Group, Mr.
Lau worked as the chief financial officer, company secretary and
independent non-executive directors for certain listed companies
in Hong Kong and Canada. Mr. Lau has over 20 years experience
in financing and accounting in China, Hong Kong and Canada.
Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a master degree in finance from City
University of Hong Kong. He is currently also an independent non-
executive director of four companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, namely Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 528), United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2337), Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6833)
and Kangli International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6890). He
was also an independent non-executive director of China Wood
Optimitization (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 1885) until 15
February 2022.

*  For identification purpose only
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Business Review

Main Business, Business Model and Industry Overview
of the Group for the Year

Principal business, business model and industry of the Group
during the Year

As a high-end, intelligent and green energy equipment
manufacturer, the Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, production, technical services and sales of high-end
energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes. The product is widely
used and has an extensive product mix, and is suitable for use in
the development, mining and transmission of various categories of
energy sources, including oil, natural gas, shale gas and new energy,
as well as pipes for the manufacturing of energy machineries.

The Group's products are divided into standard products and
customised products that are made according to customers’ special
requirements. The production model adopted by the Group is “sales-
oriented”. During the Year, the Group effectively leveraged its R & D
and full-process production lines, cooperated closely with customers
in the area of R & D, manufacturing and promotion of special
products, highlighted the characteristics of product differentiation
and customisation, so as to enhance the adaptability of our products
with the requests of our customers. During the Year, the sales
volume of the Group’s special products increased significantly. In
terms of the Group’s product sales models, both domestic and
international markets are mainly direct sales.

Adhering to the business strategy of “strengthening oil and gas
pipes, diversifying moderately and manufacturing leading products
with exclusivity (—E 58 - BEZ T WKBEBEREEM)", the
Group strengthened its business of oil and gas pipes and upscaled
its featured non-API oil and gas pipe products while continuously
developing pipes for oil drilling equipment, including pipes for
drilling, oil tank pipes and perforator pipes, special pipes with
leading technologies that are applicable to new energy and pipes
for the manufacturing of high-end machineries, and has successively
obtained the qualification as a qualified supplier of well-known
domestic enterprises. The “specialised, refined, exceptional and
innovative (2 ~ 5 ~ 45 + #1)"” business philosophy of the Group
allows the Group to establish a differentiated position in the
industry, greatly enhancing the competitiveness of the soft power of
the Group.
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During the Year, driven by the high interest rates in developed
countries in Europe and the United States, coupled with the
impact of geopolitical conflicts, competition among major powers
and energy game, the global economy was hit hard. Under the
background of the post-pandemic situation in China, although most
industries have ushered in recovery, the process is relatively slow,
the endogenous power is insufficient, the demand for steel products
decreases, the average price moves downward, and the profit
margin narrows. However, from the perspective of market segments,
energy prices remained at a high level, and investment in energy
mining also remained at a high level, resulting in a certain degree
of resilience in the demand for seamless steel pipes. The annual
domestic capacity utilisation rate increased slightly compared with
the previous year, and the average daily trading volume increased
by 2.24% year-on-year. The export market continued its strong
momentum since the second half of 2022. According to the General
Administration of Customs of the PRC, for the Year, the export
of seamless steel pipes increased by 15.5% year-on-year, mainly
focusing on oil and gas pipes. During the Year, the pattern of the
industry was also changing, with the increasing intensity of strong
alliance, key enterprises and characteristic enterprises coexisted, and
the pattern of profit differentiation between leading enterprises and
small and medium-sized enterprises tended to be obvious.

Under the complex economic background, the Group seized market
opportunities, dynamically adjusted its business strategies, stabilised
its domestic market, expanded overseas markets, fully utilised its
competitive advantages of independent research and development
and fast and flexible customer service throughout the process, and
implemented the concept of lean operation, the operating results is
relatively stable.

Analysis of Core Competitiveness

During the Year, the Group built its core competitiveness around
market expansion, technology research and development, intelligent
manufacturing, green and low-carbon development and lean
management:

1. Market expansion — in addition to continuing to maintain a
certain proportion of participation in the PRC market of CNPC
and Sinopec, the Group has made a historic breakthrough in
the 2023-2024 bidding in the CNOOC market in the PRC, with
a bid-winning volume of nearly 180,000 tonnes. The Group
further expanded its participation in the overseas market
and completed the certification of 5 overseas oil companies
during the Year, achieving full coverage of six continents in the
overseas market.

RAFER - EREZZEERSEHEE T - BN
@R - RERFE - %fﬁ#%%;-%ﬁ@
EXEEE  BAERREES T  BAZHIT
FEIREE - BERBYEE  REBHTRE

HMEMB KT - HETE - FEEMEKE - -8

MO MIHHRE  REREREFESKE - 2R
FRIEERESM - FEENTHERKIDRE—
TN 2FBRREEFNAER EFBREEA -
BYRRZBRLIER224% - HATIBEE T
2022F THFHRBAREE  IBPRGEBEEH

B FREZNEDORLIERI55% 2B
BRAARTAEAE - RAFENR  TENER
AL - BB FNNEEMK  EHD

e T -
(LA BB AR -

SEEB R NRRFE D

EEROQEEST AEEENHEHE 15
EEAMS - REINTS - TOREA X
HERREREBEIMEEFPHFES - BERBR
BEED  RERERYRE -

BB FERE D DA

RAFEER - NEBEZETISHERE - B
HReRE - ﬁ@ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ% E:Y)
LB BE

1. MERRIA AEEREETRATRA
# o FARETISBRIE ML ERESP
YT 520232024 BEFESELEEXR

RN PIZENT18EM - AEEE— S
EFRMEINTS - FRERSEEINGHD
AR BEIRBINTEARNOEEE -



Technical R&D — DLP-T4, a product solely designed by the
Group, passed the level 4 evaluation test of API 5C5 2017 in
the United States. It has been used in large quantities for shale
gas mining in wells with extraordinary depth of more than
6,000 meters of CNPC's southwest oil and gas field during
the Year. The Group also owned the independent intellectual
property rights in respect of innovative high-strength and
tough casing which are corrosion-resistant, and has been used
in large quantities in major oil and gas fields in China during
the Year. We focused on the development of economical coal
drill pipes and low corrosion-resistant series products to meet
customers’ customised needs and such development pass the
review. Results of our research in rare earth corrosion resistant
casing in collaboration with renowned universities in China
were also released, which made significant improvement in
corrosion resistance of our pipes without increasing the costs
in production. We also conducted and recorded a number of
breakthroughs in smelting and rolling processes and various
process validation studies. Furthermore, the industry standard
YB/T6068-2022 “Technical specifications of oxygen supply
in steelmaking in electric arc furnace”, which the Group
participated in its formulation, was officially released and
implemented, marking the elevation of the Company’s status in
the industry.

Intelligent manufacturing — the Group has built intelligent
production lines which are composed of smart equipment
consisting of robots, computer numerical control (CNC) machine
tools, logistics warehouses, testing equipment and automated
production lines, thus enabling multiple “unmanned production
units” and “multiple production lines with reduced manpower”.
With more than 12 types of intelligent manufacturing support
industrial software, the Group has become the first enterprise in
the industry to realise and make use of a “product process big
data analysis platform (ZE T E X EIESITFE)". The Group's
unmanned smart intelligent warehouse, which is one of the
first of its kind in China, realised the automatic circulation and
information tracking of products in the complete manufacturing
process, thereby providing support for efficient operation.
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Green development — The carbon footprint of our products
from “cradle to gate (FEEZR|KF9)” is quantified and verified
throughout the life cycle, the carbon footprint contribution of
the whole life cycle of products and services is identified, with
targeted carbon reduction measures proposed, and we worked
with upstream and downstream industrial chains to practise
the concept of green development. We continued our effort in
process technology innovation, self-research and development
of low-carbon processes and products, and obtained more
than 12 patents. We have also successively carried out projects
including industrial water recycling, waste heat recycling,
refining slag recycling, and full-oxygen combustion and baking
of resistant materials, effectively reducing carbon emissions,
and our emission indicators such as sulfide, nitrogen oxides,
and particulate matter are far below the stringent emission
standards of Hebei Province. We also strive to promote
photovoltaic power generation, source, grid, load and storage
projects to help achieve economic, efficient and safe clean
energy supply. The Company also passed the clean production
audit and acceptance organised by the Hebei Provincial Institute
of Ecology and Environment, and was recognised as a “leader”
enterprise in China’s industrial carbon peaking and a national-
level green factory.

Lean operation — we strived to achieve maximum efficiency,
improve unit operation efficiency and input-output efficiency.
We continued to promote process innovation,technological
reform, featured product material optimisation, cost reduction
and increase in efficiency and other measures to improve
product yield and reduce production costs. We also carried
out activities in relation to visualisation and 6S management to
motivate employees to improve self-management, established
an incubation platform for the development of employees’
skillset and management innovation, collected innovative
proposals extensively, and formed an encouraging innovation
atmosphere within the Company. We engaged external
professional instructors to establish a dual mentoring system
comprising “senior mentors + middle-level mentors + high-
potential management trainees”. Through the lessons and
experience gained from real world exposure, we encourage our
employees to formulate IDP on career development paths and
individual characteristics. Improvement projects were formulated
based on the Company’s annual strategic goals. Strategy was
implemented and the management awareness of middle-level
management and high-potential management trainees was
enhanced by way of promoting IDP and improvement projects.
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Outlook

The management of the Group believes that, despite the
disappointing domestic demand during the Year, fundamental
downtrend in demands and average prices, complex and
severe external environment, and persistence of the compound
impact of geopolitics, energy crisis, and competition from major
economies, the 2023 Central Economic Work Conference held in
Beijing determined the general tone of “seeking progress while
maintaining stability, promoting stability with progress, and breaking
through after establishment” (BB skiE -+ LAE(RTE © 218 TR),
Technological innovation and expanding domestic demand were
ranked among the top priorities according to the economic work
conference. Against this background, there is a call for higher level
of oil exploration, development, processing activities and increased
gas production capacity to ensure energy security, and the general
layout to encourage quality development of green, intelligent and
innovation-related industries. The Group will continue to promote
various tasks regarding the product strategy positioning of “specific,
specialised, innovative and new products (5 « #& * & #)".

The Group will focus on oil and gas pipes, new energy pipes and
special seamless steel pipes, meet and guide customer demand,
strengthen featured non-API products and market expansion,
manufacture leading products with exclusivity, and enhance the
brand effect of products. Taking lead to promote energy saving
and emission reduction, leveraging on smart manufacturing
and equipment upgrade, we will promote transformation to
green and low-carbon emission process through automation,
digitalisation, information technology, intelligence and alternative
clean energy. We will serve downstream customers with process
innovation, technological innovation and green product research
and development, establish an ecological priority, green and low-
carbon development model, and provide support for the green
and low-carbon transformation of the entire energy industry.
Capitalising on digital technology, we will build an efficient and
intelligent manufacturing plant and business processing system,
continue to optimise management, and realise a low-cost, high-
quality and efficient development. We will continue to speed up the
certification and recognition progress of overseas oil companies and
increase our market share in the international market. We will also
continuously implement the management mode of “precise, refined
and lean operation” to keep strengthening our financial structure
and promote the high-quality development of the Company. The
Company will build a sustainable management, technology and
operation team with a strong sense of belonging, consciously
practicing the corporate culture and synchronising with the Group,
so as to provide strong support for the development strategy of
overseas markets while achieving steady growth in operating results.
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In March 2024, the Board of Directors approved the plan for the
future strategic development in the Middle East, planning to establish
in the Middle East regional headquarters, research and development
center, intelligent factory and data control center, etc. To further
improve the Company'’s future long-term strategy in the Middle East,
to achieve our aim to serve the world’s first-class customers in the
field of energy and explore the important development direction in
the Middle East, Africa, Europe and the United States international
market.

The determination of our Middle East strategic development plan
marks a step forward for the Company to expand its business in the
international market. The Company believes that:

1. The Middle East is an important partner of China’s “Belt and
Road Initiative”, and its development in the Middle East is in
line with China’s national policy. The Middle East is a global
hub connecting Asia, Europe and Africa, and the strategic
development in the Middle East is conducive to obtaining local
policy, financing and other support.

2. The Middle East ranks first in the world in terms of oil
production and reserves, and has a considerable market
demand for oil and gas pipes and new energy transmission
pipes. The Middle East is rich in natural energy resources. With
a competitive position of developing green new energy, the
potential demand for new energy transmission pipe is huge.
The establishment of production facilities in the Middle East can
better capture the market demand for products in the Middle
East and North Africa.

3. The Company will build production facilities in the Middle
East, which is conducive to the company to better serve local
customers, provide customers with customised products and
services, and further enhance the Company’s international
brand building. More conducive to the company’s products in
the international market expansion.
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Financial Review
Revenue

The Group recorded a total revenue of RMB3,850.0 million for the
Year, representing a decrease of 8.9% from RMB4,227.8 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2022. For the Year, the
revenue of oil and gas pipes and new energy pipes and special
seamless steel pipes decreased, while the revenue of other products
increased.

For the Year ended
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For the Year ended

31 December 2023 31 December 2022 Changes
B Z2023%12A31H B 22022512A831H
LFE fI:3: 5
Percentage Percentage
Sales of Sales Sales of Sales Sales  Percentage
HE HERL HE HEML HE =]
RMB million %  RMB million %  RMB million %
AR¥EBEER % AREEETRT % AREEET %
Sale of: HE -
Oil and gas pipes BHRARAE 2,459.9 63.9 2,635.1 62.3 (175.2) (6.6)
New energy pipes and #TEERAE M
special seamless steel kLI E
pipes 1,331.9 34.6 1,567.9 37.1 (236.0) (15.1)
Other products HipEmR 58.2 1.5 248 0.6 334 134.7
Total A&t 3,850.0 100.0 4,2278 100.0 (377.8) (8.9)

The Group recorded a decrease of 6.6% in the revenue of oil and
gas pipes to RMB2,459.9 million (2022: RMB2,635.1 million), a
decrease of 15.1% in the revenue of new energy pipes and special
seamless steel pipes to RMB1,331.9 million (2022: RMB1,567.9
million), and an increase of 134.7% in the revenue of other products
to RMB58.2 million (2022: RMB24.8 million).

The decrease in revenue of oil and gas pipes was mainly due to
the decrease in selling price as a result of market downturn. The
decrease in revenue of new energy pipes and special seamless steel
pipes was mainly due to the decrease in sales volume and selling
price as a result of insufficient domestic demand in the industry.
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For the Year ended
31 December 2023

For the Year ended
31 December 2022

#Z2023F12A31H EZ2022F12A831R
LEE LFE
Percentage Percentage

Sales of Sales Sales of Sales Sales  Percentage

HE SHEMLL HE HEML HE dtl)

RMB million %  RMB million %  RMB million %

AR¥BEER % AREBET % ANREBET %

Domestic Sales NEEE 2,862.8 74.4 3,077.7 72.8 (214.9) (7.0)
Overseas Sales BISNEE 987.2 25.6 1,150.1 27.2 (162.9) (14.2)
Total A&t 3,850.0 100.0 4,227.8 100.0 (377.8) (8.9)

For the Year, the Group recorded a decrease of 14.2% in the
revenue of overseas sales to RMB987.2 million (2022: RMB1,150.1
million), which is mainly due to the decrease in selling price as a
result of the macroeconomic downtrend.

Cost of sales

The Group recorded a total cost of sales of RMB3,321.8 million
for the Year, representing a decrease of 8.2% as compared to
RMB3,616.9 million recorded for the year ended 31 December
2022, mainly due to the decrease in sales volume and the decrease
in prices of raw materials.

Gross profit and gross margin

The Group’s total gross profit for the Year was RMB528.2 million,
representing a decrease of RMB82.7 million as compared to
RMB610.9 million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Group’s overall gross profit margin for the Year was 13.7%,
representing a decrease of 0.8 percentage points from 14.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The decrease in gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly due to the decrease in selling prices as
a result of the economic downturn intensifying in the second half of
2023.

Other income

For the Year, the Group’s other income was RMB45.1 million,
representing an increase of RMB11.9 million from RMB33.2 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly due to the
increase of government grants.
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Selling expenses

For the Year, the Group’s selling expenses was RMB157.0 million,
representing a decrease of 16.0% as compared to RMB186.9 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly due to the
decrease in revenue.

Administrative expenses

For the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses was RMB175.0
million, representing an increase of 2.0% as compared to RMB171.5
million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly due
to the increase of equity-settled share-based payment expenses.

Finance costs

For the Year, the finance costs of the Group was RMB89.0 million,
representing a decrease of 18.2% as compared to RMB108.8 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly due to the
decrease of loan interest rate and the decrease of discount costs on
bills receivables.

Income tax

For the Year, the Group’s income tax amounted to RMB17.8 million,
representing a decrease of RMB7.6 million as compared to RMB25.4
million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly due
to the decrease in profit before taxation.

Profit for the Year

The Group's profit for the Year was RMB134.5 million, representing
a decrease of RMB17.1 million as compared to RMB151.6 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly due to the
decrease in revenue and gross profit.

Non-IFRS Measure

To supplement our consolidated financial statements, which are
presented in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, we
also use adjusted net profit (non-IFRS measure) and adjusted net
profit margin (non-IFRS measure) as additional non-IFRS measures,
which are not required by, or presented in accordance with, IFRS
Accounting Standards.
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We believe these non-IFRS measures facilitate comparisons of
operating performance from year to year and company to company
by eliminating potential impacts of certain items. We believe that
these measures provide useful information to investors and others in
understanding and evaluating our consolidated results of operations
in the same manner as they help our management. However, our
presentation of adjusted net profit (non-IFRS measure) and adjusted
net profit margin (non-IFRS measure) may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures presented by other companies. The use of
these non-IFRS measures has limitations as an analytical tool, and
you should not consider it in isolation from, or as a substitute for
an analysis of, our results of operations or financial condition as
reported under IFRS Accounting Standards.

The following table reconciles our adjusted net profit (non-IFRS
measure) and adjusted net profit margin (non-IFRS measure) for the
years presented to the most directly comparable financial measure
calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards:
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Capital expenditure

For the Year, the Group invested RMB86.8 million in property, plant
and equipment (2022: RMB86.7 million).

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group has mainly financed its working capital and other cash
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and
resorted to external financing including both long-term and short-
term bank borrowings in case the projected operating cash flow is
insufficient to meet the capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2023, cash at bank and on hand amounted to
RMB432.6 million (31 December 2022: RMB464.9 million) and were
mainly denominated in RMB, with certain amount denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.

As at 31 December 2023, interest-bearing borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB1,767.5 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,939.1
million), among which RMB591.3 million (31 December 2022:
RMB762.3 million) were long-term interest-bearing borrowings and
RMB1,176.2 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,176.8 million) were
short-term interest-bearing borrowings and most of which were
denominated in RMB and few of which were denominated in HK$
(31 December 2022: all denominated in RMB). As at 31 December
2023, RMB1,580.2 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,802.3 million)
of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group have been charged
at fixed interest rates.

Debt to equity ratio, which is calculated by the net liabilities (interest-
bearing borrowings net of cash at bank and on hand) divided by the
total equity as at the respective year end and multiplied by 100%,
was 91.4%, representing a decrease of 13.6 percentage points from
105.0% at 31 December 2022, due to the decrease in long-term
borrowings.

Current ratio, which is calculated based on the current assets divided
by the current liabilities, decreased from 1.18 as at 31 December
2022 to 1.15 as at 31 December 2023.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 1,658 employees (31
December 2022: 1,777 employees) in total, total staff costs (inclusive
of Directors’ emoluments) for the Year amounted to RMB227.6
million (2022: RMB231.4 million).
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The Group believes its success depends on its employees’ provision
of consistent, high quality and reliable services. In order to attract,
retain and enrich the knowledge, skill level and qualifications of
its employees, the Group places a strong emphasis on training for
employees. In addition, the Group offers competitive remuneration
packages, including basic salary and performance-based monthly
and annual bonuses, and reviews the remuneration packages
annually according to industry benchmark, financial results, as well
as the performance of employees. The Company has also adopted
Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plans for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants, including
the employees of the Group, who have contributions to the Group.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of RMB1,220.8 million (31
December 2022: RMB1,193.5 million) and other chattels with
carrying amount of RMB629.0 million (31 December 2022:
RMB744.9 million) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank
borrowings.

Foreign exchange risk

A majority of the Group’s businesses are operated in the PRC and
are denominated in RMB. With the growth of its export business,
the Group hedges its exposure to exchange rate fluctuations
through forward foreign exchange settlement and it is expected
that the Group will not be subject to any materially adverse effects
arising from exchange rate fluctuation. Nevertheless, the Group will
closely monitor the financial market and would consider appropriate
measures as and when necessary.

Significant investments held and material acquisitions
and disposals

For the Year, the Group did not hold any significant investments or
have any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures of the Company.

The Group did not have any specific future plans for material
investments or capital assets as at the date of this report.
Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group does not have any contingent
liabilities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM IPO

The shares of the Group were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 8 November 2019 by way of IPO. The net proceeds
after deducting the underwriting commission and other costs and
expenses arising from the IPO were approximately HK$426.3 million
(approximately RMB383.7 million). As stated in the Prospectus,
the Company intended to use the proceeds (i) to fund the Phase
Two Expansion; (ii) to strengthen the Group’s product research
and development and innovation capabilities; (iii) to strengthen
the Group’s relationships with key customers, expand the Group’s
customer base and further expand the Group’s sales to overseas
markets; and (iv) for general replenishment of working capital and
other general corporate purpose. On 10 June 2020, the Board
resolved to allocate part of the unutilised net proceeds of the Phase
Two Expansion for the repayment of certain existing interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group. For details of the Reallocation, please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 10 June 2020. During the
Year, the net proceeds were utilised as follows:
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The unutilised net proceeds are kept in banks and approved financial
institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC. As at the date of this report,
the Company does not anticipate any further change in the planned
use of the reallocated proceeds as described above. The remaining
unutilised net proceeds as at 31 December 2023 are currently
expected to be fully utilised on or before 31 December 2024. As
disclosed in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report, due to the impact
of the Pandemic, the progress of the Phase Two Expansion has been
delayed and therefore there will be a delay in the timing of the
utilisation of the proceeds (which are expected to be fully utilised on
or before 31 December 2024).
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in the development,
manufacturing and sale of oil and gas pipes, new energy pipes and
special seamless steel pipes and other products. The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December
2023, a discussion on the Group's future business development and
principal risks and uncertainties that the Group is facing are provided
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on page 14 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 27 to 39.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by key financial
performance indicators is set out in the section headed “Financial
Review" on pages 33 to 38.

The Company promotes the culture of adhering to the highest
ethical standards of business conduct and commits to comply
with all prevailing laws and regulations in all its operating regions.
During the year, the Company was not aware of any material non-
compliance or breach of the applicable legislation or regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

EVENT AFTER THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

There was no significant event after Year up to the date of this
report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed and approved by the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Audit and Risk Management Committee is
of the opinion that such financial statements comply with the
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and all other
applicable legal requirements. The Audit and Risk Management
Committee therefore recommended the Board to approve the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the Year. The results
of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 192.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.04 (2022: HK$0.04) per ordinary Share for the Year. Subject
to the approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable to Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of the members of the Company on
Thursday, 30 May 2024.

The Board is not aware of any Shareholders who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting is currently scheduled to be held on
Wednesday, 22 May 2024. A notice convening the AGM and other
relevant documents will be published and made available to the
Shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR THE
AGM AND FINAL DIVIDEND

In order for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 17 May 2024 to Wednesday, 22 May 2024, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 16 May 2024.
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For the purpose of determining members who are qualified for
the proposed final dividend for the Year, and conditional on the
passing of the resolution approving the declaration of the final
dividend by the Shareholders at the AGM, the register of members
of the Company will also be closed from Tuesday, 28 May 2024
to Thursday, 30 May 2024 (both days inclusive), during which no
transfer of shares can be registered. To qualify for the final dividend
(which will be payable on or about Wednesday, 12 June 2023) to
be approved at the AGM, Shareholders must ensure that all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 May 2024.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group is subject to various environmental laws
and regulations set by the PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations. During the year,
the Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the operations of the Group. Further, any
changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units from
time to time.

The Group is always committed to maintaining the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. A report on the environmental,
social and governance aspects has been prepared with reference
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in
Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules and is set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social & Governance Report” on pages 84 to 182
of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers, suppliers and
business partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its suppliers and business partners.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 276 of this report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in share capital of the Company during the Year are set
out in note 23(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the trustee(s) of the Share Award Plans had
purchased Shares on the Stock Exchange or off the market for the
purpose of satisfying the share awards granted or to be granted
under the Share Award Plans, further details of which are set out
in note 23(c)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements. Save as
aforesaid, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of the changes in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and note 23(a) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB125.4 million, included
in the Company’s retained profits and share premium accounts.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to Shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution or dividend, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. In accordance with the Article of Association, dividends
shall be distributed out of the retained profits or other reserve
(representing the share premium account of the Company).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
51.7% of the Group’s total purchases and the percentage of
purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for approximately 16.4% of the Group’s total purchases. The
percentages of sales for the year attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers combined accounted for approximately 40.8% of
the Group's total sales and the percentage of the sales attributable
to the Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 10.3%
of the Group’s total sales.

Annual Report 2023 45 43

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

N

KARRARFERRAEBE RS BT RER M
5¥23(b) °

BE BENLEARQR LHES

RAFERER - B 2R 81X FEA T R XA
FIGINBERD - UEITIRER D REEBIE R
kS I h B0 28R - — TRHIBEN R AR
TSR FE23(0)i) © B EAIERID - KRR F K
EAMBRARBERE - hEXBRAREEM
EHES -

G

REERARBRFE RN FEEHEE BB BB
IRAEREBR MEAPFEHRRT K233

M2023F12A31H » KRR A EHD RAFEELD
BAREI1254F8 T Bt ARRQBIRRE
IR B EER o

RERSHEERENERRNEKER) &
RABEHEERKME ARG RRT - UK
AN ERE D IRIIKMABR - ARBEHERS
EBRETEREIHREY - ARRRNEEN B
RO IR IR FRIR < IRIFEMEIRAR -
B B RIE B IR B N sk Ho Mt R 4 (B AN X B O AR
R ERR) DK ©

FTEFEFRHEER

FA - AEBAAEEEEEOEET D LEAR
EEBREELNS1.7%  MAEEZAEERE
HRFREE DA A LB ARBRELN16.4% -
AEERAARRFEENFREET L EFHEA
EBAIHELNL0.8%  MAEBZEARFSBEN
HERE A EE B EEFL10.3% ©



44 Dalipal Holdings Limited 3 ) &2 i% 5 R 2 &)

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

None of the Director, any of their close associate or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.

DONATION

The donations made by the Group during the Year were RMB42
thousand.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Fanyong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hongyao (Vice-chairman)
Ms. Xu Wenhong

Mr. Meng Yuxiang

Ms. Gan Shuya

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yin Zhixiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Guo Kaigi
Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing
Mr. Cheng Haitao

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one-
third of our Directors will retire in the AGM. Mr. Zhang, Ms. Xu and
Mr. YX Meng will retire as Directors at the AGM, and being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Upon expiration of the original service contracts with the Company
in respect of their roles as executive Directors on 18 June 2022,
each of the following executive Directors, Mr. Meng, Ms. Xu, Mr.
YX Meng and Ms. Gan have entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 19 June 2022,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

In replacement of the original service contract with the Company
in respect of Mr. Zhang's role as an executive Director, Mr. Zhang
has entered into a service contract with the Company in respect of
the same role for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2023, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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Each of the Company’s independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
two years from 19 June 2022 upon expiration of their original
appointment letters on 18 June 2022, which may be terminated by
not less than 15 days’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Mr. Yin, who was re-designated as a non-executive Director
from executive Director with effect from 4 April 2022, has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
from 4 April 2022, which may be terminated by not less than 15
days’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

No Director proposed to be re-elected at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract with the Group, which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 26 of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors have been independent
throughout the Year and remain independent as of the date of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will
be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company, or as otherwise required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange are as follows:

EEREBRITRAERKRA - 156
R REERNERD R

M2023F12A31H » ARBIEZEERESITHA
BRADRHEAEEE(TEALES PSR
BIEEXVED) BIRR (5 - ABRERR D R EEET - #E
BIEEA R EENEXVEBETRESD A
TANE R ATHER AR (BEREES
MEEEBIRNZ S G EE (ESG A R
mIORR) - HARERE S R E KA 3521578
ERNARRAFEN S CMOERSAR &
BRI AEST BB A S A D B KRB A2 TR A 2 5ok
BT

Long positions i)
Number of
ordinary
Shares and
underlying
Shares held
Name of Group under equity Approximate
member/associated derivatives percentage of
Name corporation Nature of interest capital shareholding
ERREE RRE
AEERERT/ fTETAER BB RE
®H HELE AR ERtE FEENRG Vil
(Note 1) (Note 6)
(Hizt1) (Hiit6)
Directors £E
Mr. Meng The Company Interest of controlled corporation 706,353,600(L) 47.01%
mEAE VNG (Note 2)
REEEB S R (H2)
Mr. Zhang The Company Beneficial owner 6,000,000(L) 0.40%
wEE /NS EREBA (Note 3)
(Hi7t3)
Interest of spouse 3,000,000(L) 0.20%
FefBaEs (Note 4)
(Hiita)
Ms. Gan The Company Beneficial owner 6,000,000(L) 0.40%
Fit ARAE] ExnBERA (Note 5)
(Hit5)
Mr. Guo The Company Beneficial owner 810,000(L) 0.05%
B NG EmEAA




Notes:

(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company.

(2)  These Shares were held by Rosy Astral. Rosy Astral is owned as to approximately
80.63% by Mr. Meng. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Meng is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Rosy Astral.

(3)  These Shares represent the maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued to her upon the exercise of the pre-IPO share options granted to her under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
set out under the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below.

(4)  These Shares were held by Ms. Chen Chunlei, the spouse of Mr. Zhang. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by his spouse.

(5) These Shares comprise (i) 2,400,000 Shares directly held by Ms. Gan; and (ii) the
remaining 3,600,000 Shares represent the maximum number of Shares which
may be allotted and issued to her upon the exercise of the pre-IPO share options
granted to her under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme are set out under the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” below.

(6) The percentage represents the number of Shares or registered capital involved
divided by the number of the Company’s issued Shares as at 31 December 2023,
being 1,502,668,000.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was to incentivise or reward eligible
participants (i.e. (i) any full-time or part-time employee (including
any executive Director) of the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”);
(ii) any non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Group or Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier
or customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any person or
entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any Shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(vi) any adviser or consultant to any area of business or business
development of the Group or any Invested Entity; (vii) such other
persons who in the sole opinion of the Board may contribute or
have contributed to the development and growth of the Group; and
(viii) any company wholly owned by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of participants for their contribution to
the Group, for the purpose of motivating them to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and attracting
and retaining the aforementioned eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
our Group.
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For any options granted to Directors, chief executives or substantial
shareholders of the Company, or any of their respective associate,
options to be granted to any of these persons shall be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any independent
non-executive Director who or whose associates is the proposed
grantee of options). Where any option granted to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or any of
their respective associates, would result in the Shares issued or to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant, (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the Shares in issue; and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of each offer for the grant,
in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options shall be subject to
prior approval by resolutions of the Shareholders (voting by way
of poll) at which all core connected persons of the Company shall
abstain from voting in favour, and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company is aware that under the new rule 17.03A of the
Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2023, participants
of share schemes shall only comprise of employee participants,
related entity participants and service providers (as defined in the
Listing Rules). The Company will only grant the share options under
the Share Option Scheme to eligible participants in compliance with
the new rule 17.03A and pursuant to the transitional arrangements
for share schemes existing as at 1 January 2023 as specified by the
Stock Exchange.

The number of Shares issued and to be issued in respect of options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the total Shares of the
Company in issue, without prior approval from the Shareholders
and with such participants and his close associates abstaining from
voting.

The amount payable on acceptance of the grant is HK$1.00, which
will be payable on or before a prescribed acceptance date, and
any offer of option made by the Directors under the Share Option
Scheme shall be open for acceptance for a period of up to the
earlier of 21 days from the relevant offer date. In relation to any
options granted under the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price is
determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares for the five Business Days immediately
preceding the date of the offer for the grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.
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The Share Option Scheme does not contain any minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised. However,
at the time of granting of the options, the Board may specify any
such minimum period.

The vesting period of the options granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme is determinable by the directors and to be stated
in the offer to the grantee. The exercise period of such options to
be granted is also determinable by the directors, save that such
period must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. Unless
otherwise terminated by the Shareholders in general meeting in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption which was 19 June 2019, after which
no further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to
the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any subsisting
options granted prior to the expiry of the 10-year period or
otherwise as may be require. As at the date of this report, the Share
Option Scheme had a remaining life of approximately 5 years.

The total number of the Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 150,000,000 Shares
(representing 9.98% of the total number of issued Shares of
the Company as at the date of this report), unless Shareholders’
approval has been obtained.
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Details of the movements in the Company’s outstanding share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the Year
were as follows:

BEAFE  ARRREBEESSIRENER
TTEBRENEBFITNT -

Outstanding During the Year Outstanding
Exercise asat Exercise Price REE as at 31
Category of period 1January  per Share December
participant Date of grant (Note 1) 2023 HKD  Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2023
R2003% Bk R2023%
TEAE 1818 iRk 128318
SEEEH b=l (Wiz1) WRATHE B 2R 2Ky B BRM HROE
Employee 10 December 2021 From 30 November 2023 1,000,000 256 - - - - 1,000,000
| 2015128108 1030 November 2031
2023511 A30HE
203151174308
10 December 2021 From 2 December 2024 to 1,000,000 256 - - - - 1,000,000
20214127108 30 November 2031
20245127202
2031%11A30H
10 December 2021 From 1 December 2025 to 1,000,000 256 - - - - 1,000,000
20214127108 30 November 2031
20255127102
20315117430
10 December 2021 From 30 November 2026 to 1,000,000 256 - - - - 1,000,000
20214127108 30 November 2031
20265113082
203151174308
Total &5t - - 4,000,000 - - - - - 4,000,000
Notes: Mt

1. The vesting period of the share options under the Share Option Scheme is from
the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 150,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 9.98% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this report, whereas the number
of share options available for grant under the scheme mandate
limit of the Share Option Scheme as at each of 1 January 2023
and 31 December 2023 was 146,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.72% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this report.
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 19 June 2019, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted
by a resolution in writing passed by the then Shareholders to
incentivise or reward eligible participants (i.e. any full-time or part-
time employee (including any executive Director) of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and any non-executive Directors or proposed
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company or any
Invested Entity) for their contribution to the Group for the purpose
of motivating the eligible participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group, and attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-
going relationship with the eligible participants of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had
a remaining life of approximately 5 years.

There is no maximum entitlement limit for the participants as
specified in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The amount payable on acceptance of the grant is HK$1.00, which
will be payable on or before a prescribed acceptance date, and
any offer of option made by the Directors under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be open for acceptance for a period of up
to the earlier of 21 days from the relevant offer date or the latest
practicable date as specified in the Prospectus. For the avoidance of
doubt, no further option may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

There is no minimum period for which the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme must be held before it can
be exercised once the relevant share options have been vested on
the grantees, unless otherwise determined by the Directors. Please
refer to the below for further information about the applicable
vesting period and the exercise period of the options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

In relation to any options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the exercise price is determined at the discretion of the
Directors, provided that it shall be not less than the nominal value
of a Share. Please refer below for further information about the
exercise price of the options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.
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Upon termination of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme in accordance
with its term by the Shareholders in general meeting, no further
options will be offered but the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to the exercise of any subsisting options granted prior
thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Movements of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme during the Year were as follows:

B RAR IR B R A P 3 A B SRR 51 81 MO IR FE X
RAG LRI - ST TEMERE
BERAFEERBRESNGETRELEN
B TRFF DS - EITEERZATRE
BRARBERBEE SN EFTENHE
5 AT IR AR AR -

RER - B SR AN E NIRRT Y
BRAEHZBMT -

Outstanding  Exercise Price Outstanding
Exercise asat  perShare During the Year asat
Category of period 1 January HKD i 31 December
participant Date of grant (Note 1) 2023 (Note 2) Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2023
R03% BRAE 2035
e 1818 ElER 128318
L] RiLBH (i) WA (W) 2R Bfif B BA¥ WA
Directors
gz
Mr. Zhang 8 October 2019 From 9 November 2022 1,500,000 0477 - 1,500,000 - - -
REE 201910488 o8 November 2026 (Note 3)
#0225 11 A9E Uriz)
E2026511788
8 October 2019 From 9 November 2023 3,000,000 04171 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
2019510888 to8 November 2026 (Note 3) (Note 4)
103511 A9A (#3) (i4)
22026511A8A
8 October 2019 From 11 November 2024 3,000,000 041 - - - - 3,000,000
201910488 o8 November 2026
N0UENANA
E)026%11 8
8 October 2019 From 10 November 2025 3,000,000 0477 - - - - 3,000,000
2019 10A8H 0.8 November 2026
120256114108
E2026%11 A8
10,500,000 - - 3,000,000 - 1,500,000 6,000,000
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Outstanding ~ Exercise Price Outstanding
Exercise asat  perShare During the Year asat
Category of period 1 January HKD B 31 December
participant Date of grant (Note 1) 2023 (Note 2) Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2023
RNBE BRAR R203%
s 181R ElER 12831H
SEEER RiLRH (1) WA (hi2) 2R B B BN HATE
Ms. Gan 8 October 2019 From 9 November 2022 1,200,000 0417 - 1,200,000 - - -
T 2019%10A8H to 8 November 2025 (Note 5)
1202251179 (His)
E225%511A8H
8 October 2019 From 9 November 2023 2,400,000 0477 - - - 1,200,000 1,200,000
201910888 0.8 November 2025 (Note 4)
R03E11 A9E (Hit4)
E225%11 A8
8 October 2019 From 11 November 2024 2,400,000 0477 - - - - 2,400,000
2019E1078H 0.8 November 2025
02451 AR
E2025%11 A8
6,000,000 - - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 3,600,000
Employee 8 October 2019 From 9 November 2020 1,500,000 0477 - - - - 1,500,000
Es 2019510488 to 8 November 2025
12020511498
E)25%11A8A
8 October 2019 From 9 November 2022 1,500,000 0477 - - - - 1,500,000
2019E1078H to 8 November 2025
12022511498
E2025511788
8 October 2019 From 9 November 2023 3,000,000 0477 - - - 1,500,000 1,500,000
201910788 to 8 November 2025 (Note 4)
003511 AR (hi4)
22025511 A8A
8 October 2019 From 11 November 2024 3,000,000 0477 - - - - 3,000,000
201910488 to 8 November 2025
R04ENANA
E225%11 A8
9,000,000 - - - - 1,500,000 7,500,000

Total 3t 25,500,000 - - 4,200,000 - 4200000 17,100,000
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Notes:

(1)  The vesting period of the share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise period.
The vesting of the share options is subject to the fulfilment of certain vesting
conditions. Please refer to the Prospectus of the Company for further details of the
vesting conditions.

(2) The exercise price represents 30% of the final offer price of each Share upon
Listing (i.e. HK$1.59).

(3) The weighted average closing share price immediately before the date on which
the share options were exercised was HK$2.75 per share.

(4)  As one of the vesting conditions in relation to the financial performance of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 were not met, 50% of the share
options expected to be vested on 9 November 2023 has lapsed on the date when
the Board approved the final results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 (i.e. 21 March 2023).

(5) The weighted average closing share price immediately before the date on which
the share options were exercised was HK$5.15 per share.

Except for the options which have lapsed or exercised under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme as set out above, no other share options
have been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2023.

As both of the vesting conditions in relation to the financial
performance of the Group for the Year were not met, all of the
share options granted to Mr. Zhang, Ms. Gan and the employee
expected to be vested on 11 November 2024 have lapsed on the
date when the Board approved the final results of the Group for
the Year (i.e. 22 March 2024). Accordingly, the total number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all the
outstanding options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at the date of this report was 8,700,000 Shares, representing
approximately 0.58% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
the date of this report. No further options can be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after the latest practicable date (i.e.
20 October 2019) prior to the printing of the Prospectus.

et -

(1) BRAFFEHERESSETARBRENSBYR
fEH A RREREETESAMG - BREZRBAGE
REIGMTERRIAIFEE - EARBRIENESZF

% F2EARANBEREE -

Q) TTEERLHREREMNKEEEEEN59ETT)H
30% °

() EEREREETEANNNNETHETRNERAT
%275 7T °

(4) BHRATHKEEREEEZ2022F12A31BIEFENIF
REABAMEPR—FEEMS - TEHR2023F11 8985
EBHIS0%EAEE Nz B E(B12023F3A210 - £5g
RZEHE T AEEEZE2022612 A31 B I EENRK
BRI -

(5) EBEEREETEAMFNNETHETRNERAT
%5158 7T °

B ERPIPIRRIBE X AFREEABRETEE
R ETTER OB - BZE2023F12A31
B SEEGEREREE X FEEAERE
FTEIER G - 176 - SRR -

AR EASEHEARNFENMBRIREHENMIE
BERBEEARGIME AR FREE T
WEAE B IRER BRER2024F 11 A11BH
FrEEREERESSHARNEEREATER
RIREE 7 B(A2024F3 8228 ) k5% - Bt -
RARE B - RIFE X ARSI BEE S
Fri BB MR TR AR T T I I AR 38 %
BT IR0 4281 /58,700,000 A% 17 » 1EEE A
R B A E BT AR 4)0.58%  TEENEIR
RERATHRE BRI TTEH(EI2019F 10420
H)%  BTBREE XA ERERETE
B IR -



SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company has adopted the Share Award Plans on 31 May 2022
(the “Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Award Plans
are to (i) recognise and reward the contribution of certain eligible
participants to the growth and development of the Group and to
give incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Plans, the Share Incentive Committee
which as at the date of this report, comprises of Mr. Meng, Mr. Guo
and Mr. Cheng, may, at its power and authority from the Board,
select any eligible participant to participate in the Share Award Plans
and make an award of Shares (the “Awards”) to them from time
to time. Eligible participants under the Connected Persons’ Share
Award Plan are directors (excluding all non-executive Directors
including independent non-executive Directors) and chief executives
of the Group, and eligible participants under the Non-Connected
Persons’ Share Award Plan are any full-time employees of Group
who are not connected persons of the Company.

Subject to any early termination in accordance with the rules of
the Share Award Plans, the Share Award Plans shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing from 31 May 2022,
being the Adoption Date. After the expiry of such 10-year term, no
further awards may be made but the rules of the Share Award Plans
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to any Awards made prior thereto and the administration of
the trust property held by the trustees. As at the date of this report,
the Share Award Plans have a remaining life of over 8 years.

According to the Share Award Plans, the Award Shares shall
principally be (i) existing Shares as may be purchased by the trustees
on the Stock Exchange or off the market; (i) such Shares as may be
allotted or issued to the Trustee as a holder of Shares, whether by
way of scrip dividend or otherwise; and (iii) such Shares which any
person or company recommended by the Company may irrevocably
donate or transfer to or irrevocably vest or caused to be vested in
the trustees to be held upon trusts.

The Board or the Share Incentive Committee may, after having
regard to all relevant circumstances and affairs of the Group
(including without limitation the Group’s business and operational
conditions, its business plans and cashflow requirements currently
and in the near future,) from time to time cause to be paid to the
trustees from the Company’s resources such amount of money
which may be utilised by the trustees to purchase Shares which will
constitute the shares pool.
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The Share Incentive Committee may from time to time, at its
discretion, determine the earliest vesting date and other subsequent
date(s), if any, upon which the award Shares held by the trustees
upon trust and which are referable to a selected participant shall
vest in that selected participant.

The Share Incentive Committee may specify the condition(s) and/
or performance target(s) (if any) that must be duly fulfilled by the
relevant selected participant before any of the award Shares may
be transferred to and vested in such selected participant under an
award.

The maximum number of Shares to be purchased by the trustee for
the purpose of the Share Award Plans shall in aggregate not exceed
10% of the total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date
of the Share Award Plans (i.e. not exceeding 149,846,800 Shares)
throughout the term of the Share Award Plans.

The maximum number of Shares which may be subject to an award
or awards to a selected participant shall not in aggregate exceed, in
any continuous 12-month period, 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the Adoption Date throughout the term of the
Share Award Plans.

Details of movement of award shares of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

B AEE B g A TREBRERZEATEL
EEAEE2EENRBRN ERBNZEETE
SHEENZFRERAPLREMCEREBBR(IE) -

i AUEN R B & Al AT BRI 2RI AR 1) AT AR 5 22
BEETARBNEREESEER - ZRETE
SHE NAR RERE R R R B B E(N
) -

ZEABRNEEFEIEENSEAROBETS
BB T EIRA B e TR DA
10% (BN~ #B38149,846,800/% ) FE A 17 HE Eh =T 21
OB EEAR A -

FEAEEE 1218 A BRI - ATRERR TR ELH
FERBOBRNHN RS E NMSEARERRAL
AIEERS B IS BTN 1% M) 22BN 8 -

FHE2023F12 A31BFE It - REBKRG, EE)
FEFIBNT

Unvested During the Year Unvested
Date of Vesting as at rEE asat
Category of grant date 1 January 31 December
participant (Note 2) (Note 3) 2023 Granted Vested Cancelled Lapsed 2023
Sl BEA H2023% R2023%F
SEEEH (Hrit2) (Hiit3) 1A1H BEiH BT Bt BAA 128318
Top five highest paid 17 August 2023 1 May 2024 - 135,222 - - - 135,222
employees (Note 1) 2023E8A178 2024485418
SESREME T (M) 1 January 2025 - 101,417 - - - 101,417
200551 418
1 January 2026 - 101,417 - - - 101,417
2026517418
- 338,056 - - - 338,056
Other employees 17 August 2023 1 May 2024 - 3,404,367 - - - 3,404,367
EfhET 2023F8A178  2024F5718
1 January 2025 - 2,553,275 - - - 2,553,275
202551418
1 January 2026 - 2,553,276 - - - 2,553,276
202651 A1H
- 8,510,918 - - - 8,510,918
Total 5t - 8848974 - - - 8,848,974




Notes:

(1) The top five highest paid employees of the Group refers to the five individuals with
highest emoluments as disclose in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements,
of which two of them are Directors. For the avoidance of doubt, only individuals
who are not Directors and who are among the top five highest paid individuals of
the Group are within this category of participants.

(2) The closing price of the shares on 16 August 2023, being the date immediately
before the date on which the award shares were granted was HK$3.93 per share.

(3) The vesting of the award shares is set out as follows: 40% of the total award
shares granted on 17 August 2023 will vest on 1 May 2024; each of 30% of the
total award shares will vest on 1 January 2025 and 1 January 2026, respectively,
provided that the relevant grantees remain, as at the respective vesting dates,
employed by the Group. Relevant grantees ceasing to be employees of the Group
by reason of retirement, shall remain eligible.

During the Year, 8,848,974 award shares were granted, and no
award shares were vested, cancelled or lapsed.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes”
and “Share Award Plans” in this report, during the Year, none
of the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, was a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to have any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or a connected entity of a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Controlling Shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has any contract of significance (including contract of significance
for the provision of services) with the Company or its subsidiaries
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or were deemed
or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or
the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares of the Company

ERRRNERSHES

AR B HEAEMIRIFHE R BN FRAAFED
PER R #R i AR M B AR R R Sk EL B A A
AAEAERGN(BREERERENERS
%) e

FERRRRAD R ABRDVER

S B
Ko%=

M2023F12H318 » TIIAL(EERARAFE
TITHA BRRIN RO B G+ - #A K
WR BB IERBRIEES KB IEHIEXVED
F2R3DEIEX AT R - WERERH K
EIEHIFE3361FR AR R BIFEE B LM
&/SAR - REBESMERAARBEITIRA
REEA 5% A _EiERS

RARBDEBRZEFR

al

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest ordinary Shares shareholding
RRER ERME ERERHE BAREESE
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(HzE1) (H7#3)
Ms. Luo Yumei Interest of spouse (Note 2) 706,353,600(L) 47.01%
BEwZT BofBiEes (H1at2)
Rosy Astral Beneficial owner 706,353,600(L) 47.01%
BE BERBEBA
Polaris Swift Limited Beneficial owner 417,822,000(L) 27.81%
ERBR A EmMAA
Notes: Hiat -

(1) The letter “L"” denotes the shareholder’s long position in the Shares and
underlying Shares.

(2)  Ms. Luo Yumei is the spouse of Mr. Meng. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Luo Yumei
is deemed to be interested in the Shares of the Company which Mr. Meng is
interested in.

(3) The percentage represents the number of Shares or registered capital involved
divided by the number of the Company’s issued Shares as at 31 December 2023,
being 1,502,668,000.

() FEILURRZERERD MBRERN T HFE

Q) BEMELAREENEE - BEESLMEED -
LT HRAREEEAERENAR ARG T EE
s -

B HEIPHAREBOHHEBRFEMERBRAAR AR
2023F 12 A3TEMEFTROBE HFMERCE
1,502,668,0000%) °



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates had interests in businesses which compete or are
likely to compete either directly or indirectly with the businesses of
the Group as are required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Covenantors, each being a Controlling Shareholder
of the Company, has entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in
favour of the Company on 19 June 2019, pursuant to which each of
the Covenantors has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to
the Group that he/it will not, and will procure his/its close associates
(other than members of the Group) not to directly or indirectly
participate, acquire or hold any right or interest in or otherwise be
involved in or undertake any business (other than the business of
the Group) that directly or indirectly competes, or may compete, any
business which is in any respect in competition with or similar to or is
likely to be in competition with the business of the Group. For details
of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the Prospectus.

Each of the Covenantors has provided to the Company an annual
written confirmation in respect of his/its compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the compliance with the non-competition undertaking by
the Covenantors under the Deed of Non-Competition and are of
the view that such non-competition undertaking has been complied
with during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the material related party transactions made during
the Year is disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. The related party transactions set out in note 26(a)
and 26(b) to the consolidated financial statements also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and such transactions
are fully exempt from any announcement, reporting, annual
review or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the relevant requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions.
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PROPERTY INTERESTS

The Group holds 100% interest in various land parcels located at
North of Nanshugang Road, Bohai New District, Cangzhou, Hebei
Province, the PRC with total site area of approximately 994,886.91
sg.m. for industrial usage for the Phase Two Expansion. The property
under construction comprises portion of land parcels with a total site
area of approximately 530,925 sq.m.. Construction for Phase Two
Expansion is in progress as at the date of this report. It is expected
that construction for Phase Two Expansion will be completed by
December 2025.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emolument policy for Directors’ remuneration are set up by the
Remuneration Committee, and the emoluments of the Directors are
mainly determined having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and the Share
Award Plans as incentives to Directors and eligible employees, details
of the scheme are set out in the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Share Award Plans” above in this report and in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s contribution to defined contribution
retirement schemes in the PRC and Hong Kong are set out in note
6(b) to the financial statements. Under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”), no forfeited contributions for the
MPF Scheme may be used by the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions as the contributions are fully vested to the
employee upon payments to the MPF Scheme. Under the retirement
benefit plan managed by the local government authority in the PRC
participated by the subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC,
no forfeited contributions will be used by the employer to reduce
the existing level of contributions.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, each Director
was entitled during the Year and remains entitled up to the date of
this report to the compensation out of the assets of the Company
for all losses or liabilities incurred due to the execution of his/her
duties or taken place related to such execution. The Company has
taken out the appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
policy for the Directors and officers of the Group as a means of
security.

e
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BRI S B LM 100%#S A TERR
b A% T R 49 5994,886.91°F F oK - 1T —Hi4®
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Apart from the Share Option Scheme, the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Share Award Plans, there was not any subsisting
equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company during or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares of the
Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the minimum public float of 25% as required under the
Listing Rules as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
report.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for their reappointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Meng Fanyong
Chairman

22 March 2024
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The Company was listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 8
November 2019. The Company’s corporate governance situation
during the Year was as follows. This report complies with the
mandatory disclosure requirements as set out in part 1 of the CG
Code in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
Corporate Culture

“Striving to be a first-class enterprise, serving first-class customers
and building a century-old brand” is the vision and mission of the
Group. Closely focusing on to achieve this vision and mission, the
Board and the management of the Company lead all employees
to always adhere to the basic value principle of “compliance with
laws and regulations, honesty and trustworthiness”. Continuous
improvement, uninterrupted innovation and courageous reform
are the inexhaustible driving force for the long-term development
of the Company. The Company advocates concentric thinking,
common goals and simultaneous actions to respond to changes
with openness and sharing, and always pursues “No Best, Only
Better”. The Group will achieve harmonious development among
Shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and the society with
its steady growth and excellent performance.

Corporate Strategy

To achieve the goal for the Company’s long-term development,
the Group focuses on its financial and ESG performance to
achieve sustainable development. The Group exercises stringent
management over the Group’s revenue, earnings, margins and
costs, return on capital and investments and other financing
activities. The Group’s core competitiveness in operational
excellence, product innovation and technology infrastructure is an
important measure for the Group to capture business opportunities
in various industries. In recent years, the Group has been increasing
its investment in research and development to facilitate innovation
and smart technology manufacturing. The Group is also committed
to maintaining a healthy liquidity and flexibility, maintaining a long-
term and balanced debt repayment profile, and actively managing
cash flows and working capital. A discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance is included in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. The Group aims to create long-term value and
basis in achieving the Group’s objectives. Meanwhile, the Group is
increasingly focused on ESG and exploring the next steps to support
the global transition to a low-carbon economy by achieving net
zero emissions, good health and well-being of our employees, and
inclusion and diversity in the work-place. Further details about the
Group’s ESG initiatives and its key relationships with stakeholders
are disclosed in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to follow best practices in corporate
governance in order to enhance the Shareholders’ value by ensuring
standards in integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure.
The Company has emphasizes on a quality board, sound internal
controls, transparency and accountability to all Shareholders as its
corporate governance principles. The Company has adopted the
code provisions set out in part 2 of the CG Code as its own code
of corporate governance. During the Year, the Company was in
compliance with all relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions in terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix C3 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiries with each of the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed to the Company that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
Year.

LEADERSHIP
Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategies
as well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of
the Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering overall strategies of the Group, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results,
recommendations on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant
operational and financial matters. The Board has delegated to
management the authority and responsibility for daily management
of the Group, implementation of strategies approved by the Board,
monitoring operating budgets, implementation of internal control
procedures, and ensuring compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and other rules and regulations. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.
Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
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Board Composition

During the Year, the Board consisted nine Directors with the
following composition:

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Fanyong (chairman of the Board,
chairman of Nomination Committee)

Mr. Zhang Hongyao (vice-chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer)

Ms. Xu Wenhong (chairlady of ESG Committee)

Mr. Meng Yuxiang

Ms. Gan Shuya

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Yin Zhixiang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Kaigi (chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing (chairman of Audit and Risk Management
Committee)

Mr. Cheng Haitao
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To the best knowledge of the Company, except for Mr. Meng
being the father of Mr. YX Meng, none of the Board members have
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other. Such balanced Board is composed to ensure
strong independence existed across the Board. The composition of
the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective
leadership. The biographical details of Directors are set out on
pages 18 to 26 under the section headed "Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” in this annual report.

% %% RESEMEAXEHERBE - HRx
ERHTATENRRI - EFERBAEEY
& ARREFEAEREBELIE EFSHEK
RERERR BB BENTE R L& - EFERE
HBEHNAFRF1BEEF26ENEZRSR
BRI ]—&



Independent Non-Executive Directors

All of the Company’s independent non-executive Directors are
experienced and of high calibre. They are equipped with academic
and professional qualifications in either accounting, investment
or oil pipe production. With their experience gained from various
sectors, they provide strong support towards the effective discharge
of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent
non-executive Director has given an annual written confirmation
of his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and the Company considers that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times has met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Meng is the chairman of the Board who is responsible for
leading the efficient business development of the Group.

Mr. Zhang is the chief executive officer of the Group who
is responsible for the overall administrative and operational
management of the Group.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is held accountable to the Company’s Shareholders
and stakeholders. It is responsible for the overall leadership and
control of the Company, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions
and performance, and is responsible for promoting the success of
the Company. The Board makes decisions on the strategies of the
Group in the best interests of the Group, and reserves its right of
decision all major matters relating to budgets, policy, strategies,
internal control, risk management, material transactions, financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company.
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All Directors have brought in precious and valuable business
insights, experience and knowledge to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. They are all provided with full and timely
access to information of the Company as well as access to contact
and services of the Company Secretary and management. In order
to ensure that independent views and inputs are available to the
Directors, the Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors have disclosed to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution of
each Director in performing his/her responsibilities to the Company.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

The Board understands that independent views and input are
vital elements to good corporate governance. The Company has
mechanisms in place to ensure independent views and input are
available to the Board, among others, (i) each individual directors
can access to the advice from the management and external
independent professional of the Company directly, when necessary;
and (ii) dedicated meetings between independent-non executive
Directors and chairman of the Board or external auditors had been
arranged for the independent non-executive Directors to express
their own views and raise any matters or irregularities which may
have impact on the Company and provide constructive advice
accordingly. The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness
of the mechanisms on an annual basis.

As at 31 December 2023, four Board Committees, namely the Audit
and Risk Management Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and ESG Committee, have been set up
and delegated various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

Through the chief executive officer of the Group whom the Board
has delegated authorities, the management of the Group is provided
with authority and responsibility for implementing the decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operations and
management of the Group.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EENEEEERRE
OF DIRECTORS

The CG Code provides that all Directors shall participate in  {PHEEASTARTE @ 2RESHELREGEEE
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their  2%f& - LAZSE N E s H A LI AE - BIREER
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board B2 EEN LKA ENIER NHEES/ESY
remains informed and relevant. =

All Directors have participated in continuous professional &
development and provided a record of training they received for 124
the Year to the Company. During the Year, each of the Directors &%
participated in continuous professional development by reading &/
materials relating to the discharge of their duties and responsibilities

and regulatory updates.
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Reading materials
relating to the discharge of
their duties and responsibilities
and regulatory updates

Name of Director REAR R AR B R R
ExEH BITHBEREEUREEEN
Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Meng Fanyong v
BABRAE

Mr. Zhang Hongyao v/
SRALMRITHE

Ms. Xu Wenhong v
XAt

Mr. Meng Yuxiang v
BTARE

Ms. Gan Shuya v

Tt et

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. Yin Zhixiang v
BRAEFE ST

Independent non-executive Directors

BYHTES

Mr. Guo Kaiqi v
E)i St

Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing v
TEREE

Mr. Cheng Haitao v
BsE
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The Company has also continuously updated Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The CG Code stipulates that non-executive Directors shall be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election at regular
intervals. The appointment of all Directors is also subject to the
provisions of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles
of Association. The Articles of Association stipulates that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall only hold office until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after their appointment and shall be eligible for re-election
at the annual general meeting, and that every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The procedures and
process of removal of Directors are also laid down in the Articles of
Association.

Each executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company, pursuant to which they have agreed to serve as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years beginning on 19 June
2022 (for Mr. Meng, Ms. Xu, Mr. YX Meng and Ms. Gan) or 1
January 2023 (for Mr. Zhang), which can be terminated by either
party by not less than three months written notice. The term of the
service contract will be automatically renewed and extended for
one year after the current term expires, until either party terminates
by giving written notice to the other party at least three months in
advance.

The non-executive Director has been appointed with effect from 4
April 2022 for fixed term of 3 years, and such appointment can be
terminated by either party by giving a written notice to the other
party at least 15 days in advance.

Each independent non-executive Director has been appointed for
an initial term of two years beginning on 19 June 2022, and can be
terminated by either party by giving a written notice to the other
party at least 15 days in advance. The term of office of the non-
executive Director and each of the independent non-executive
Director will be automatically renewed and extended for one year
after the expiry of the current term at that time, until either party
terminates by giving written notice to the other party at least 15
days in advance.
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None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lau Ying Kit is the Company Secretary of the Company
responsible for providing compliance and company secretarial
services to the Group and assisting the Group to cope with the
changing regulatory environment and to suit different commercial
needs.

Mr. Lau Ying Kit was appointed as the Company Secretary on 10
December 2021.

Mr. Lau undertook no less than 15 hours of professional training to
update their skills and knowledge for the Year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary on corporate governance and board practices and matters.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As at 31 December 2023, four Board Committees, namely the Audit
and Risk Management Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the ESG Committee, have been
established for the roles of overseeing particular aspects of the
Group under defined terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are provided on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. A list of the composition of each
Board Committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on page
4 of this report.
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Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong (as
committee chairman), Mr. Guo and Mr. Cheng. Mr. Wong possesses
the required qualification under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee adopted by the Board during the relevant period aligned
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code and are made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor; reviewing, in draft
form, the interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group
and significant financial reporting judgements contained therein;
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, and the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held 3 meetings
during the Year. At the meetings, the committee reviewed the
Group's financial statements, external auditor KPMG's audit plan
and quotation, and the terms of reference of the committee. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee has also reviewed the
Group's financial results and monitored the audit process with the
attendance of the external auditors before reporting and submitting
to the Board for their approval.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Meng (as
committee chairman), Mr. Guo and Mr. Cheng.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by
the Board are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code and are currently made available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Board composition, structure, size and diversity of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
nomination, appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
CEO and reviewing the board diversity policy adopted by the
Company. For more information on the Company’s policy on board
diversity, please refer to the section headed “Board Diversity Policy”
in this report.

The Board has adopted written policy for the nomination of new
Directors. In evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship,
the criteria to be taken into account when considering the suitability
of a candidate shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the
diversity of the Board as well as the effective carrying out by the
Board of its responsibilities.

Pursuant to the procedures adopted by the Board for nomination of
new Directors, pursuant to which (i) the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new Director and the biographical information of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria set out in the written
policy adopted for the nomination of new Directors; (ii) if the process
yields one or more desirable candidates, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should rank them by order of preference based on
the needs of the Company and reference check of each candidate; (iii)
the Nomination Committee should then recommend to the Board to
appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship; and (iv) for any
person that is nominated by a Shareholder for election as a Director
at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria set out in the written policy adopted for the nomination of
new Directors to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.
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To ensure a proper understanding of the operations and
businesses of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations (including
the Listing Rules), the newly appointed Directors will be provided
with a comprehensive, tailored and formal induction prior to/on the
first occasion of his/her appointment.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meetings to
discuss and review the suitability regarding Board size, structure
and combination, in light of the Company’s business and strategic
direction.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-
executive directors and one executive Director, namely Mr. Guo (as
committee chairman), Mr. Cheng and Mr. YX Meng.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted
by the Board are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code and are currently made available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors and senior
management, on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy and reviewing matters
relating to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, Share Option Scheme
and Shares Award Plans.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under
code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of part 2 of the CG Code to make
recommendations to the Board on remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings
to discuss and review the Company’s remuneration structure and
amount of remuneration for the Directors and chief executive.

The emolument payable to Directors and senior management
will depend on their respective contractual terms under service
agreement/appointment letter and is fixed by the Board with
reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee,
the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
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The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a
Share Option Scheme on 19 June 2019, and the Share Award Plans
on 31 May 2022. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is to recognise and reward the contribution of certain Directors and
senior management of the Group to the growth and development
of the Group and the Listing and the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme and the Share Award Plans are to enable the Group to
grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution of the Group. Details of the share option schemes
and the Share Award Plans are set out in the Report of the Board of
Directors.

Range of Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration, which included share-based payments, of the
senior management of the Company for the Year, is set out by band
below:
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ESG Committee

The ESG Committee consists of one executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Xu (as committee
chairlady), Mr. Guo, and Mr. Wong.

The terms of reference of the ESG Committee adopted by the Board
are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code and
are made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The ESG Committee is responsible for performing, and
has performed, the functions set out in the CG Code.
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The ESG Committee is mainly responsible for proposing applicable
principles of corporate governance and reviewing and determining
corporate governance policies to maintain the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance and non-financial internal control
systems, thereby improving and ensuring the Group’s corporate
Governance practices meet high standards; and also overseeing of
the Group’s achievement of ESG-related objectives and monitoring
the relevant performance of the Group and its ESG risk management
and internal control system, and the reviewing of the Group’s
compliance with the CG Code and the ESG Reporting Guide as
set out in Appendix C1 and Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules,
respectively. During the Year, 1 meetings of the ESG Committee
were held to discuss and review the corporate governance report
prepared by the Company regularly.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance and hence the purpose of the Board
Diversity Policy aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors. The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects and
measurable objectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge.

The current Board is considered well-balanced in terms of the
aforesaid characteristics, and of a diverse mix appropriate for
the business of the Group. With two female Directors, it is also
considered that gender diversity has been achieved in respect of the
Board.

In order to achieve gender diversity in Board succession, the
Company would also put further emphasis on gender balance and
gender equality in future recruitments and identification of potential
candidates, so that sufficient potential candidates of different
gender are in place to fill the vacancy of the Board, when necessary.

During the year, in respect of the gender diversity at workforce level
(including management), the female representation is about 19% of
the total workforce. Given the business of the Group remain heavily
reliant on machines operation and manual labour, it is expected
equality of gender ratio will be difficult to achieve within the Group.
However, the Group will still strive to enhance gender diversity (in
terms of gender ratio) across all levels of the workforce so far as
reasonably practicable. The Company will apply the same measures as
taken in achieving gender diversity in Board succession as mentioned
in the section headed “Board Diversity Policy” in this report to
achieve gender diversity at workforce level.
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The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommend candidate(s) to the Board for adoption. The Company
aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will also review the Board Diversity
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness annually.
After assessing the suitability of the Directors’ skills and experience
relevant to the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee
considered that the existing Board was suitably qualified with
professional backgrounds and/or equipped with extensive expertise
for the purposes of providing direction to and oversight of the
Group's strategic and business in achieving its objectives.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company planned in advance four scheduled Board meetings
a year at approximately quarterly intervals in order to ensure that
all Directors could plan in advance their availability to attend the
scheduled Board meetings. Additional meetings will be held as and
when required. During the regular meetings of the Board, the Board
reviewed the operation and financial performance, and reviewed
and approved the annual and interim results of the Group.

During the Year, the Board has held 15 meetings. All Directors
were given the opportunity to include any matter on the agenda of
regular board meetings, and had sufficient time to review in advance
documents and data related to matters to be discussed at board
meetings.

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member are entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials and have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and
have the liberty to seek external professional advice upon reasonable
request.
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MEETING ATTENDANCE RECORDS

During the Year, 3 Audit and Risk Management Committee
meetings, 1 Nomination Committee meeting, 3 Remuneration
Committee meetings, 1 ESG Committee meeting, 15 board meetings
and one annual general meeting had been held. The Company’s
Director attendance is set out below:

SR HFERE

AEE  DRII3RERLEARERZE S
FOIRRBEZEEERE 3RFMEZES
& VRESGREEEH  15SREFEEHMIR

BFAFAE - NRREFHFEFBROT

Audit and

Risk Annual
Management Nomination ~ Remuneration ESG Board General
Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
BUR R’4 il ESG BR
gz AREEZSS Z88 Z88 Z88 4 BEAE
Mr. Meng AR - 71 - - 15/15 71
Mr. Zhang REE - - - - 15/15 171
Ms. Xu Rt - - - 171 15/15 171
Mr. YX Meng AFAMEE - - 33 - 15/15 171
Ms. Gan Fat - - - - 15/15 171
Mr. Yin Bk - - - - 15/15 11
Mr. Guo i 33 1n 33 1 15/15 171
Mr. Wong TrE 33 - - 1 15/15 7N
Mr. Cheng % 33 171 33 - 15/15 171

Shareholders meeting e PN

The Board is responsible for maintaining a continuous contact
with Shareholders, in particular communicating with Shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages Shareholders to participate. One general meeting was
held during the Year.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fee for 2023 annual audit service and non-
audit services (including interim review and tax consulting) fees paid/
payable to the Company’s auditor, KPMG, was RMB2.3 million and
RMB1.0 million, respectively.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy pursuant to which
the Shareholders will be entitled to receive any dividend the
Company declares. Pursuant to the dividend policy, dividend shall
be approximately 40% of the profit of the Group for the particular
financial year and the payment and amount of any dividend will
be at the discretion of the Board and will depend on the Group's
general business condition and strategies, cash flows, financial
results, capital requirements and taxation conditions, interests of
respective Shareholders, statutory restrictions, and other factors that
the Board deems relevant.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.04 (2022: HK$0.04) per ordinary Share for the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the results and cash flows of the Group for the
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The statement of the independent auditor of the
Company about their responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report from
pages 183 to 191 of this report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
the design and implementation of internal controls and risk
management which covers financial reporting, operations,
compliance and risk management (including ESG risk) of the
Company, as well as continuous monitoring and annual review of
the effectiveness of such internal controls and risk management. The
Board has delegated such responsibility to the management of the
Company. The management, under the supervision of the Board,
has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks faced by the Group.

During the Year, the Audit and the Risk Management Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management matters that are significant to the Group on an on-
going basis. The Audit and Risk Management Committee also
consider the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, as
well as their training programmes and budgets.
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The Company has established a independent internal audit
department. The Group has also engaged an independent
professional firm to conduct a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems. The
independent professional firm engaged has performed a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems covering the Year. The review covered all key controls and
based on inquiry, observation and analytical review procedures
supplemented by testing of transactions, reports and reconciliation.
The internal audit department has reviewed the review result
submitted by the independent professional firm and recommended
the same be submitted to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee for their consideration. The overall opinion on the
internal control and risk management systems of the Group are
satisfactory.

For the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board has
considered and is satisfied that the internal control system in place,
which covers all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management (including ESG risks)
functions, is reasonably effective and adequate.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

Certain measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include the following:

e The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

e All employees are required to strictly adhere to the employment
terms regarding the management of confidential information.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to
the rules and regulations regarding the management of inside
information, including all employees who, because of his/her office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of inside information
in relation to the Company, and are required to comply with the
Model Code.
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The Group complies with the requirements of the SFO and the
Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as
soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any
of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is
fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures that the information
is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose
the information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure
that information contained in the announcements or circulars of
the Company is not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false
or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company has established an internal audit department. The
internal audit department is highly independent and is responsible
for evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems, and supervising the management
to continuously improve the areas of risk management (including
ESG risks) and internal control. The internal audit department
examines key issues related to accounting practices and all major
internal control issues, and provides investigation results and
recommendations for improvement directly to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at
the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an EGM.
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Shareholders to convene an EGM

The Eligible Shareholder(s) shall at all times have the right, by written
Requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

Eligible Shareholder(s) must deposit the Requisition signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong, which for the time being is at Room
4006, 40 Floor, Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, and state in the Requisition
that the Board is required to convene an EGM to deal with any
matters specified in the Requisition. The relevant general meeting
shall be held within two months after the submission of the relevant
request.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM, the agenda proposed
to be included and the details of the business(es) proposed to be
transacted at the EGM. The Requisition must be signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and the
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the
Company'’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited. If the Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM within
two months and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) at an EGM after the deposit of the
Requisition.

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders shall mail a written inquiry to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong (Address: Room 4006, 40 Floor,
Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Hong Kong), or email to
ir@dalipal.com, stating the Company Secretary as the recipient.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director
of the Company for election as a Director, the Shareholder must
deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) to the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17 Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact information of
the Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding, the full name of the
person proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules,
and signed by the Shareholder concerned (other than the person
proposed to be elected). The Notice must also be accompanied by
a letter of consent signed by the person proposed to be elected on
his/her willingness to be elected as a Director.

The period for lodgement of the Notice and the letter of consent will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
by the Company of the general meeting convened for election of
Directors and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which the Notice to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Nomination
Committee of the Company and the Board to consider to include
the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting proposing such
person to be elected as a Director.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

A Shareholder should lodge a written Proposal with his/her/its
detailed contact information at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong, with a copy of the Proposal served to the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong at their respective address
and contact details set out on page 6 of this annual report.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder concerned at
the general meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as
follows:

(1) Notice of not less than twenty-one clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general meeting of the
Company; and

(2) Notice of not less than fourteen clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company.
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions set out
in the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company will be voted by poll.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No amendment has been made to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company during the Year.

The current Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings
and other general meetings, as effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
allowing investors to understand the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Board endeavour to make themselves available
at the annual general meeting to meet Shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Shareholders’ communication policy of the Company, which
contains the channels for Shareholders to communicate their
views on matters related to the Company, and steps taken by the
Company to solicit and understand the views of the Shareholders
and stakeholders is set out as follows:

— The Board shall maintain on-going dialogue with Shareholders
and the investment community;
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—  Communication methods between the Company, Shareholders
and investment community include the followings:

(). raising of enquiries by Shareholders to the Company
through the contact provided by the Company;

(ii). provision of bilingual corporate communications by the
Company;

(iii). publication of information and materials and business
updates of the Company on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company;

(iv). holding of Shareholders’ meetings; and

(v). any other activities conducted to facilitate communication
the relevant stakeholders.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ communication policy of the Company for the
Year. On the basis that (i) a general meeting was held to reach out
to individual Shareholders and stakeholders to encourage their
participation in the matters of the Company and to raise enquiries
and (ii) all bilingual announcements, circulars, annual and interim
reports, and voluntary announcements on business updates of the
Group are made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company to provide Shareholders and stakeholders with
easy and timely access to the latest development of the Group, the
Board considered that its Shareholders’ communication policy was
effectively implemented during the Year.

The AGM of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 22 May
2024, with notice of the AGM sent to the Shareholders not less than
21 clear days before the date of AGM.

The Company maintains a website at www.dalipal.com where
up-to-date information and updates on the Company's business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are made available for
public access.
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About this Report

Dalipal Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “we”, “us” or “our"”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) is
pleased to present their fifth Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report (the “"Report”) to provide an overview of the material
issues affecting the Group’s operations and management, including
ESG issues.

Reporting Period and Scope

This Report presents the Group’s ESG measures and performance
for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the
“Reporting Period”).

The reporting scope of the Report is consistent with the 2022
ESG report, and in view of the revenue contribution to the Group,
it covers all subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong and Hebei
Province, the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC"), which are
principally engaged in the development, manufacture and sale of
high-end oil and gas pipes, new energy pipes and special seamless
steel pipes, etc.

The Group will continue to assess the impact of its business on key
ESG aspects and stated in this Report.

Reporting Guidelines

To provide stakeholders with a clearer understanding of the
progress and direction of the Group’s operations and sustainable
development, the Report is prepared in accordance with the
mandatory disclosure requirements of the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG Guide”) and its
“comply or explain” provisions as set out in Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board (the
“Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). In addition to meeting the compliance
requirements, the Group has also identified several material key
performance indicators to provide supplemental disclosures, which
are detailed in the text of the Report and summarized in the
Appendix 1 Key Performance index. For ease of reading, readers may
refer to Appendix 2: Index to Appendix C2 “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” to the Listing Requirements of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of this Report for an in-
depth reading.

BARAERE

FENEERBRE AR (A TEREIAQR S K
D REMBAR (B AE®E]DRAIRESEH
DIRE - e REA(TESG)IRE([EARE]) -
Bt A EBEENEATENERBN
BIEESGEH °

HEHEREE

AREREZIHAREFEN2023F1 18 E20235F12
A318 IFEAM ([ R 23R ) RESGHE e R K18 -

NFEPHWERSER _O - _FEHE—
ERUAREERAZEE - BEAEEREER
REARLMB((HE])TENEHBA
A EROEBTZ AN ERE  RERIEEAR
MAARAE MeeRAEREGREENESS

A 0
yﬁﬁgﬁuu °

AEBBFEFGHEEBEE T RESGERME
£ WEHALRERS -

a4 ElJ

A=A

RTERERMERBW TRAREEEE LA #F
BRROERNTR  ARERBEREMAER S
PRAR AR ([BRPT ) EHER EHARRNT £
MADMERC2PrE 2GR - e REARE
SDNERE - He RERHEIRS )R WER
EREITETHERE XN EEEERE
REBATNERE - RTHEARERZIN K
SERGHELE TEZNRRENIESR - R
HERINOFITEIER - 55 TR S IS 57 AR Bl
I ERBEEEEHT - BT HENE - &
ER2EME2PNEERERIFIMER AR L
MAREMEC2CRE - HEREBBRERIDR
5l WRABEARE -



Annual Report 2023 45 8 5

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERRS

FERELEET - AEBEREIA T WEERRR -

In preparing the Report, the Group follows the following four
reporting principles:

Principle Definition Measures
=AY & #E it
Materiality The issues covered in the Report should reflect  The Group utilizes various communication
significant economic, environmental and channels to understand stakeholders’
social impacts of the Group, or be in a scope expectations regarding the company’s
that affects the stakeholders’ evaluation and sustainability efforts, identifying key issues
decision-making. crucial to the Group. During the Reporting
Period, the Group conducted Stakeholder
Questionnaire to reassess the importance of
key issues.
BEM BEMRENZERRMEEHKLE R FAEEZRZEBERENTHSNHELHAR
RHENEARTE S ERMENEIR ARRAFREERAENTER - NtERIEH
RIS AEBEREZNEREE - EAFE - K
SEETTHENERSHEE - EHMHIIER
HEAREEZEN -
Quantitative The Report should disclose KPIs in a measurable  The data in this Report is disclosed and
manner. calculated in accordance with the requirements
of the ESG Guide, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPlIs, and
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social
KPIs to disclose the Group'’s environmental and
social KPIs in a quantifiable manner wherever
possible.
21t WERUATAGTERN T AR BERRENIER - ARENBIRHERLRE LS RERRE
15| R [ RIRRE R IRERES]
KM= 1t S RARERUERERIES INE
RRBENAE - BARAEBTABRELRSE
EHRR ML S RARETIER
Balance The Report should reflect the sustainability The Group impartially presents environmental,
performance of the Group as a whole in an  social and governance issues that significantly
impartial manner. impact the Group’s business, including the
achievements, impacts, challenges, etc., and
formulates a response plan.
T HRERTRME MR AEEREBNAIRFHE ASENMETMEHERVAEEEBTEEAX

Consistency

—E

BRI -

The Group should confirm that the methodologies
for preparing the ESG reports are consistent with
those used in previous years, and state any revised
reporting methodology or indicate other relevant
factors that may affect meaningful comparisons.

AEEEBERHEEIRE LB NEARED
TEEBEFREMAE R IRAEERT
BRI AR BRERIER - XA
EERRYLMEMBRREE -

FENRR  HEREREE ETEER
RREE - mRBBE - X HIE RHE
2 AERIEEBA QA HIER

The scope of the Report is consistent with the
Report presented in the previous year, and the
use of consistent statistical methods allows for
meaningful future comparisons of ESG data.
If the methodology used and the scope of the
report are changed, we will explain it in the
notes for stakeholders' reference.
WEBEREF B UEA—BNGT
E - RRIR  HENERBBHKIEAR
BHLE - WPAAMN A - EREE AR
BRIERAE - RASEM P R AE
NEZE -
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Access to the Report

This Report has been prepared in both English and Chinese and
uploaded to the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website
(http://www.dalipal.com). If there is any conflict or inconsistency
between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version shall
prevail.

Feedback

The Group attaches great importance to the valuable feedback of
stakeholders. If you have any questions or comments about this
Report or our environmental and social policies and performance,
please feel free to share your comments and suggestions with us at
ir@dalipal.com.

About the Group

Dalipal Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries primarily engage in the
R&D as well as the manufacturing of high-end oil and gas pipes,
new energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes, etc. Established
in 1998 and headquartered in Cangzhou, Hebei, PRC, the Group's
major operating entity, Dalipal Pipe Co., Ltd. is a professional and
full-industry chain intellectual manufacturer of OCTG integrating
R&D, manufacturing and services.

The Group is committed to becoming a professional supplier of
OCTG (including natural gas, shale gas and coalbed methane)
and new energy pipes with core competitiveness and sustainable
development capabilities, providing first-class one-stop supply chain
integration services for the petroleum energy industry. To create a
greater value for global customers, the Company was listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 8 November 2019.

In response to the country’s “dual carbon” goals, the Group actively
formulated the “Carbon Reduction Action Implementation Plan”
in 2022 to promote low-carbon transformation with a scientific
and reasonable action plan, and strive to achieve carbon peak by
2030 and carbon neutrality by 2050. To this end, in 2022, the
Company formulated a strategic development plan for the next five
years from 2023 to 2027 with the distinctive themes of “strong,
green, intelligent and new”, focusing on six strategic priorities
including “product planning, green development, technological
innovation, management innovation, intelligent manufacturing
and international operation”. We have set up the ESG committee
and ESG Working Group of the board of directors of the Company
(the "Board”) focused on the Group's key businesses and critical
areas, implemented a series of initiatives, endeavoured to promote
innovation and development, and invested resources in clean
production, green manufacturing and intellectual services to
continuously improve the sustainability of our business, and uphold
the corporate vision of creating a first-class enterprise and a century-
old brand.
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Corporate culture

The meaning of Dalipal

"3 J7E" is the Chinese transliteration of “Dalipal”, which means
“intimate partner”. The word “Dalipal” is derived from the
combination of the English words “Darling” (intimate) and “Pal”
(partner).

The three characters of “Dalipal” embody the corporate mission
of the Company, they are the statement of the Company’s value
proposition, the positioning of the Company’s brand, and a concise
summary of the deep-rooted factors contributing to the relatively
healthy and rapid development of the Company over the past
twenty years. It represents the valued commitments we make to
our customers, employees, shareholders, and society, which clearly
illustrates Dalipal’s “connotation” and “values."”

Serve the society

RiIE - HERERHRE

¥t

BEHZNEE

[ZEHE |2 Dalipal [ WEE  BEAISENE
£# 1 - [Dalipal )R B % X B 5[ Darling ] (B & H))
FlPall(BH)RMMES -
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Achieve customer satisfaction, unleash employees’ talents, express employees’ thoughts,

aspirations, and capabilities, and prosper the Company.

EOELE EHEFPWE

Serve customers diligently

CBREBTHARE  REBTREMA

Strive wholeheartedly to create value for customers, meaning that our products are

DB~ BES)  REIAEEGE -

competitive, our employees are innovative, and the Company is strong.

1 BRP

Benefit employees

ENREFEEEE -BE

REMANEREHRT -

Strive to create opportunities for employees, meaning that the development of the

BTHEIEEN  CERES -

Company will benefit employees, shareholders, and society as a whole.

BHRETAIE

After 25 years of development and accumulation, Dalipal has
formed a unique corporate culture system consisting of spiritual
culture, institutional/governance culture, and image culture. This
system covers corporate strategy and vision, corporate mission,
enterprise spirit, management philosophy, code of conduct and
norms. We have always adhered to culture-led guidance, clearly
guiding the construction of corporate culture to promote sustained
development of the enterprise. To ensure consistency of corporate
culture within the Group, we focus on constructing and improving
the corporate culture system. Through various methods such as top-
down communication and promotion, leadership demonstration,
training, and seminars, we promote practical implementation to
unleash the powerful driving force of corporate culture.
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2023 Awards & Honors

In 2023, the Group received the following awards and accolades:

2023 ERIBBREE
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e " . N (- N [ U]
¢~ China’s industrial carbon emissions =3¢, Ud . . . =, Vad =
S” have peaked “Frontrunner” “{‘ s; Hebei Province InFegnty Enterprise E" S”— Hebei Province Health Enterprise ‘\{‘
Y, RE TG &~ Y, AR AN AR &
= »g (2 ) = A gk
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= A, eAnnual Growth Value Award Gelonghui 4, e Hebei Provincial Worker Pioneer Y,
Y2 Enterprise Credit Rating Certificate AAA X 37 “Golden Prize” X N The company’s technical X
V% S mEmEe NA V% Outstanding Company Evaluation NA V% quality department NA
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China’s Top Runner for Industrial Carbon Peaking

Sustainability Governance

The Board is fully responsible for and oversees the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting. In view of the increasing importance of ESG
to corporate sustainable development, the Group actively undertakes
corporate social responsibility and integrates sustainability policies
into its business development blueprint to respond to the ever-
changing needs of society in the ever-changing development. In
order to enhance our ESG performance, the Group has appointed
Riskory Consultancy Limited as a professional consultant to provide us
with ESG and sustainability advisory services to assist in promoting
sustainable development. In 2022, the Group selected directors from
the Board and established an ESG Committee (the “Committee”)
and an ESG Working Group, whose responsibilities include but are
not limited to:
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The Board
)

e Lead in identifying, evaluating, and defining the ESG-related risks and opportunities of the Group;

e Review and approve ESG management policies, strategies, priorities, and goals; and

e Convene regular meetings to oversee and discuss ESG-related matters, ensuring the establishment
of appropriate and effective ESG risk management, internal controls, and improvement systems, to
formulate effective risk response plans and practice the concept of sustainable development.

o WEBR - FHEREEAEBNESGHRERMRINEE ;

o T - HUEESGEIBIE - B - MANMER Rk

s NEMIAHEREE  SWESGHEMEE - WRARAMEE RTZAMWESGRRERE - AEPEE
RBEHE - UHIET 2 AR EREL S - BERAFERRESD -

ESG Committee

ESGEE®

e Schedule regular meetings to maintain the effectiveness of ESG management practices within the
Group;

e Report to the Board after meetings to elevate and ensure high standards of ESG management within
the Group;

® Review the Group’s objectives, strategies, risks, opportunities, measures, policies, management
guidelines, and routines related to ESG, and provide recommendations to the Board;

e Supervise the Group’s progress towards ESG-related objectives and monitor the Group’s performance;

® Review, evaluate, and verify the accuracy and significance of disclosures and disclosure processes
within corporate governance reports and ESG reports based on reporting principles;

e Ensure the Group has appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control systems,
supervise and review ESG trends and related response plans; and

e Review and monitor the training and ongoing professional development of the group’s directors and
senior management (including training and ongoing professional development related to ESG and
corporate governance).

s THLHEE  UWRFHASENESGERBHRMNBAIL :
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o BLEASELEBESGIER B RN BRBERRERAEBNKRR

o BIFMERBNER - sHEMZELEE GRS RESGHRENNEE « HERBREMERENEEN ;
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SEHEEER) -

ESG Working Group
ESGI{E/ME

e Develop annual ESG action plans and monitor the implementation of ESG-related strategies across
departments;

* Manage ESG-related risks and opportunities within the company; and

® Collect, organize, and compile Company ESG reports.

o HITFFEEESGTITENEEI N BEERESGHERA B IS E R ZRFI I TIF N ¢
o EIBNAIESGHERARSE MAkiE ¢ K&
o Wt « BIBRIRELNFIESGRE ©
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The Group also continues to enhance the Company’s compliance
management system. During the Reporting Period, to prevent and
control compliance risks and improve the level of legal compliance
management, we established a dedicated team to carry out a
compliance management enhancement project. The project focuses
on establishing a compliance checklist and enhancing compliance
awareness. Drawing on the best practice and relevant standards of
top domestic and foreign companies in compliance management,
we designed a compliance obligation identification transformation
and risk list template that suits the company’s characteristics,
collecting over 1,100 legal regulations and other applicable
requirements across various professional modules. We identified and
categorized comprehensive risks of over 210 items in 19 business
modules, forming approximately 80 risk cases.

Additionally, we developed the “General Guidelines for Prohibited
and Mandatory Legal Norms (i F A2 %8 1F 1% - 58 5l 14 R #545
310", which clarify the prohibitive and mandatory provisions in 587
legal norms related to major areas of business management. We
also conducted special compliance audits on key businesses and
solidified risk response measures. In terms of enhancing compliance
awareness, we utilized methods such as “compliance debate
competitions,” risk co-creation exchanges, and monthly articles to
ensure that every employee understands that “managing business
must include managing compliance” and deeply comprehends
the concept that “everyone is responsible for compliance, and
compliance creates value.”

AEBNFHERE2APEGHEERR  BEH
A RETEERRAR - RIHROEAREIERKF -
HPIRL T BEFY NMERRARERIEIIAR - &
HEUBEYARBEMLRARBR/RL &
EERI-REXREREERRFEERNAM
T8 Rt THEARKENERELRHAIEL
KEREEER  WESERRWERERN
H b A E5K1,1008878 - 35 w472 198 2 7%
BRR 2 mEE 2108878 - I AR 2= 514980
15 o

BESNEAPIBIE TCGRRDERZE LM - SRHI IR
$E3l) > BARE T 587 IREE TR E BRI R
EEBRBROREILNE - RFIERTE - FSEE
REGETHERAREN - HREREHIERET
Bt - EERBEEF T HEE A RFFRE]
R HEIZR BRIREXELN - EE8UE
THAIMEXBLAEAR] WRAERE AR
AANEBE - AHAIEBEINES -

Compliance debate competitions

(BMFRE)

Specialized training on risk case studies
(RBZEAIFEEI)
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The Group has established the “Environmental and Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy” ({3838 kb Z4t & B H1E)) to provide
a foundational guarantee for the continuous and in-depth
development of ESG work within the company. Simultaneously,
the ESG working Group continues to review mainstream ESG
disclosure requirements and rating criteria such as those from the
Stock Exchange, MSCI-ESG, and S&P Dow Jones Indices, improve
the ESG indicator database, promote the deep integration of ESG
into company strategies and operations, and incorporate key
performance indicators for directors and management, ensuring
the effective operation of the Company’s ESG governance system.
Directors and management also enhance their ESG management
levels and accountability through continuous professional learning.
In 2023, the Group has obtained a Grade A from Wind ESG Rating,
with its overall ESG score ranked among the top in the industry,
demonstrating the commitment of the Group towards sustainable
development and social responsibility. This further illustrates the
Group's achievement in ESG governance and sustainable operation.

Wind ESC

RE HEREBHRS

AEBHETORBERCELSETHE) - A
RAHERAFRESG T EIRHEMRE - R
ESGL{E/MERFEMIBARZAT + MSCI-ESG ~ &2
BEEAEHEERESGEBERNTINIEIZ - =<
ZESGIEIZE » HEBESGIHE @i A A A B R K 38
2o WAEENEEENRRERESEZ -
BRAFIESGEREBRARETT  EEREEE
INRRFBENEESE - 2HEIRAESGEEKFE
MEEBL S © 2023F + AEEESFWInd ESGRT
WAR - ESGEREBHBEEITENY - EEIFT
NRBFRTAIFBERRES  BiRiiEdes
EZET —ERA  E—PHBET AREESGE
SN A B RE N T E RTINS IR AR © 2023
£ NEFEEBWINd ESGTFRAR @ ESGERA B
DEHITERY  ERE T ARBRTRITAIHEE
BRES  BRREdeETRE T —FERA
HE—HENE T ARIEESGE A R AT ERK L8 h
5 EFTEVS HIARR o

Case study: ESG-specific training
=l : ESGEE I

In 2023, the Company invited ESG experts from Riskory Consultancy Limited to conduct specialized training on
ESG for directors, supervisors, senior management, and some members of the ESG working group. The training
focused on the new regulations for ESG climate information disclosure by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, future
work priorities for the Company, and corresponding action plans.

20234 - A AEIEEERiskory Consultancy Limited B BRI AREE - BEF - 28 RESGIIE/NERHKE -
BEBB R FTESGRIRE SWBEFHATE « ARRKH TIEER REH B SRERESGHEE -

BEnwema B R A

T, e R ALk

(ESG-specific training)

(RE - w2 RERFEEE)

91
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Case Study: ESG Performance Improvement Matchmaking Meeting
=B | ESGREMIEFAHES

In 2023, under the leadership of the ESG Committee, the ESG Working Group conducted in-depth research
on the new disclosure regulations of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on climate information and the European
CBMA regulations (also known as “carbon tariffs”). It systematically reviewed the national “dual-carbon”
requirements, domestic and international customer ESG-related requirements, and international mainstream ESG
rating standards. Based on this foundation, it carried out a targeted benchmarking analysis. According to the
benchmarking analysis results, focusing on addressing global climate change and carbon emission management,
green energy development, supply chain ESG management, innovation, occupational health and safety, human
resources management, information, and cybersecurity and other key business modules, multiple rounds of
discussions and exchanges were conducted with the heads of various business units and ESG liaison officers.
The discussions aimed to analyze existing problems and deficiencies, clarify the direction of ESG performance
enhancement in 2024, and set enhancement goals.

2023%F  FESGZ B EMELG T - ESGIE/MAA HIH 52 P fx & RRUI BE 3 #3 FNER BR CBMAAR BRI (S T [ R RE AR 1)
EITRABITE - ZFERIE T BRI &K ZK - BRSNEPESGHERERIA K BIR ERAESGRIARIEE - Ut E
fETTEREEON - RIFHESNER - BEEE 2 IRRIRE(C MBI ER - #eL/RFAE - HERESG
BIE AR BEREENZE - ANERER  FEMEELRETMBEGRR - DRRSEXBELATA
ESGHt#E BT T ZWAMMR - BT EAEMNREMTE - BN T 2024 FESGRERERT 7 AT B 1R ©




In operational process of the Group, we focus on achieving the
following four United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(UNSDGs) closely related to our group’s business, committing to
contributing to the ESG through our operational performance.

United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals
BEETHERREE
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EASENEEREFR  HMFITRERATHE
BHEBEERS SAABNBARIBERREZ
([UNSDGs]) » B BE & E FRRIREESG
FEELER

Involvement and response of Dalipal

EHENSEREE

3 — Good health and
well-being

RIFRERRBH
GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

s

3— @R ERARAL

Properly handle the harmful waste generated during
production activities by appointing professional and qualified
waste management companies to collect, store, process, and
dispose of waste, thereby reducing the risk of discomfort for
employees due to hazardous substances.

Provide employees with a range of caring activities and welfare
benefits.

HERBAETHTRENEZTERY  TEEXRSEBRER
MBI ARIMWE - WE - FF  RENEEEY - WRAPET
BAEER T E R

RETIREEENEEEEEER -

9 — Industry, Innovation
and Infrastructure

E¥ - AIFNERRH
INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

9—T X1t - Rl R EHE

an
X

Actively optimize production processes, conduct independent
research and development, and apply for patents and software
copyrights, such as through an innovation incubation platform.
Build a smart factory composed of intelligent equipment such as
robots, CNC machine tools, logistics warehousing equipment,
testing equipment, and automated production lines.

Actively optimizing production technology, such as adding a
volatile organic compound collection device, reduces pollution
and achieves clean production.

BRECEETE  BEMBETLRBEN - SHEE(ERE -
B A

ITET A - BUREIK - MRERER  mARE B9
L EREE ARSI

TEIR B EER - IFTSEH LB RYORERE - Bds
P BERURFEE o
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United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals
BEETHERREEE

Involvement and response of Dalipal

EHENSEREE

12 — Responsible

AEEHEAEE i
1 Sl consumption and

CONSUMPTION .
AND PRODUCTION production

c:<:) 12—-BEHBREE

Several new products have been developed to meet consumer
needs, such as rare earth corrosion-resistant oil casing, which
significantly enhances the lifespan of oil and gas wells while
reducing resource consumption.
MEZEMERMTHEER L IR LMBRHEE - TR
BhIEBETR TT50% A | - AIKIEERIDAR M FGm - BLE
IRBFE

13 — Climate action

1 3 RARITH
CLIMATE ACTION

3 2

13— RIETH

Formulate an action plan for carbon peaking and carbon
emission reduction;

The ESG Committee invites ESG experts to provide training to
the Group’s senior management, and conducts several internal
trainings for management and employees to understand
climate information and raise awareness through education;
Conduct a pilot program to offset carbon emissions from
operations with carbon credits.

HITERGEE  BORBE TGS

ESGZEGHALSCER RERESAERERMAEI - HAm|
MERE  BEIH#ETZE) - THRRIREEFTHMNEN
MIBHE LR RN

HEITHBEE - DIREREEE S BIZF BN -
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Date: 7 FEBRUARY 2024
REFERENCE: VC31953/2024

<\

Y} United Nations

C Y k Cc

) ramework Convention on
NSZL  Climate Change

VOLUNTARY Presented to

Dalipal Holdings Limited
CANCELLATION o
CERTIFICATE Hebei ChengAn Biomass Cogeneration Project

Reason for cancellation
Our company would like to contribute to climate action by offsetting our greenhouse
gas emissions.

Number of units 2 CERs
cancelled Equivalent t02 tonne(s) of CO:
Project title Hebei ChengAn Biomass Cogeneration Project (Project Code 3797)
R AR R Y E 2V E R AR B (BB &5 - 3797)
Introduction Carbon offset projects use local cotton straw to generate electricity and sell the

generated electricity to the Hebei provincial grid to replace electricity generation
from coal-fired power plants. The project will help reduce greenhouse gas
emissions, improve resource use, protect the environment, provide employment
opportunities and increase the income of local residents. In addition, the Certified
Emission Reductions (“CERs") of this project will also be used to achieve carbon
neutrality at the 2022 Asian Games in Hangzhou and the 2022 Asian Paralympic
Games in Hangzhou.

ADETR B N A B IRIERR R E - WHMELNENHEERTILEEHE - U
BRMEZERNEE - WEBAPNRAEREBHN  TEERER R
BRE  URREHMER SR EERNUA < 50 - IHE NZBREE
([ CERs ) I FAR 2022 F A7 M SR 3@ & M2022 F N SE NS R & FLAB IR

e
>

For more information on corporate governance, please refer to EEEZHE THROEEANFEE  #2H4AE
the Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s 2023 Annual  E2023F FHAMCDEEARE) » LI - &K
Report. In addition, the Group regularly updates its ESG column, £E & FHE HESGHME - & h BIEESGHRE
which includes ESG reporting and action, to enable stakeholders to ~ M{TENM A - FENHE T HAREENESGR
understand the Group’s ESG strategy. s o
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Board Diversity

™™™ e
COCNCaa ala #iEsti

EEEZ

Executive Directors accounted for 5 5 . 6 %

N M & Independent non-executive
33.3%

Directors accounted for
o M W W p——

accounted for

FRITESRMALL

- Non-executive Directors
11.1%

Risk and Opportunity Identification

Following discussions with the Board of Directors and management,
the risks and opportunities identified in FY2023 are as follows.

Risks identified

Increased disclosure standards

To combat “greenwashing,” countries are committed to
strengthening ESG disclosure standards to enhance the transparency
of ESG fund products and corporate ESG performance.

European Union “Carbon Border Adjustment Mechanism” (CBAM)
In October 2023, the EU CBAM officially entered the trial operation
stage, which means that Chinese enterprises will face more
stringent carbon cost investment and supervision, and put forward
urgent requirements for the Company’s green and low-carbon
transformation and upgrading.

_____________________________

" Male Diredctfors o

accounted for

EHESRGEL 778 /O

Female Didr?ctors o
accounted for

I E R 2 2 2 AJ

\\

e
(T

[ Pz B 8 5

REFSMEEBNTRR - 2023FE @5
MR EEEINT - RIRAERE A AR BB F A
BIRIRE LRI D o

=k 9:1):): 4

FEEIEEIZ

BITRDZER TR SEBOR IR REESGE
BIRGEIEE  EHESGESEREDEESGEM
ROBRAE o

BB B 25 R ) | (CBAM)

202310 A1n  BREECBAMIER F A S ETTIE
B mREERERRNCEBAEE AR
A ATIESE - $ A RGO EIRER R IR
HTEBAEK
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Opportunities have been identified

The development of the energy industry brings more “green”
opportunities

As the global “dual carbon” goals deepen, the oil and gas industry
is facing an upgrading challenge from “new” to “green.” The
integration of oil and gas exploration and development with green
energy will help drive companies towards the middle ground of
combining new technologies with traditional application scenarios.
This will continuously enhance technological innovation capabilities,
explore new development opportunities, develop emerging
businesses, and seize the brand-new opportunities brought about by
industry transformation.

Accelerate digital transformation and upgrading

The flourishing development of the digital economy is an inevitable
trend reshaping the global economic structure and changing the
global competitive landscape. As digitalization accelerates across
various sectors of society, new technologies, new business formats,
and new models continue to emerge. The transformation and
upgrading to “digital intelligence” will inject new development
vitality into companies.

China’s carbon trading and emission rights trading

The PRC has successively introduced relevant policies such as the
“Pollution Rights Market Trading KBE)S#E M 5L 5 ))" and the
“Interim Regulations on Carbon Emission Rights Trading Management
CHRBERIER BEBEITIEM))” to encourage companies to actively
adapt to the new regulations, seek more pollution reduction and
carbon reduction solutions, and drive the research and application of
green low-carbon technologies.

RE - HERERRS

E#FI#E
BEIRERRIRIE KT Z[ 76 8

BEE 2K &R | B RAVRAEE - MREXRLR
BRI [ A AR IM1T B0 T AR KB - Jd SR BN IR F 3
HEHERNBAEER  BEORESRRERN
RATAEGR RS REA T ES - TERA
RERBIFTEE ) - BREFNBRERME - FHMEE
% WIBHETRE R SR ZH2MH -

IERBECBERTIR

BFRBENEDER  RENKBEHEBRES 2
HEBFRENENBABE - BELEZEEK
BCBEINR - AT - $RRE - EATES
B (88 BATRSRARDIAFMNERE
5 o

B S HHE TR 5
BRFEE L aKHsETIHIER ) - CHREERE
RHERETRODBEERE - RERARBERE
JEFTHR - BREZRDSEMBRTER - WD
R AT AT AR -
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Anti-corruption

The Group maintains a zero-tolerance approach towards any
unethical behaviors such as bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering. We continue to promote integrity building efforts
through various anti-corruption activities, aiming to uphold business
ethics. The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations
including Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((REARKMERTEEFHFE)), the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China ({/#E A R4
B[ 3E885%) ), Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China (€
#=EARLMBEFE) ), the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance ( {F3
1EBBER1EM1) ). We have established and implemented the “Anti-
fraud Management Policy” ({REZEFHEEEF|E) ), adhering to the
corporate ethics of “honesty, integrity, transparency, and fairness,"”
opposing any form of commercial bribery, extortion, fraud, money
laundering, unfair competition, and other non-compliant behaviors,
and encouraging employees to abide by laws and regulations and
uphold ethical standards in their daily work and interactions. These
policies clearly outline the Group’s commitment to preventing
all forms of corrupt practices and strictly prohibit anyone from
making or receiving kickbacks externally. In addition to clear anti-
corruption and integrity clauses, we have also established relevant
monitoring procedures, requiring employees in sensitive positions
such as procurement, quality inspection, and sales to register in the
“Sensitive Positions and Practitioners Information Form ([ &gz
RftsE ABE 8K )", which is updated every six months to ensure
the accuracy and timeliness of information. They are also required to
sign the “Promise of Integrity and Self-Discipline for Employees” (&

TREZEBRAGHE)).

RES

AEEEEMBRE  #$%  RFRARESFTE
BAIRERTRREE  URHERERRERT
fF BEHTZHAREREE  BOBERXE
® ARBERET(PEARXNMBRNEE
BEE) (hEARKMBIREEE)  (hEA
R AEAMBFE) KB LE R R )ZF R R A2
AR BIEAL B R EBREEFE) B
KSR - KAEE WEEEE  REEM
AMBEERE  9R  BGF - RE  TLE
BRAREMBBTIERTR  ZBETEAR
TEMRZERBLLTA - BTHEER - ELER
RIAERE T AKED LB EISTTRN
AIE - BRREMARIMNES A EZERE - R T
AT R B BBRIESCON - HPVERIE T MR E
=R BRE  HERR  HESHRELN
BT BRI URE R IEEABERR]
FEEH—IR > ARERE AR S B 1%
R ERHEE(EIRZAFFRESE)



Annual Report 2023 45 9 9

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In terms of integrity management, we hold the same expectations
for suppliers and other business partners. Before agreeing to
cooperate, we sign a “Compliance Commitment Letter” ({&#3
HFEE)) with suppliers, requiring them to commit to eliminating
any behaviors that violate the principles of integrity and laws and
regulations such as fraud and bribery in any business dealings. For
details, please refer to the “Supplier ESG Management” chapter.
The Group takes disciplinary actions against employees and suppliers
who violate the above commitments and codes of conduct, without
any tolerance for such behaviors.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group publicly discloses and posts reporting channels in relevant
areas of the Company and establishes multiple effective reporting
channels. We encourage employees, suppliers, and customers to
report corruption, fraud, bribery, and other violations of laws and
regulations through the Company’s website, procurement system,
reporting hotline, email, scanning QR codes, and electronic media
communication channels, while ensuring confidentiality. Upon
receiving reports, the Internal Audit Department promptly identifies
and initiates investigations. The investigation results are then
submitted to the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the
Board. Cases confirmed to involve crimes are transferred to judicial
authorities for legal handling.

The Group protects complainants and whistleblowers during the
investigation process. Any illegal discrimination or retaliation is
prohibited. Disclosing the information of whistleblowers or taking
retaliatory actions against them is considered a serious violation of
company rules and regulations, resulting in dismissal and termination
of labor contracts. If suspected of illegal activities, the case will be
referred to judicial authorities or other competent departments for
legal action. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive
any legal information regarding corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud,
money laundering, or other illegal activities involving the Company
or its employees, and no significant illegal incidents impacting the
Group were discovered.

RE - HERERRS

HRRZEESE  RPISHERREMEBBH
REHRRME - £RTAFR - RAEHERR
FEREGESE) - BREAGEEEMEBER L
HBFEER - WEMERFERBERRIA IR
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Anti-corruption training

In terms of preventing corrupt practices, the Group has different
requirements for employees in different positions. Regular employees
are required to undergo or conduct anti-corruption training once a
year, while employees in sensitive positions are required to undergo
training quarterly. In this year, our anti-corruption training and
activities include but are not limited to:

REZES
E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ'$$@%$ﬁﬁﬁm51
EREMNES - —RETASFETHFHAE—
RESE - SUREL 8 TRIERZE f&ﬁm
e ERAFEE  RONRESHFINIESBIER
TR

The Audit and Supervision Department has launched the “Compliance in My Words" column, publishing articles
on integrity to organize departments to learn from them as a vvarmng and strengthen employees |ntegr|ty awareness;

TR ERAHEL [ARERF I RE - BHRRXE - A%

ERE N

In conjunction with International Anti-Corruption Day on 9 December, special themed articles are issued

to launch integrity initiatives among employees; and
ma12A9B B RIEE A | &

HHAEEHEX 8 THEFRRER X

Conducts comprehensive integrity education and training for all employees
B2 BRZHEE -

Stakeholder engagement

The Group adheres to the purpose of “creating value for customers,
creating opportunities for employees, creating strength for
enterprises and creating harmony for society”, and recognises that
stakeholder engagement is essential for the Group to understand
the risks and opportunities in development. In addition to the key
stakeholders identified, we will further understand the concerns
of other stakeholders. Proactively collect the views of stakeholders
through a wider range of communication channels, including
stakeholder questionnaires, social media, etc., to understand their
expectations and concerns about the Company’s sustainability in a
more comprehensive manner. This open and ongoing dialogue not
only helps to anticipate potential risks, but also helps to ensure that
sustainability strategies are developed that are more in line with the
interests of all parties.

*‘J’ﬁ% E4 /\

$%E%ﬁﬂ%§?%%%ﬁ~ﬁ%l%ﬁ%
@‘%ﬁ%@ﬁ?ﬂ‘%? BIEM G | H) R
W RBEIF 0 E S EENAEE T FER
$%ﬂﬂﬂ%ﬁ§%%x Br T BRI e RS
MEIN  RPGE—F TREAMHNFNENRE
B BBERZNBRARE  BRERENERS
HREEE - TBHRERNHENER  LEE2E
BT T A PISA R R A RHE R T E AV H
PREE - ERARABENYUETEGPNE
AVBERR - BRI ERGIE R AT FE R R
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Stakeholders and their expectations
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Our Responses and Measures

BEAN BHERAHE BMMEERERE
e Conduct on-site inspections ~ Government e Legal compliance e Operate and manage in
and checks B e Proper tax payment accordance with the law,
e Research and submit reports \ e Promote regional economic pay taxes, strengthen
for approval through \\ development and safety management,
work meetings and report il employment cooperate with government
preparation supervision, inspections, and
e The Stock Exchange evaluations (if applicable),
disclosure website for and actively fulfill social
publishing information such responsibilities.
as annual reports, interim
reports, and announcements
e Company website
e legal control
o ETHER - & o EWER o RELENMEER RAFL - AN
o WMRKEB/IESH - o R BEEER - IAaBTHE

TERERENIER RS
PAGE L
BRMAERXSMERLDT]
(B2 P 1) 3 BB AUt B
BE R - REIRE
SN

NSIE R

BIRIE

HEPEEEEERLIE

B rERFE@E) A
BEAELERE -
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Engagement Channel

BRI

Stakeholders and their expectations

FOEREHE

Our Responses and Measures
R E R R EE

Annual General Meetings
and other shareholder
meetings

Disclose information such
as annual reports, interim
reports and announcements
on the website of the Stock
Exchange

Meet with investors and
analysts

Company website

BRAFAE REMBIR
j(A

B X PTR BRI M E KL
WNEFER - PRmER QS
B EE RO EE
ANSIEENE

Shareholders
and Investors

BREKEE

Ig:"\

Return on investment
Disclosure and Transparency
Protect the interests of
shareholders and treat them
fairly

Business risk management

BAESR

ER T RS
RERIFRATLHE
PR

£TGAREE

Issuing notices of general
meetings and proposing
resolutions in accordance
with the Regulations, and
disclosing information

of the Group through

the publication of
announcements/circulars
and periodic reports.
Carried out a different

form of investor activities
with an aim to improve
investors' recognition.
Disclosed Company contact
details on the website and
in reports and ensured all
communication channels
were available and effective.
BEREEMRRAGES
MIR2RZR - @BBMHA
&/ RETTERREHER
KEEH -
BIEEREERNEMEIT
EREANKREEZD - B
A uh R S R R BN A A
BR - WHERTAAERE
BEAIA -
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BRI
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Stakeholders and their expectations

FOEREHE

RiIE - HERERHRE

Our Responses and Measures
R E EREE

Regular meetings
Training, seminars and
briefing sessions
Intranet and email
Annual performance

appraisal
EHEE
S MR
WNEL A4S « BE R ARIAT)
F BB

Website, brochure, disclose
information such as annual
reports, interim reports
and announcements on
the website of the Stock
Exchange

Email and customer service
hotline

Feedback and reporting
Regular meetings
International certifications

Mk SEM - B ATIEE
ZWILEMER - MFH -
RHIRE R AE
EEBEPIREER
Big/ R IRERRE
EHEE

BIR SR RE

Employee

BE
U

Client

B
O
[\
[~

Safeguard the rights and
interests of employees
Working environment
Career development
opportunities
Occupational health and
safety

self-actualization

RIS (R B OREA R M a1
TR
BEHERE
BRfERERT S
BRER

Safe and high-quality
products and services
Stable relationships
Transparency of information
Integrity

Business ethics

L 2B E R AR
T RIE
BrRERE

iz

[EESES

Provided a healthy and safe
working environment.
Developed a fair mechanism
for promotion.
Cared for employees by
helping those in need.
Organized employee
activities and provided
training.
REREELZ2HITIERE -
SR EVE T o
B EEBEBNLERES -
REFEEPNES - B
B EIRE MBI -

Strengthened quality
management to ensure
stable service standards,
entered into long-term
strategic cooperation
agreements and obtained
international certifications
from professional
institutions.

Used a sales management
platform to optimize sales
processes, strengthened
daily communication

with customers, and built
long-term relationships with
quality customers.

B EERR - LARERRES

FERT - R RPERES
W%ml%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁm!
Bif\ FI/L/\ l?lgg

@%%%Eﬁ?é@%%%
B eEEFHEES
B YREEEFPEVRY
aERE
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Engagement Channel

Stakeholders and their expectations

Our Responses and Measures

BEAN BHERAHE R E R R EE

e Business meetings, supplier  Suppliers/ e Long-term relationship e Select the best suppliers/
meetings, telephone calls Partners e Honest cooperation partners through open
and interviews g,/ e Fair and open invitation bidding

e Regular meetings SYERH e Sharing sources for e Suppliers/partners fulfill

Review and assessment
Tendering

Company website

Open procurement platform
Training

Xes  HERSH
B LEHA

oo HE Ay 2
FEFAE

3 Pk
i

€5 BARFH
AR - BRRBT A

s

Industry conferences
Field trips

Standard publicity
Training

Seminar

SES S
BT
(s
]

ik

minlm
L

Peer/Trade
associations

EEYEES
et

customized raw materials
Risk reduction

RHGERIE

HEAE
REBIRBD ZER AR
PR e

Experience sharing
cooperate
Fair competition

B

NFHF

contracts according to
agreements.

Utilize the e-procurement
platform to advance
procurement processes,
enhance daily
communication, and
establish long-term
cooperative relationships
with high-quality suppliers/
business partners.
Strengthen supplier/partner

training.
FERARIME RIREIE R
HLRERS, A EBEE -

(R AR - IR
BETAR -

5 IS RIS T & HEEERI
TP - D0 BRI -
BH AR, £ BT
EHAERIE -

PN BLETS AR

Al o

Adhered to fair competition,
cooperated with peers,
achieved a win-win
situation, shared experience,
participated in various
industry seminars, and
promoted the sustainable
development of the industry.
BRATES  HE¥ES
15 BERAR  HELR
D2INEEITERNEG - HD
ITENAFERR -
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RE HEREBHRS

Our Responses and Measures

BEAN HOEREHE BMMEERERE
e Disclosure of Information Market Compliance with laws and e Complied with regulatory
e Report Regulators regulations requirements in a strict
e Consultation MGEEH Disclosure of Information manner, disclosed and
m reported real information
in a timely and accurate
manner according to law.
o EEEE BTERER o BRETEERTE  RIEE
o HE BRHEE BN - EREIREE N 2 W
o i HEEEH -
e Volunteer work The general Community involvement e Give priority to local people
e Philanthropy and community  public Social responsibility seeking jobs from the
investment HEAR Employment promotion Company so as to promote
®  Press conference ﬁﬁ Transparency in consultation community building and
e Company website ﬁ development; maintained
smooth communication
channels between the Group
and the community.
e [ssued accurate information
in a timely manner
e ETIT{E HER2H o (BEEEAMAZTKIEH
s HEEMHEIRE HEEME g REHEERER R
e REHEGE fRAERL RHAEEEMRBREES
LN ST b i e

Kb~ ERERMIER o
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Materiality Assessment EEMSM

The Group believes that understanding and appropriately ZANEEMETHIE SO ERZRDENEE - &
responding to stakeholders’ expectations can help us achieve BBEIFRMIEIRZEOASERRE - 57T EA%0M
sustainable development. In order to more effectively identify and  # BN TS ANEE R EF D EIEKRE AT ERN
evaluate potential ESG issues that significantly impact the Group BEESGEEZE  REAFEEEFETET
and its stakeholders, we conducted stakeholder questionnaire this =5 - #Emm - X - KEEBZH T TEHENE
year, inviting employees, customers, suppliers, experts, investors, BEHE @ #F T TR EAGZEHEHENEER
and others to participate. We identified the importance of different  {t « W4T TBEEET - BREES SR - UT
significant issues to stakeholders, prioritized them, constructed a  AEZ4DHTHIZEE -

materiality matrix, and below are the steps of materiality assessment:

Review of regulatory
Review of material trends, international Invited stakeholders to
issues identified standards, and material fill out questionnaire Prioritized material issues

Submitted for review Confirmed issues
and verification by and constructed
management materiality matrix

last year f FnELES BEREEELEER 3 = o
BB Bl T - TRRRESE e
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List of Environmental, Social and Governance related issues BE S HERELHAZESE

Category
FIES

Materiality
EEMEE

Environment
RIE

Environmental management system
Emissions of exhaust gases
Waste management

Water management
Greenhouse gas emissions
Energy efficiency

Climate risks and opportunities
RIFERER

BESRHEL

REEYER

IKERERR

R REEBER

Hu/ﬁ{%ﬁﬁ )&T’

B b B S

Social

e

PNV A WN = N A W =

G GGG P Uo T © © T S G G NS Vo )
.Lom.\'@m_bww~.0' To®mNoOUsWN = O

Employee rights and benefits
Diversity and Inclusion
Development and training of employees

. Occupational health and safety
. Supplier Management
. Product quality

Customer Service

. Customer Privacy Protection

Intellectual Property Protection

. Welfare and Charity

Innovative Research and development
Information Security

B T s B4R A

ZltEBs
B TR

CBERERTE
- HEmEE
. EmEE

B RS

. BPRILRE

HIBEREIRE
BIFTRA 3

ERLE

Corporate Governance
TEER

NN NN NNNN
W N =0 WwWN =0

ESG Governance

. Business Ethics
. Protection of Investors’ Rights and Interests
. Risk Management

ESGEAR

. EEEE
B EERRE

- EREE
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Materiality matrix EEMERE

We have listed 23 issues that stakeholders are most concerned K fi%5I| 28 H23EF N E S AT + AR EIHE Y
about, as well as the most important issues for the Group. The AEEZFASERGEE SEUFEENT ¢
materiality matrix is as follows:

Materiality Matrix

EEMER
13 @
220
: ) 1 e 230

21— 3 15 e 14
" o 20 &
] 116
§ : 6/. 18 @
_g : 70
g H 199
S 5810 @
[ il "
e | e 2
o Hu 40 20
& R e
Y% g
g%ﬁ 9@
S ,
£ 17 ® : 12 @

Importance to the Group
HESENEENS
@ Environmental @ Social @ Governance

BRI e EER
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Environment
Corporate Culture

The Group deeply understands the importance of pursuing a clean
environment and our responsibility as corporate citizens. In recent
years, in response to the “dual carbon” challenge, the Company
has taken proactive measures, actively promoted innovation, delved
deeply into energy conservation and carbon reduction, controlled
emission, continuously improved the efficiency of resource and
energy utilization, meticulously planned and implemented initiatives,
and contributed to sustainable development.

Our corporate culture has a clear focus on environmental protection,
including ecological conservation, pollution control, clean
production, and green development. The main points are as follows:

1. Implementing ecological environmental protection measures
and pursuing a path of green and low-carbon development.

2. Adhering to full-process management, including source
substitution, process control, end-of-pipe treatment, and
implementing green, low-carbon, and high-quality development
through waste recycling and regeneration.

3. Developing clean energy and environmentally friendly products,
and promoting a circular economy.

Environmental Emergency Management

To prevent unexpected environmental incidents and reduce
environmental risks, we conducted frequent and high-quality
internal inspections during the Reporting Period. We also carried
out timely corrections and organized various forms of training,
emergency drills, and other activities to continuously improve our
emergency management mechanisms and enhance our ability to
respond to environmental incidents promptly.

RE HEREBHRS

REEH
DEIL

AREBRPERRFRENEEMANBIFUER
EERARMEE  AFR - RRELEHDE -
RAIEBHE - BERIER - AOHEERIFT T
RIZENREREAR « BEFEIRE S - TERS BIRAE
RAAME - FFAIRE - ABCERE - BHAIRE
R |

BAEEX P A ZRBEORIBREE —£RIR
BREE  HBERE - TBEARR

N
o
o

RIRIRRERRER - EROERSE

2. BRDREERE  UREEN - BEERE -
RimER - BEERVERBEBMARSEIRS

3. AEBRERMRERFNER  HRER

A o

BRERSEHE

RHBRBERFEMF MHERTRAR - HIARRK
SHEEAANREE  SEENREMREE
% RABFHREEY - BROEREEETA - T
e ERTERERY  REREEMHNESREE

ak
Be/J °
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Emissions

The Group strictly complies with relevant regulations such as the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes ({FPZE A F& 01 & [E] 82 B2
Y055 RIRIB[745%)), Cleaner Production Promotion Law ((F2E A R
HMBEEZ2 4 ER#EE)), Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (B /A F158311 (RS LE FIHEG))),
Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.354 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(BHBEBIEI4ECEYR E 151)). The Group adheres to the
green, low-carbon, high-quality development strategy, continuously
promotes energy conservation and ultra-low emissions in the
production and operation processes, and strictly implements energy-
saving, consumption reduction, pollution reduction, and efficiency
enhancement measures according to the “Pollutant Discharge
Permit € 75 ¥ BE BR &F 7] 2 ) issued by the local environmental
protection department. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has not discovered any serious violations of environmental laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Air emissions

The Group's air emissions mainly come from particulate matter,
sulfur oxides and nitrogen oxides generated during the production
process of industrial furnaces and equipment. In order to reduce the
air emissions in the course of our operations, we have adopted the
following technologies and measures to control them:

23087

ARER B B AR 8 << R 2 AR AR B [ B8 R 05
REPAE) (PEARANMBBREERE
) (ERISRE RG] (R R R RD)E
HEERE - BREGERARSESRREE - 58
HEEN A B EIREDAENRE AR K HE IR - IR E 1
RIREBPIR ORI BERFT A RE) - BARETT
ERE - B&FE - RS - IBAEN - RIEHE - A
SEYEBRSERVAEEEEATENRRE
REERBER °

ERFL

AEBEHNRBERFNEIERE TEEEMREELE
EREMEENENY - B RARLY -
RIEEELEBEPHBERIE - RIPIREUT A
TR M TE R
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The production line heating furnace uses natural gas as the combustion material and adopts low-nitrogen
combustion technology and systems, effectively reducing air emissions;

HEGINAVRERRARBRERE - SRAERAMERNT R RS - AR ERERBIR

The waste gas treatment facility adopts advanced adsorption and catalytic combustion technology;

% SR B B AR M ER R ST A B0 IR P A LR B BT

Increasing the thickness of the furnace and adding smoke treatment equipment in the heat treatment
furnace to reduce nitrogen oxide emissions;

FERGRIBIEIE NNEE ISR B REIERE - UBRERACHER ;

The process of slag tapping from the electric furnace has added smoke collection equipment to reduce
particulate emissions;

BEHBOTHFEMERKERE @ BRERAYEER

Smoke online monitoring equipment has been installed at the main emission points, and wheel washing
devices and dust lifting online monitoring equipment have been installed at the entrances and exits of the plant
and main raw material areas to monitor dust pollution to the atmosphere
EEXRPRABRERERERSE  EHREMENERZELOREARREENSEFRENRE - M
BRI EE A RATA

Replace the flow meters in the ring furnace, quenching furnace, and tempering furnace with more advanced
and precise ultrasonic flow meters;

KRR « AANE - BABEREERBERE  SIEERBENEBERIURER

Optimize industrial processes to reduce the frequency of internal transportation, upgrade to green energy
vehicles, and increase the proportion of clean transportation; and

BIETERIEURDBAERN AR - BHFHERTES @ BRRFREHLLD - &

Engage qualified partner companies to conduct inspections according to regulations and ensure emissions
meet compliance standards.

REAEENE =T IRRRESACETIRON - BRI HERER -
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s emissions of particulate
matter, sulfur oxides and nitrogen oxides were lower than the
emission levels permitted by the Bureau of Ecology and Environment
of Cangzhou City, and has met the ultra-low emission standards of
Hebei Province. The air gas emissions were as follows:

RI|BEHRE - AEEREAY - BEy - BAt
WEPERESEIORIMN T A RIRE BT A BN
B ARHEENI e BIESIRRE - BERE
MEMT :

Permitted emission levels
of the Bureau of Ecology
and Environment of

Type of air emissions Unit Cangzhou City 2023 2022°
EERPERER BBV BMNTERRERFIHRE 20234 2022
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) Tonnes 55.90 31.77 33.96
AAY L
Sulfur oxides (SOx) Tonnes 11.97 0.95 1.70
k=Rl T8
Particulate matter (PM) Tonnes 74.34 48.52 39.54
FERLY) i
Air Emissions (Tons)
JEE SR Bk Y (W)
v, I
o0y, I 5 0
I -
sox [ 1197
&Y I
0.95
0.00 10.00 20.00 30.00 40.00 50.00 60.00 70.00 80.00

M Cangzhou Municipal Ecology and
Environmental Bureau Permitted Emissions

BNTERRERFTHNE

! In order to improve the consistency and comparability of the data, the emission
data for 2022 (including nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides and particulate matter)
have been relisted according to the actual situation.

B Air Emissions in 2023
2023F Hi &

T ORETFTEESN B R AT - 20224 A9 U #UE
(BERAMLY  RADRENY) CIRERIERED -
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Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

The Report discloses Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas
emissions. Scope 1 emissions are attributed to direct greenhouse gas
emissions resulting from the combustion of fuels from owned fixed
and mobile sources within the Group, while Scope 2 emissions come
from indirect greenhouse gas emissions resulting from purchased
electricity consumed by the Group.

In this year, we attempted to quantify Scope 3 greenhouse gas
emissions by using online forms/office systems to track carbon
emissions from employee business trips and commuting, gradually
preparing for updated disclosure requirements. Currently, Scope
3 emissions that have been quantified include business travel,
employee commuting, and waste generated during operations (waste
paper and sewage).

During the Reporting Period, the total GHG emissions decreased
compared to last year, with the following GHG emissions:

RIR - S RERERE

BEREHH

AR EREHE RBE26VEEREBHEM - #
B2k B AN B P A B IR MR BRI R
I BERREREN  BE2RIREAKE
FOBRESNBE NELNREZRERBYIN -

EAFE  BMBBE LR PRRFERLS
AT BRI ZRMBENIREN - ZTE(CHES
FURERBEIN - RREERNENMHCER - B

AISEBEMTNRERRBHELE BTED
NBERELEMEY (BERKLFK) -
RBEMRE - RERBENREREFEMRT

& OREREEHRT

Type of GHG emissions Unit 2023 2022
BEREHERER B 2023%F 20224
Scope 1 - Direct emissions Tonnes of CO; equivalent 98,518.15 103,589.58
FEN—HEHR —SfiEE

Scope 2 — Energy Indirect emissions Tonnes of CO, equivalent 268,583.62 295,878.97
FE2 — LR BN “EfkigE

Total Tonnes of CO; equivalent 367,101.77 399,468.55
wme —SfiEE

Intensity Tonnes of CO, equivalent/revenue in 95.35 94.49

million RMB
BE W—ALiREE ABTARE RS

GHG Emission in the past 3 years
M=FREREHHE (W)

410,000
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396,936

400,000

390,000
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Waste Management

The problem of energy and resource scarcity is becoming
increasingly severe, forcing global action towards waste reduction
at the source. We deeply recognize that waste management is
crucial for the sustainable development of businesses and view it
as an indispensable part. In terms of the Group’s daily operations,
there are primarily two types of waste: (i) hazardous waste from
the production process (i.e., those that are hazardous or potentially
harmful to human health or the environment), mainly involving dust
removal ash, waste mineral oils, sludge, and waste oil packaging
drums; and (ii) non-hazardous waste generated during production
activities, such as electric furnace slag, refining slag, iron oxide sheet,
and waste refractory materials.

During the Reporting Period, the amount of waste generated
decreased. The amount of waste generated by the Group is as
follows:

BEYEE

RERFMERE R A &SR E - A2 IR
IRSEREEENTTE) - HFVRZIRHDI BER Y E IR L
CENTHEXREMEE  RER/TAHR
M—IR - RAKENHBEEEMNS TEAMRE
BEEY : (VRALEEENAZTEEM(AHA
BERIBREMEBERIEERS)  TEY
KEREEIX - BEREM ~ 5k - BEMBEME AR
(WREERSTAELNEZERY  HINEE
B RERE - BACHEI K EEMM

RREHRE - BEEMELERM MK - NEBEE
EZBEERDBEWT

Type of waste Unit 2023 2022
BEEEY R By 20234 20224
Hazardous waste Tonnes 8,063.69 9,011.19
BERBEY 7]

Intensity Tonnes/revenue in million RMB 2.09 2.13
BE W, BBt ARE K

Non-hazardous waste? Tonnes 71,620.82 76,778.94
EmEREREY? i

Intensity? Tonnes/revenue in million RMB 18.60 18.16
BE2 WE, BBt AREKE

2 In order to improve the consistency and comparability of the data, the data and 2 FRF IR — B R AT - 2022 F R EEREEYE

density of harmless waste in 2022 have been rearranged according to the actual
situation.

BEREECHRERBRES
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During the Reporting Period, the Group comprehensively identified
national and local laws, regulations, standards, and policy
requirements, as well as revised and improved systems related
to environmental inspections, testing, hazardous waste, and
general waste management, and conducted training for all staff
and ensured accountability. Operational inspections were carried
out regularly during operations, supplemented by assessments to
ensure the effective implementation of the relevant systems. The
Group endeavours to optimize production technology, wastewater
treatment, and waste management, continuously strengthening
control over waste reduction at the source. Annual management
plans were formulated, specifying the responsibilities of personnel,
setting targets, and enhancing supervision at all stages. Qualified
contractors were entrusted with the compliant disposal of various
types of factory waste, including both hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. Additionally, the Group is committed to reduce the total
hazardous and non-hazardous waste produced, and waste disposal
were reduced through the following measures:

e Continuously carry out various renovation projects to reduce
solid waste emissions, such as ultra-low emission transformation
projects for dust removal systems and installing smoke collection
hoods at furnace slag outlets;

e Improve the installation of gas collection hoods and dust
removal devices in the dust-producing process to achieve the
reuse of dust removal ash;

e Equip with pollution monitoring systems and advanced DCS
control systems, install dynamic control systems for online
monitoring equipment for pollutant emissions on four spraying
production lines, ensuring more precise monitoring and
measurement of pollutants;

e Use water-based paint in the spraying process to reduce air
pollution;

e Equip with a hazardous waste terminal weighing and
storage system, strictly record and manage according to the
requirements of hazardous waste management;

e Strengthen dust control within the factory, specify the frequency
of road watering, and install vehicle wheel washing machines at
entrances and exits;

e Adopt four sets of volatile organic compound (“VOC")
collection devices; and

e Improve processes and use high-quality materials to reduce slag
production when producing conventional oil casings.

RE - HERERRS

HEHR - AKRE2EBHER RS ITARR
B BRERBRENX BRI TERERE - I
A fElEEY R —RERYEIZERGIE - T
EERIIMETEE - ETHEEH AR R CETT
BE - EREREBFENBRINT - BEREH
REICEERM - 5/KEEMEZEYEIE - T
ISR R RBRHEE - BIEFEEEE
AREREAEANBE BEEBR  BRHE
B HEHAEBNBERETERYORRAE=
TEEENEETEREE - AREBIM
LPEEREBERRYNEEAEN BB TER
B RE MBI

o FHEMREZIANGETIR AR KE BREDHE
M ARRERRBESRETRE - BIEY
BORBEREWESRES

. EEEBROREERZERELE BH
BRI

o BEASAMEIRRS  RETENDCSE
W RL - HAUGFEREERSRMAERER
RELRKBEEZRS  REHSRYNE
ERIEE IELE

o MERTFRAKMER  BEZERSE

o KBEEKHEEABRLS  BRIRRER
REYEIE BAEI TR ~ BIE

o JNRMAKE - AREREBIBKIER £
HA DL T BT

o RAAEEEHMUBERY(VOC)WERE
P54

o WMEITEVWFEREENE  SEEERME

EERES -
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Case Study: Reuse of refining slag

=B BREERICBRNA

In 2023, the Company’s project for the hot-state recovery and utilization of refined slag yielded excellent results,
achieving a dual harvest of solid waste reduction and resource utilization efficiency enhancement.
2023F N ANERBREL WA BIEB BGREBR - BR TEREVRSFNERMNAERE LY -

During the Reporting Period, focusing on the issue of resource utilization of waste steel slag generated during
the smelting process, the Company established a research team to address this challenge, focusing on the hot-
state recovery and utilization of refined slag in the steel refining process. Confronting the problems and risks
encountered during the process, the research team tackled them head-on. Through extensive statistical analysis,
calculations, and deductions based on previous test data and production records, and after thorough discussions,
simulations, and verification, the research team developed standardized charging and slag-making systems while
ensuring stable and reliable product quality.

HERAH B RBIEEENRERBERIEANAE —RE - ARIKIIE/NME - EWERBEE R B RBER
EVEREEURIF o SHEHRIRPFAEMNMBEMEE - K/ EDETN BRI SRR REL £ ESBETA
ERMET  FTEMRE - ERSwmARBERERLBRENER - X T RENINEHFEESE - WRE
EmEEMNRERE -

Currently, triple recycling has been achieved with a steel recovery rate exceeding 70%, achieving a dual harvest
of emission reduction and efficiency enhancement. This milestone signifies another solid step forward for our
Company on the path of clean steelmaking.

BRIE AT ER = REWHIA - o] HEREET0% A £ - BERREHEAERE LY - hiEHFERAREEZ
PREMEERS EXEL TREN—X -
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Resource usage

Due to the nature of our business, the main resources utilized by
the Group are electricity, water, and paper. Packaging materials for
finished products are not applicable. The Group is committed to
optimizing the efficiency of natural resource utilization, emphasizing
resource efficiency, and adhering to principles of clean production,
energy conservation, consumption reduction, and low-carbon
development. We uphold a policy of continuous improvement in
energy management. By deploying energy meters and compiling
data sheets for resources such as water and electricity, we aim
to achieve higher efficiency in resource utilization and allocation.
We have established a set of “Energy Management and Control
Procedures” ({REIREIRITHIFEF) ) aimed at identifying, planning,
and managing operational and maintenance activities related to
major energy sources, to effectively manage energy consumption
processes, facilities and equipment in production.

Energy

The Group recognizes the importance of conserving electricity
and natural gas resources, and as such, we continue to advance
energy-saving technology upgrades and initiatives to reduce
energy consumption, thereby indirectly decreasing greenhouse gas
emissions.

In 2023, in accordance with the energy conservation requirements,
the Company successfully completed several energy-saving
technology transformation projects. These projects included
innovative renovations such as the full oxygen combustion in the
continuous casting tundish, the conversion of the steelmaking ladle
pure oxygen combustion roaster, energy-saving renovations in the
continuous casting billet hydraulic station, high-temperature far-
infrared radiation paint energy-saving projects, and the replacement
of high-efficiency energy-saving pumps/motors. It is estimated that
these projects will result in an annual reduction of 3,400 tonnes
COse. These efforts have significantly tapped into the potential
for clean production, promoting the efficient improvement of the
company’s energy and resource utilization efficiency.

RE - HERERRS

BRER

ENEBNE  AEBERNERIERES
IKRARR - HMAPTRNBELNER - A&
HORERABRMARE - SRFERAE A
A BIEERAE - MRLRAEMERER - RIF
SEBCENRERE R S & - BB BRIRTESR
B gatk - BEFRRNEERE - UERER
MAMEENE ST - HFIHE T(RERERE
ZHIEFF) - BEEHER - REIFEIRE T ZRER
HENESNEELE  UANEREEMLE
12~ RIGMRE °

BEIR

REBHEHNES - RARBERNERE
I F PR HEHE T BE B I SUE R IR R - SRR
ERERE - MR AZEREHTNE -

2023FRIBARIE e FEES - RAEIRETK
TESPEEEZENESFNEEE - g
MRIGEHE SRS TR B - B8 P IR B BT BiE
BHE - ®RRAINESTRRENREIAE « |ETRE
KR/ EMFREZIBERNETAR - TAA AP
KRS LIRBEE 493,4000F - X2 T B 24E
B HERRIRERE R ARE NS MR
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Case Study: Innovative Transformation Project for Full Oxygen Combustion in Continuous

Casting Tundish
=6 ESPREEXERBEAFCCEEE

In 2022, the company signed and initiated the “Innovative Project for Full Oxygen Combustion in Continuous
Casting Tundish” with Air Liquide (Cangzhou) Co., Ltd “(&IEZE5 CAIN) BRAF])". After relentless efforts and
close collaboration between both parties, the project was successfully implemented in 2023, achieving significant
energy-saving effects.

2022F REIEBIEZERCORM) BRATFZZLME T EFTRE2AMERIFIRE | - 2023FKLBEHHT
WL NFEZEE - %IEE BIENE eI BYS R IFHET R o

The project adopted BoostAL™ full oxygen combustion equipment and involved the renovation and upgrade of
the existing continuous casting tundish baking equipment. This enhancement further improved the heating and
insulation performance of the furnace, effectively enhancing energy utilization efficiency. Through testing, it was
determined that the new full oxygen baking equipment for the tundish could reduce approximately 35% of the
CO, emissions every year. Additionally, the implementation of this project also reduced smoke emissions, thereby
decreasing environmental pollution.

T8 B SR ABoostALM B AR - IR B ERPEEMEREETT TSCENAR - E—TRA T EEN IR
fﬂ{%/ MERE - ARURE TRURMARE - ZBAH - FPRE AR eRRBERERAEL - B E8F

PRIK35% 8 —SLIBEE - 30 - ZIBENEMDRD TIRRIENE @ REHRIZNISHR -
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Case Study: High-Temperature Far-Infrared Radiation Coating Energy Saving Project
RO BRBRALMEHEREHEIER

In 2023, during the Company’s major overhaul, the Company implemented the High-Temperature Far-
Infrared Radiation Coating Energy-Saving Project, combining various parameters and indicators such as energy
consumption, furnace temperature, and internal furnace wall conditions of the on-site ring furnace. The high-
temperature far-infrared radiation coating project was implemented. The high-temperature far-infrared coating
exhibits superior adhesion, which enhances the physical properties of refractory materials. It remains stable and
does not peel off under long-term use in high-temperature environments, effectively enhancing the emissivity of
the furnace wall and the radiative heat transfer rate of the furnace.

2023FERBIANEHE  HERISRVERRER  ERAE  APERESELBNER - AF
FEATYMNESTRMETREIRR - ®BELAINER ARG BBNNE N iRE MM S IBYIBIERE - &F
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Case Study: Steel Ladle Pure Oxygen Combustion Roaster Transformation Project

RO HEMASRBEHERIETER

In 2023, with a focus on reducing energy consumption, the Company conducted an in-depth analysis of some
issues surrounding the existing vertical roaster and ultimately decided to carry out a transformation of the
steel ladle roaster. The traditional air+natural gas medium for steel ladle roasting technology was improved to
utilize pure oxygen combustion technology by directly mixing oxygen and natural gas. After the transformation,
the entire system consisted of oxygen control valve groups, burners, and pre-wired control cabinets, enabling
fully automatic combustion control. On a foundation of safety and efficiency, this transformation achieved a
significant energy-saving effect, with a new package natural gas savings of approximately 53% and a slag line
package natural gas savings of about 50%.

2023F R ERRERTELE - RREZREN AR —LHEBEETRADN  RERREHMEEE
FEITHE - BESRNZER+RAR BN E NN BSHERMBCE RARFRARBE RS VARSI - 2k
EREERSHARZEGRA  RERSNEEREEBERETE BBREES - £%2  SRNER I -
B THEZINBRARELIS3% « HEBRBERAREAKIS0%HFRZEERMR

-

Semmma—-

The Group uses natural gas as the main gas fuel and vehicle fuel. REBEAKAR AT SR ERE REHFHKH - B
During the Reporting Period, our energy consumption figures are set R4 HAR - B FIRsL R ERESIEEFI T -
out below:
Type of energy Unit 2023 2022
REREE B 20234 20225
Indirect energy
BEREIR
Purchased electricity GWh 470.95 509.26
HNEEE ) Pl
Direct energy
HiZmR
Natural gas GWh 488.29 515.32
RAR ES
Gasoline GWh 0.41 0.29
TR SEE
Diesel fuel GWh 1.4 1.55
e EEH
Liquefied petroleum gas GWh 0.03 0.04
BAL AR, HEE
Total energy consumption GWh 961.08 1,026.46
HERUHFEA ST EHEE
Intensity GWh/revenue in million RMB 0.25 0.24
=E =FEE BB T ARE RS
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Water use

The production operations of the Group rely on water resources,
and we understand the importance of water resources. We manage
water usage in corresponding business areas, striving to reduce
water consumption in production and daily life processes. In terms
of production, we have equipped wastewater treatment stations.
For industrial water usage, we regularly clean oil separators monthly
to ensure their stable operation and that the effluent meets the
required turbidity standards. We also conduct regular water sample
tests, promptly adjusting and improving plans if abnormalities
are detected, to ensure stable and compliant water quality and
effectively reduce the use of fresh water. Additionally, we have
optimized the irrigation mode for green areas in the factory and
office areas, converting them to spray mode to reduce water usage
for landscaping and conserve water resources.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not encountered any
problems in sourcing water resources that are fit for its purposes.
Our water consumption is as follows:

RE - HERERRS

K

REBNEEZRBEREKER - RPIFEKER
MBEN - HREREETRKER 2R
EEMETBENAKE - HEEHE - RFE
BT ISKEIEY - ST TRAK  EHRABRE
Bromes - ERERHSISEET - KBRS
I B E R EIKEGETTIRE - BRRE MR
ENE BRKEREAR - BREREHKER
B AREtREMRARGCERER - HE
BUEREMIES - B AR(ERK - BIAIKEIR o

RIEHRE - NEBAERBERKD L RBE
EfIREE - FKEWT

Water consumption Unit 2023 2022
KB By 2023%F 2022
Total water consumption Cubic metre 674,260.39 659,980.00
HFEKE oK

Intensity Cubic meter/revenue in million RMB 175.13 156.10
=E SHARBETARE RS

Green Office

Aligned with the ESG management philosophy and requirements
of energy/environmental management systems, we participated
in or hosted various activities such as “Dalipal’s Carbon Reduction
Day,” “Earth Hour 2023,” and “World Environment Day”, and for
two consecutive years signed the “Energy Saving Charter” launched
by the Environment and Ecology Bureau of Hong Kong. We also
conducted specialized training on “Low-Carbon Living” to convey
green and low-carbon concepts and requirements to all employees,
integrating a “green and low-carbon culture” into our daily
production and operations. We advocate for all Dalipal employees to
join the low-carbon lifestyle, internalizing green office practices and
green living in their hearts and putting them into practical action.

=2 N
EBESGERIBaRAER,IRIRERRBAENX -
HFRB2mEE R ENERKE ] [HIR—
N ERIRBRER C EEMFRFEER
BRELOKERNE)SE LSRG, TR
R IEBEIE  MEEE TEREE - K
BRMER - AR ERUE BA BB EERL
2 BERRENEAMABIREETTY - 4%
BN REEEREROL N EBERRITE
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Summer air conditioning is managed flexibly by combining actual temperatures and weather conditions. We
automatically set the opening times while also intervening manually when necessary, aiming to minimize
electricity consumption while meeting the needs of employees to the maximum extent possible consumption;

Office power Offices and meeting rooms make full use of natural light, eliminating daytime lights and permanent lights,

management and adjusting the switching time of lighting lights in office and living areas according to seasonal and weather

BAFAEEE changes to ensure that the lighting needs of public areas can be met while reducing energy consumption.
%E’Tg%é:‘é’: FREMARBEABEEER EEDREMMERNRRFRRALTE ERABRERRETHRNE
) £

MAE BREASFAEAL HBAZENRPE  PREFER(CBRREL KRR CAEMERRE  £RE
R X AR I AR AR T SR O (R R P BEJRDB A ©

We have posted water-saving signs in office areas to remind employees to conserve water. We conduct
Office water inspections of water usage in various office areas, adding individual valve controls to increase management
management precision and prevent leaks and wastage.

MamKER %g@l&?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬂ*%% RIBETHNMAK  WHARSERAETHE - BNRMEBE - B Ee

BRI R o

We encourage the use of electronic channels for sending and receiving files, implementing electronic file
management and promoting online office operations. Each department strictly manages paper usage accord-
ing to budget constraints, and encourages double-sided printing or copying to reduce paper consumption.
During the Reporting Period, the Company terminate the printing of the “Dalipal People” internal newsletter
and transitioned to electronic distribution and reading through online platforms. This change has resulted in
saving approximately 30,000 sheets of paper per year.

SEEAEFREKEER  BETETXMHERE TR LN - ZIHPIRBRIRMIAE ERMARER - SEXME
FRREmTESAE NN A AU HRAE

?é%ﬁﬂﬂﬂ CARIBUEAER CGEHEA) AT EBR ETFEEREFIRATINEEMBE - FrHNRRAEES

Office paper
management

WARREE

The Group will continue to track resource usage to evaluate the  ZREEEE@IFE DT REROBEN - AERKEK
effectiveness of conservation measures in the future. This will help in 4 ETEAFEMERL AR - LARET S B Bt mak =
setting more targeted improvement measures and goals. BB IR o

R, mesnmnn ARTES “"L-if'w
@ ;xa-.rm-n EMSD iJ.‘...h...

MR EMR

MRENE2023 [

Energy Saving Charler 2023
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we support the Government's Energy Saving Charter 2023
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Environment and Natural Resources

Environmental Management System

Protecting the environment and natural resources is a crucial
responsibility for global enterprises. The Company strictly adheres
to laws and regulations such as the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({FF#E AR EMEIRIBRE
7%)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Appraising
of Environment Impacts ({FZEARLMBIRIBTZEFEE) ),
and Emergency Response Law of the People’s Republic of China
((RERIEEBHEEZEEPIE) ), among others. We uphold an
environmental management policy that emphasizes pollution
prevention, meeting emission standards, compliance with laws and
regulations, and continuous improvement. We have established
various environmental special management systems, including On-
site environmental management implementation plan ( GRIFIRIE
BEIYEE)), Discharge Permit Management Regulations ({HE5&F
AIEIEHRIE) ), Greenhouse Gas Management Regulations ( CEZE R
BEEIRIRIE) ), Environmental Operation Control Program ( (ER3%3&
77#2HIF250) ), and Emergency Environmental Emergency Response
Plan ((ZREIRIZMESTAZ) ). These systems are aimed at identifying
and evaluating environmental factors in production operations and
related processes.

We entrust professional teams to regularly monitor environmental
impact factors such as wastewater, exhaust gases, and noise from
the Company. We also conduct regular assessments on soil and
air environments and other natural resources of the Company,
promptly reviewing and assessing environmental risks during
business processes. We review relevant environmental protection
guidelines in our operational practices, adopt necessary preventive
or improvement measures, and implement measures to reduce and
control significant environmental impact factors to effectively control
and enhance the Company’s environmental governance level.

The Company has obtained ISO 14001 environmental management
system certification. During the Reporting Period, we engaged
third-party to conduct external audits and carried out internal self-
organized system audits to confirm the effective implementation of
the environmental system and to achieve continuous improvement
and perfection. According to system requirements, we have
internally formulated environmental management objectives and
progressively decomposed them, devised feasible control measures,
conducted regular benchmark inspections on-site, carried out
process monitoring measurements, promptly corrected deviations,
and ensured controlled processes and the achievement of objectives.

RE - HERERRS
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Case Study: Successful Implementation of Emergency Radiation Safety Exercise in Cangzhou
City
*{ﬂ BMNTENZZESEREREHRAIERFER

During the Reporting Period, the Company successfully conducted the 2023 Emergency Radiation Safety Exercise in
Cangzhou City as per the unified deployment and work arrangements of the Bureau of Ecology and Environment
of Cangzhou City. This special exercise simulated a scenario where the “access control monitoring system detected
radioactive excess in waste steel transported by cars.” The exercise simulated a series of tasks and processes from
discovery, review, reporting, to disposal. Through this exercise, awareness and emergency response capabilities related
to sudden radiation incidents were enhanced among relevant personnel, achieving the intended objectives.

HRERA - BRAMNTERRRE RN —MENILIELEE - ARARERN2023F AN TET T2 ESEEZH
BRTHIEFIFR o WAFRERRZE TIPIREANRRER TEERNEERE T FERGTIE @R MBS -
RECER T 1% Bz REINRES —FIB B NERIEBRE - MRER - 85 T S EMmMALA S8 RERE
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In terms of cooperation in green energy, the Company is actively E#FHEEREIENE @ AN ERREFERR
serving green energy customers and expressing wholehearted F - BEEFP—HEAERITHREHERZEER
dedication to the country’s green energy development through  ZEEHELIEA o

practical actions taken together with our customers.

Case Study: Supporting Geothermal Energy Extraction to Promote Green Energy
Development

RO By hubBRERER - [RERERE

Geothermal energy is the heat energy stored within the Earth, continuously transferred and dissipated to the
Earth’s surface through volcanic eruptions, hot springs, fissure fountains, and heat conduction in rocks. It is
estimated that the total heat energy inside the Earth is about 170 million times that of the global coal reserves. As
a clean, efficient, and low-carbon renewable energy source, geothermal energy has immense resource potential,
offering both environmental and economic benefits.

HENRE R BRI AR RO ZAEE - BB AR RR - BRER R E AN REEE LA N m R E XA
AUEEE - BAE - MIRABNAREENSEHRERFEEM.7EE - HIERBZ - 2% - KA B 4ERE
R BRENER  RRMEE YL

Adhering to the principles of green, low-carbon sustainable development, the Company has been supporting
geothermal energy extraction. Since September 2022, the Company has collaborated with Sinopec Green Source
Geothermal Energy Development Co., Ltd. (FA{EARIBEEERZE B PR A A]), Tianjin Branch, to undertake
multiple geothermal energy extraction projects. The Tianjin Binhai New Area project was put into operation in
2023, providing heating for approximately 156,500 square meters of surrounding residents. This project has
resulted in a reduction of approximately 6,600 tons of CO, emissions per year, equivalent to planting 30,000
trees annually.

NRIFAGE  BROAIFREERIES - B EEERIR - 8202269 ML - AR EP A(bARE LR
BERRARIRED ARIESIEETZIEMAGERIRIER - 2023F XEFREFRIBEECRASLH - BEE15.658
TOREREITHIE - FZIHE Z@UHORPEE3M6,60088, F - HERFEBLZER
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Combating Climate Change

In recent years, the intensification of climate change and the
frequent occurrence of extreme weather events have brought
a series of substantial risks and uncertainties to businesses. The
frequent occurrence of weather disasters such as typhoons and
heavy rain-induced floods has forced human society to rapidly
address the imminent global challenge of climate change. To
address climate issues, China has set the “dual-carbon goal” at the
75th United Nations General Assembly, pledging to “strive to peak
carbon emissions before 2030 and achieve carbon neutrality by
2060." In response to the national call, our group has formulated a
carbon reduction action plan, actively practicing and promoting low-
carbon development to meet increasingly stringent environmental
laws and regulations and prepare for upcoming challenges.

Governance

The Group’s ESG Committee and ESG Working Group regularly
discuss ESG matters, review climate-related risks and opportunities,
and report relevant issues to the Board to incorporate climate-
related issues into the Group's strategy. To ensure that the Board
stays abreast of the latest trends in climate-related matters, the
Group actively conducts relevant training to ensure that directors
have the necessary expertise and skills to oversee climate-related
matters. The Board will also consider hiring professional consultants
when necessary to obtain opinions to optimize company decisions.

Strategy

To comprehensively implement the spirit of the 19th National
Congress of the Communist Party of China and subsequent sessions,
deeply carry forward President Xi's ecological civilization ideology,
and actively practice the concept of low-carbon development, Dalipal
has incorporated carbon peaking and carbon neutrality targets into
its “Five-Year Plan for 2023-2027". It takes comprehensive green
transformation as its guide, energy green low-carbon development as
a key focus, and relies on technological and institutional innovation
as the driving force. The Company is firmly committed to the path
of high-quality development with ecological priority and green
low-carbon development, rooted in intelligence, informatization,
digitalization, and greenization. It aims to build a smart factory in
the petroleum pipe manufacturing industry comprehensively and
strives to become a leading smart factory in the domestic industry
with high intelligence, production and management efficiency,
low energy consumption, and low emissions, leading the way in
contributing to the country’s carbon peaking and carbon neutrality.
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Since 2022, the Group has rapidly initiated the formulation and
implementation of the “Carbon Reduction Action Plan”. By
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developing a scientifically systematic action plan for carbon peaking  3ZEI& - #REEETENFTE| - RIS KRR -
and carbon reduction, it is scientifically promoting low-carbon
transformation:

Carbon Peaking, Carbon Reduction Action Plan
HRiElg - BOm BT B Rt &

1.

Strengthen the top-level design of the Company’s system, establish a production and operation systems of
green, low-carbon and cyclical development, improve resource and energy utilization efficiency, promote
synergy in pollution reduction and carbon reduction, and create green and low-carbon products through
equipment energy conservation and environmental protection upgrades, promotion and application of
advanced technologies, continue to reduce carbon emission intensity.

MBARRSMNIAE R BUGKCERBRERNEELSSRE - BARGHERRAR - STERIME
BRER - ReERERMARME - #ERSERNE - TERCERER - FHEMRERBINRE -

Establish a sound carbon emission management system and strengthen carbon asset management.
BUTENBRERRBR  NEREEER -

Track the R&D and application of cutting-edge technologies for low-carbon and carbon capture, and carry out
life cycle assessment and carbon label certification.

BRMME R ER AR SR A e R AT AV T S5 R - BRI A an A EART A MR IZ ERE TIE o

Actively promote carbon emission verification and cleaner production review, promote clean energy
substitution, improve the level of scrap steel recycling, and implement the all-scrap electric furnace
technology.

THHERPFRZENEREEFTZIE  REFREREN - RBAEME RO AKE - #1752 EEH
BETH o

Timely introduction of advanced technologies, tapping into the potential for energy saving and carbon
reduction, promoting the development of waste heat utilization, fully harnessing the energy conversion
function, and achieving collaborative carbon reduction.

I S SER - ORIZE RO T - BN B ER - RO BERRERYIE - BR BRI -

The Company plans to introduce key technologies such as electric furnace waste heat power generation,
continuous preheating technology for waste steel charging, amoeba residual steel monitoring technology,
and hydraulic servo energy-saving technology to effectively improve the overall energy efficiency level of
the company. The goal is to achieve advanced levels of clean production in terms of unit product energy
consumption, material consumption, and water consumption by 2025.
NEREBERSIABERRE TR - FEHEERITRRRMN - FOKEERM BRI  RERRETEER
M - ARIRE A FIEREERUKE - NFHHE2025F » BEEMER - WRIKESEIBREERENKE -

H2022F % - NEBRERMBORKITEE I
7T ERIMRBL S THE - BB HIE RS2 R
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During the Reporting Period, we actively pursued carbon footprint
certification for 5 product specifications as planned and obtained
certificates from professional certification bodies. Carbon footprint
certification measures the greenhouse gas emissions generated
throughout the product life cycle, quantifying and assessing our
own carbon emissions to demonstrate a series of emission reduction
measures. This ensures that our products minimize their negative
impact on the environment throughout their life cycle. Currently,
the company has obtained carbon footprint certification for 6
products, marking a new milestone in our commitment to green and
sustainable development and reflecting our consistent adherence
to green development and ecological environmental protection
principles.
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Risk management

Following discussions by the Board and management, the climate-
related risks and opportunities have been identified during the year

are as follow:

Climate-related risks

RE HEREBHRS

mfREE
REFGREEENIHRER  AFELHIOR
IRAARAR R BN T

Potential financial impact

RIRAEAR R BIENBR
Physical Risk
BEREAER

The increased severity and frequency of extreme weather
events such as hurricanes, floods and strong winds have
led to increased vulnerability to damage to production
equipment and increased downtime

RaE - ALK R R S i K R B BB E AN S A SRR N
Bl BRAERBESHXE T REUEM

e  Facility damage leads to increased capital expenditures

o RIBEEEBEA LN

Transition risk

B Ek

The Chinese government has vigorously strengthened
environmental management and supervision, gradually
introduced and tightened energy consumption control
policies and environmental protection policies, and set
important targets and commitments for carbon peaking
and carbon neutrality
PEBFANIMARREREREENE - BLHE WAL
W B RE R BIBUR MERIRRE DGR © 5T 7 [HEE I 5k
e E B EAGE

With the introduction of the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS S2) for climate-related
disclosures, the Exchange has updated its climate-related
disclosure requirements, which will be implemented in
2025

B Z BRI S IREER(FRS Sl RIZHABEIBE |1 e - B
RETEFREARANESREER - WiKN2025FE1T

e The high cost of compliance increases the cost of
business operation

. BROABRASEEREEN

® Increase the cost of compliance
e Failure to comply with disclosure requirements will
result in damage to goodwill

o EMAMRMA
o REEETHREERBGEHERIE

Climate-related opportunities

RIRERAKE

Potential financial impact

BEMBTE

External stakeholders, such as regulators, investors and
customers, are increasingly concerned about ESG

SMERFE DB (INEEE M - REBEME P ) HESGRIERT

e Increase revenue through R&D of green products

o EBWTEREEREBIEA
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The Harmonious Society

Employment

Corporate Culture and Talent Philosophy — Knowing people and
making good use of them, appointing people only by virtue,  [R¥8 : BKFEAA ©
introducing talents from outside to inside, and achieving talents.

Mg E
(=

EEMEZATB-AAZA  EAKE - Hh5]

) ™ )
Knowing people Appointing Introducing Achieving
and making people only by talents from talents
good use of virtue outside to
them inside
HAZRA EAMEE SheImE AN
We give tolerance for We treasure not only Promotions are On-site learning and
our employees’ faults, an employee’s ability standardized, talent promotion are
allowing mistakes and virtue but also appointment with a beneficial to cultivating
during exploration and their achievements. We basis and the virtuous and training employees
innovation. We do not believe talents are able of relatives are not who act accordingly
easily give up on any to perform duty at any avoided. We persist to with the Company
employee. working level and perform assessment culture and gain
GEMLE] - S B capable to work at before public experience in multiple
AT H B E R B o different types of job recruitment, on-going positions, so as to
T8 S B A — %8 positions. We evaluation during uphold a mindset to
To continuously build employment, and put themselves in the
channels and platforms comprehensive customers’ shoes.
for talent growth, so as actualization after RIEED . j2EEh
to focus on the career termination of BN S FISIRAR
development for our employment. WBT AT - RFF
employee. BAAIRE - ARAK % EfIERE - $LIRE
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Employees are an indispensable part of driving sustainable
development in enterprises. In order to attract outstanding
talents, the Group is committed to providing a favorable working
environment and building a core team and backbone staff who
highly identify with the culture and actively practice it. This is
considered an important strategic task for the company’s survival
and development. To achieve this, the Group strictly complies with
relevant regulations such as the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China ({(P#E AR LML E)A) the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China ((FPFEAREMBELHERE),
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Persons with Disabled Persons ({f#EARKEMBEE K AREE),
the Law on the Protection of Women'’s Rights and Interests of the
People’s Republic of China (= A RILFEF LS IRIEE)),
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) (B&EBIE57E (RIBHGI) ),
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282) (&/#A1155282
Z(REWEIED])), and the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485) (B8 A5 5485% GRFIMERTESFHENER) ).
We are committed to becoming an excellent employer, creating
a fair, just, safe, healthy, and promotion opportunity-filled work
environment, enabling employees to grow and fully unleash their
potential through benign competition.

The Group has established effective employment policies such as
the Human Resources Management Control Procedure ({( A&

BB H)F20) ) and Performance Management System ({4
xﬁ(afi%‘JEN. During the Reporting Period, The Group was not
aware of any significant violations of laws and regulations related to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other treatment and welfare that have a significant impact on
the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,658 employees

RIR - S RERERE

BTRHEPHOEAFEZRTAIHRN IR B
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By~ 1B B E ) R o Bl R TE 2 5 8 F
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CRERBIARFTHETHEN ITERE
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2023F12A318 » REBEME T8 51,658

(2022: 1,777), all of whom were full-time employees. A(2022 1,777 N) » X AZBRET -
By Gender By Age Group By Geographical Region
MBS FHREID HhEEID
H 18-30 M 31-40
B Male B Female 18-30 31-40 B Mainland China ® Hong Kong
B eg m 41-50 B 51 or above At B
41-50 5154
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s employee turnover rate A EEIR  AEEREES % <F18% ' BB
was 18%, and the breakdown of employee turnover are as follow: it R&Tﬂ%ﬁﬁ‘]iﬂ’ﬁﬁ
By Geographical Region By Gender By Age Group
hEE 5 451 &5 FiRdlD
Mainland China Employees Male 18-30
- 18% 18% . 31%
B A E T -1 ° 18-30% °
Hong Kong Employees Female 31-40
- o 0% 159 . 14%
EBET ’ it ® 3140 °
41-50
. 9%
41-507%
51 or above
. 14%
S1REIA E °
Equal Opportunities and Diversity FEHERZ T
The Group pursues an equal and diverse employment policy in its ~ AEEEEL T FETEENS TEHEERK

operational policy, and strictly prohibits discrimination or harassment
of individuals on legally protected grounds such as age, gender,
race, marital status, religious beliefs, or health status. We are
committed to providing a fair and equal working environment,
promoting diversity and equitable distribution of our workforce, and
ensuring that all employees are treated equally in all aspects of work
or employment. The prohibition of child labor and forced labor is
strictly enforced in the employment process.

The Group attaches great importance to the career development
and rights of female employees, and ensures that promotion
opportunities are not affected by gender. Female employees will
not be dismissed or terminated from their employment contracts
without cause due to pregnancy, maternity leave, breastfeeding,
etc., and their right to basic salary is guaranteed.

R BERFER - R - Bk - BN - RH
EMREERAELERRENEATMEEA
EITRR KRR - WA R‘E—ERFEF
FNTHERE  HBHATHONZ THENSESD
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R WAFRAMZIELRELRILEHS
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Talent Acquisition and Retention

The Group believes that its employees are its most valuable asset
and are crucial to the sustainable development of the Company.
Therefore, we have continuously improved our talent recruitment
and retention policies, established a clear management system, and
formulated a series of policy documents, including but not limited
to the Measures for Allocation of Human Resources Flow ({AJ1E
TERBECE BIEPHE) ), the the Specifications for the Management
of Labour Contract Management (A B)& RIEIE TEMREE) ), Rules
for the Management of Work Injury Insurance and Safety Production
Liability Insurance (( TSR R ZEEEEMTRBEEERAR),
and Detailed Rules for the Handling of Labour Disputes ({4 &%
BRIB TVEARRID ).

In terms of recruiting employees, we continue to optimize the
talent selection mechanism to ensure fairness, impartiality, and
transparency. During this Reporting Period, we carefully reviewed
the job qualification requirements to enhance recruitment accuracy.
At the same time, we actively expanded our recruitment channels
by continuously improving the professional capabilities and qualities
of our recruitment team through external recruitment, internal
training, on-site learning, practical experiences, and other methods.
To further expand our talent recruitment channels, we not only
continue to use online recruitment channels such as WeChat, Tieba
Baidu, and Liepin.com to attract outstanding talents who share our
aspirations and have a proactive spirit to join our team, but also
launched the Internal Referral Center during the Reporting Period.
Through internal employee referrals, we successfully recommended
more than 30 candidates. Additionally, we have strengthened our
collaboration with universities through on-campus recruitment
activities and the establishment of university-enterprise internship
bases to improve the quality of talent selection and provide
internship opportunities for students to enhance their practical
abilities.

RE - HERERRS

AT EBREE

[EEAARE  EARL] AEEREETR
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The Group is deeply aware of the seriousness of child labor and
forced labor violations of basic human rights. We are committed
to eradicating all forms of child labor and forced labor, upholding
the corporate ethics of “integrity, honesty, and transparency,” and
strictly complying with relevant laws and regulations such as the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ({(ZZ|FFFRZE
T#ED), and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Minors ({FF#E AR KEMBIARKF AREZE)). We
utilize an online human resources system to automatically screen
and exclude applicants under the age of 18. Before joining the
Company, the relevant departments and the human resources
department carefully verify their identification documents to ensure
no violations occur. We also properly maintain labor contracts and
other records, including all relevant details of employees, to ensure
the protection of their rights and interests.

If the Group discovered any violations related to child labor or
forced labor, it will immediately conduct a detailed investigation
in accordance with the relevant company policies and procedures.
Based on the investigation results, the Group will make decisions
regarding penalties or non-penalties and report the verified
information to the relevant statutory authorities. During the
Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any significant violations
of laws and regulations related to preventing child labor or forced
labor that would have a significant impact on the Group.

REEIRAE T K855 TIRILERNAENE
Rt BRTB - ANE T ERE MRS
B RE[BELEE  APR&EEINEEER &
RENELERETIRE) (PEARKNE
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FRERG MEAKREELBATENER -
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as research directions for students.

SES -
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%3 |

Case Study: Strengthening Recruitment Efforts through School-Enterprise Cooperation

In 2023, the Group engaged in exchanges with the College of Materials Science and Engineering, Yanshan University
and the Xuangang branch of Hebei Polytechnic University. We reached consensus on various aspects of school
recruitment, targeted training, enterprise mentorship programs, special project funds, and using enterprise pain points

20234 - NEEEMINASHHSER AL TERERMAEE
& CEGREY  REFIEED  UEERHIERBEMRRTRNERNTERLE -

D FEETT T AR

Additionally, we signed internship agreements with Hebei University of Science and Technology and Cangzhou Normal
University, providing students with opportunities for practical work experience.
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Case Study: Deepening Online HR System Integration
%ﬁu QV?J:HR%\"JL 1t

Since the launch of the HR system, the Group has achieved integrated management of recruitment, employee
relations, attendance management, payroll, training, and learning information. During the Reporting Period, we
deepened the application and improvement of the HR system through internal guidance, communication with
business units, and other methods. We continuously enhanced the functionality and application of modules such as
basic information, recruitment, learning and development, payroll, and attendance. A total of 14 optimization projects
were identified and implemented throughout the year.

BHRESHEL R - XEEER THE - EITME  BY - FH - 52 BSEBEL—RBILER - REHHE -
REBEHHRESET TRCEBINE - BRAESIE - EHELAIRESRN - HHAPNEREN - Hi2 - 2
BRER  FHRYPSERADTERCEDIEER  MIBFEEIER X148 -

HRESERIRIAZICRBE HREGRIERAZ SRS e
ERTHe, TR AT, BhlER

Dismissal Policy FEEBE

In relation to the policy on dismissal, the dismissal procedure must B F#F{E 8 TOVEER - BEIR T ARIEE T
be in strict compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. We — JEBIFUER o FPI#EFEM B TR HARER
are committed to clearly explaining the reasons for dismissal to C WHERIRRTB AN 7T 5 R o 18 F B
employees and ensuring sufficient advance notice. Prior to formal Bl ﬁz{ﬁﬁxxﬁlmﬁk%ﬁﬂiﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬁ EE
termination, we require employees to complete an exit interview & - LM%EE/H\%)\ o R A BRI R B TR
and all handover matters to protect their rights. At the same time, & ~ AT A - J/Miii%”mﬂﬁ(%ﬂlﬁﬁhm o
we will study, analyze and report on the reasons for leaving the

company on a monthly basis to continuously formulate improvement

policies and measures.

If an employee’s behavior is seriously misappropriated and does EHEIK{TARERE @ LBAZRKEEENKR
not improve after repeated warnings, the supervisor and senior & * AEXEMAQ Tm%ﬂ%?&ﬁiﬁﬁ’\]wuﬁﬁ
management of the Company will conduct a comprehensive internal & ° FEIFXEMARE AT - e TE TS L E
discussion. Employees will be allowed to respond and explain before ~ FIfi##E < EREZFHEMAR T A IEMER - FFESE
the termination is officially announced. This procedure ensures T B LE#EZ ° PSR BREEIZFHEE
fairness and transparency while respecting the rights and interests of ~ TEAIA M - DA g 288 THEIR I A9 IRE FIAD
employees. We are committed to ensuring the legality and fairness — #& °

of the dismissal process to maintain stability and harmony in the

overall working environment.



1 3 6 Dalipal Holdings Limited 3 ) &2 i% 5 R 2 &)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRE HERERHRS

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group continuously emphasizes respect, recognition, and
care for employees, striving to create a healthy and safe work
environment and fostering a warm atmosphere to provide
opportunities for employee growth and development. To achieve
this, we have developed the “Salary Management System* ( {GrEH
EIEHIE)) and “Employee Attendance Management Measures”
((BITEHEEPE)), which clearly define employees’ rights and
obligations regarding working hours, rest and leave, compensation
benefits, etc. During the Reporting Period, we have continuously
improved the company’s compensation management system by
adding subsidies for university education, optimizing and adjusting
frontline subsidies. Currently, the Group provides various forms of
wages (including performance-based), bonuses, allowances, and
stock incentives to motivate employees and protect their legal rights
and interests effectively.

In terms of employee benefits, we are constantly improving and
enhancing the level of employee welfare. While complying with local
laws, regulations, and policies, we provide comprehensive labor
protection for employees and continue to enhance it according to
legal standards. We strictly adhere to legal requirements and provide
employees with paid marriage leave, bereavement leave, maternity
leave, lactation leave, childcare leave, and other legitimate leave
benefits. To meet the needs of employees’ work and life, we have
introduced multiple supermarkets, restaurants, and other shops in
the company living area. We provide accommodation for employees
(optional couple units for married couples who are both employees)
equipped with free Wi-Fi, dormitory supplies, timely maintenance,
etc. Additionally, we have set up express collection stations,
automatic water dispensers, and equipment for mobile phone top-
ups for water and electricity bills, continuously improving the living
conditions of employees to ensure their comfort and convenience.

During the Reporting Period, the Group introduced three commercial
stores in the vicinity of the dormitory to meet the daily needs of
employees, and at the same time, upgraded the canteen meals to
include Braised food, free yogurt and seasonal fruits, etc., and added
a "breakfast take-out” service to enable each employee to have a
complete nutritional mix to help start a vibrant day.
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In addition, we continue to provide various protection schemes for
employees, ensuring timely payment of “Insurance and Housing
Fund” ([FEk—=]) for employees. During the Reporting Period,
we added a health check-up program as a new welfare benefit for
employees. Employees are free to choose the time to undergo the
health check-up at designated hospitals within the year, allowing
them to monitor their physical health, detect and prevent potential
health risks in a timely manner, and safeguard their physical and
mental well-being.

Salary and Bonuses:

ITERSE :

RiIE - HERERHRE

UEAN - BB RHERE TIRHEERE R - 1%
RAETHM Ik—% | YRHEEHARET
¥igEARFEERIRE  BTAINFEANEH
EEREZETERETER  BEISEBEEK
N REERNEN BENRERR - REET
SRR -

Position Salary, Performance Bonus, Seniority Salary, Achievement and Performance Incentives, Management/

Technology Innovation Award

MAUTE BRTE AR TE  EFEENE - B2 PHRANTEE - AR

Various Types of Subsidies:

B

Frontline Subsidy, Educational Background Subsidy, High-Temperature Subsidy, Housing Purchase Subsidy, Meal

Subsidy, Travel Subsidy, Seniority and Other Subsidies

—iRTERL - BEMA - SRR - BEMA - BF - IR -

Various Types of Benefits:

ERIRE

e EH AR B IR AL

Endowment Insurance, Medical Insurance, Unemployment Insurance, Work-related Injury Insurance, Maternity
Insurance, Housing Provident Fund, Health Examination Employee Canteen

BE2RE - BERR  KERR  TERR  £ERR  EEAES  RFEER BTRE
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Employee Communication and Care

The Group has established a sound Union mechanism, fully
leveraging its role as a “bridge and bond” between employers and
employees and as an educational and propaganda platform. This
mechanism organizes and mobilizes all employees to exercise their
democratic rights and participate in the democratic management
and supervision of the Company. Through various means such
as seminars, tea sessions, Employee feedback meeting, corporate
culture training, collaborative service surveys, canteen satisfaction
surveys, and questionnaire-based research, we fully listen to
employees’ needs and suggestions in various aspects of work and
life. This continuous feedback helps enhance employees’ sense of
well-being, security, and satisfaction, striving to build harmonious
labor relations.

ETRERBE

AEERVATENTIEEG » £HBIEREREM
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B AgEE 2R e TITFERERER - 2EQ
AMREETEMREEE - RFBBBRISIERE
HE  FEg BEIBERRS  DEULERE
Fil - BREREAT  REMEERE - M5
FRAMEZEFN  THOENE TEIIEMA
TEESHEMNTEKNES - WTERABIMNE
B ZEBAREE  BHEENGENS B
& o

Case Study: Collaborative Research and Service
Surveys Promote Functional Management Capability
Enhancement

=6 mEERK AT EREEEENRA

During the Reporting Period, the Company conducted
collaborative research and service surveys on a quarterly basis,
using guestionnaire responses to conduct satisfaction surveys
to calibrate the self-awareness of each unit and enhance their
collaborative and service capabilities. During the Reporting
Period, more than 2,200 valid questionnaires were received.
Based on the evaluations and execution feedback from each
unit in 2023, there has been a significant improvement in the
awareness of functional collaboration and service, as well as in
functional management capabilities across all units.

HEHR - RARRFEREHRERBGHEHTLE - BBHSE
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Openness and candidness
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Self-reflection
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- Emphasis on action
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The Group also values the physical and mental health of employees,
as well as harmony and integration, and is committed to balancing
employees’ work and life time. By organizing a variety of activities,
health seminars, and timely providing care and assistance to
employees, the Group enriches employees’ daily lives and creates a
relaxed and harmonious work environment for all employees. During
the Reporting Period, the Group organized various activities such as
Lantern Festival celebrations, International Women'’s Day tea parties,
Children’s Day “Happy Baby, Followed by Father’s Love,” billiards
competitions, QiXi Festival celebrations, and anniversary celebrations.
The Group also invited external professionals to conduct multiple
health knowledge seminars, traditional Chinese medicine therapy
sessions, mental health lectures, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
promotion weeks, and free haircuts and other welfare activities,
allowing employees to truly feel a sense of belonging to the
Company.

RIR - S RERERE
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Focusing on Employee Physical and Mental Health

A BREIMBESETSREEBERBE

employees’ health.

Tradltlonal Chlnese ‘ Health
Medicine Therapy Knowledge Seminar
H B IR 2 R RN 585 R

Case Study: Inviting External Experts for Multiple Health Lectures and Q&A Sessions,

EE BEEISORE

During the Reporting Period, the Group organized a total of 4 health-related events, including expert lectures, on-site
therapy sessions, and consultations on mental health issues, to promote health knowledge among employees and
make them feel the Company’s humanistic care. The Company will continue to pay attention and provide support for

BEHE AKEHR ﬁ%%Mm&Eﬁ@é@ BEEFAEE  RHEE  LEREREZATRE REL
EREFEANZ - BREATMANEE - RELEHERT - RETHREREEM -

Mental Health
Knowledge Seminar

NI A2 R R RL A R
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Case Study: International Women'’s Day Series of Activities, Enhancing Female Employees’
Sense of Happiness

R = N\Z@HEHRIES  RAZMEETEFR

In March 2023, the Company’s labor union organized a special event for International Women's Day, where
employees participated in activities like “Life Talk Tea Party” to freely express themselves, share life experiences, discuss
parenting methods, and exchange views on life. The “Atrtistic Flower Arrangement Salon” allowed everyone to learn
and practice flower arrangement skills, creating elegant and creative floral artworks.

20233 RAIEABRETI=/\Z85H | BIRE - BBIRFGEAL] BEIBMRE EHEIER
MTEENEELE  HEFLOFAURAERSE  BR[BMEELRE]  RREBES - BRIUE BB
BF R T OB - EREIBOEEER

Additionally, the labor union prepared exquisite exclusive gifts for all female employees, providing them with a warm,
romantic, and enjoyable experience while experiencing beauty, appreciating beauty, and creating beauty, allowing
them to feel the warmth of the company’s big family.

R - IT@EATBRETEBTRENEBRE BARKERXE  MEX - AEXMBED  ER KRR
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Health and safety

In early 2023, as the pandemic was gradually brought under control,
the Chinese government began to relax its pandemic prevention
and control policies. Consequently, we canceled stringent pandemic
prevention measures while retaining certain hygiene and disinfection
measures. In the development process of the Group, we consider
safeguarding the safety and health of employees as the most
important corporate culture. In our operations, safety is our top
priority, and we have established the corporate safety concept of
“Safety First. Prevention is Crucial. Fully Mobilized. Caring for Life.”

RIR - S RERERE

BERZE
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People-oriented, safety is more
important than development.

We firmly establish the concept

of safe development and adhere
to the principles of “safety

first, prevention-oriented, and
comprehensive governance.”
NARE TR BREEE - 1§
Eﬁ%?ﬁ@A' SEEE

T EE—
B AE - HREERINAE

Establish and implement a
comprehensive system of safety
production responsibility, with every
employee taking on the role of the
primary responsible person. Starting
from ourselves, eliminate the “three
violations” and cultivate good
behavioral habits.
BVREWEBEREBREAESHE
H - B-HEIEHE—SEA-
?ﬁé%ﬁﬂzi MBI=E ] BERM
IREE -

Safety management should have

no blind spots; it's better to be

safe than sorry; it's better to hear

complaints than to hear cries.
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Create a safety culture with
distinctive company characteristics.
BRAERARFENLZEX(LRE -
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We manage employee and production area safety in accordance
with relevant occupational health and safety laws and regulations,
striving to ensure a good and safe working environment to prevent
injuries and illnesses for our employees. The Group strictly complies
with relevant laws and regulations such as the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Work Safety ({1 AREMBE L2 EER)),
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Infectious Diseases ({/F #E AR FEMBIELKEHAE))
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases ( {HZE A R A0 BB 2%
Fiia7%) ). We emphasize comprehensive and process-controlled
management and continuously improve the Company’s occupational
health and safety management system. We have developed various
safety management systems, including “Occupational health and
safety operating procedures” ((BREREEL2EITIZF)), “Safety
production responsibility system” ((ZEBZ24EEEH])) and
“Safety Production Risk Control Management procedure” ({%&
2AERBREIEFE)). The Group also holds 1SO45001:2018
Occupational Health and Safety Management System and HSE
Management System evaluation certificates.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
serious violation of laws and regulations relating to the provision
of a safe working environment and protection of employees from
occupational hazards, which had a significant impact on the Group,
and there were no severe safety incidents or fatalities in the course
of its operations. A total of 471 working days (2022: 828 days)
were lost due to work-related injuries, mainly due to mishandling
of machinery and minor injuries caused by equipment failure. The
statistics for the last three years are as follows:
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Statistical indicators Unit 2023 2022 2021
#atie g B 20234 2022 2021F
Number of work-related fatalities  person 0 0 0
AT THAR A

Work-related fatality rate percentage 0 0 0
ES N s g Bkt
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Safety management assurance

The Group strives to establish the highest standards and measures
for safety and health performance, fully implementing the party’s
and the state’s safety production policies, rigorously implementing
the all-employee safety production responsibility system, clarifying
the responsibilities of each unit and all employees, and forming a
pattern of safety production work with the leadership of the main
responsible person, regulatory supervision by various departments
according to regulations, and active participation of all employees.

RE - HERERRS

LR EERE
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We comprehensively protect employee health and safety from all
angles. During the Reporting Period, the Company was awarded the
title of “Healthy Enterprise” by both Hebei Province and Cangzhou
City.

e Continuously improve the construction of the occupational
health and safety management system, implement occupational
health and safety management responsibilities, and improve the
occupational health and safety management system;
FHETEBFRELERRARR  RERERRER2ERA
£ BEBERRLZERHE

e Implement the work requirements of “Safety must be managed
in industry management, Safety must be managed in business
operations, and Safety must be managed in production and
operations,” and “Shared responsibilities between the Party
and government, dual responsibilities for one position, and
collaborative management”; and
BUIETELRERSR  EXBLAER:  ELEEKELA

Exr| TERRAE  —H%E  BENHEINIEENXR:

Occupational health and safety
management mechanism

BRBEZ 2 EIEHS

e Develop and implement the “Safety Inspection and Evaluation
Program of General Staff” ((EEZ2HBEEFTHZE)) to address
and control unsafe behaviors of personnel, further enhance
the management awareness of middle management, and shift
focus from “on-site issues” to “duty performance under the
responsibility system.”
REFEANIZR2TRITEFNELEMCEBLE2REENT
) E—SRAEEEEABETEEH #HDHEME AT
R FEES | 77 M2 o
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Occupational health and
safety physical examination

BEREZZER

To implement the work policy of “prevention-oriented, combining
prevention with treatment” for occupational disease prevention
and control, and to prevent, control, and eliminate occupational
hazards to effectively protect the health of employees, during the
Reporting Period, professional medical institutions were invited
to conduct health check-ups for employees based on their job
positions. These check-ups included more than 10 examination
items such as visual and auditory routine checks, lung function
tests, and chest X-rays; and

REBCEREIEN RE  BaEa INBERDEIERS - 78
b7 - EHIFUERBEREE - VEREQREAB IS B -
WEAN - EEETEMLBER  BAERBERBIARETR
TlRERREE - REREEHRRE - fHIhae - WaXkF 108
HBRIAR

Based on the examination results, the employee’s “Occupational
Health Monitoring File” ((BhZEf2FRESEEZ) ) was improved
to allow employees to timely understand their health status,
ensuring early prevention of diseases, early treatment if necessary,
and reducing the risk of major illnesses. The filing rate for
employee occupational health records reached 100% during the
Reporting Period.

BEBRERTEE T(BERRERER)  BRIANERES
HREEAMN - MBI EREN - BRFR BRI ARAR ] - #iE
HINE TR EEEREEE100% °
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Equipped with the “Ruisenyun” (J#RZE) safety platform to
achieve automated hazard identification and effectively improve
safety management efficiency;

REBRRE | Z2FE  BERREHEEIIE  ARRSREE
B

Developed the “Special Inspection and Remediation Action Plan
for Major Hazards” ((EX[ZREBZIEFERERTEEMITER)) in
accordance with relevant documents to carry out major hazard
identification and control work;

REMAXHESR  REKEAREZHEERLRTHEMRTR)
FREAREHEEATIE

Conducted occupational hazard factor detection, covering 208
points and 18 types of hazard factors, with a detection rate of
100% for occupational hazard factors; and
FERBEEEERRA - HiBl208E25( - 18BEERT - B
FEERRRAZEI100% :

Conducted regular inspections of special equipment, accessories,
and fire equipment, and equipped with a fire automatic alarm
control system.

EHIRERTIE SR - B BRI AR - AL HDT B B NGRE
e E

Special equipment inspection pass rate: 100%
R EiR e 18E100%

Accessory inspection rate: 100%
2 RERE100%
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e Set up safety propaganda walls and display boards, conduct all-
employee safety awareness training, carry out various safety and
emergency response training plans at all levels, and provide one-
on-one safety education training for employees before they start

their jobs;

*“E?A*{%Hm BiE - TR ERRERHEE  REE
C B RERESEETEREYE HET LEATET ¥ —

’ﬁ%&sj 5=Fal

e Formulate the “2023 Safety Production Month Activity Plan”
(€2023F 24 E AEEHZE) ) and conduct more than 12
innovative propaganda activities, including collecting safety
slogans/videos/handwritten reports, distributing safety knowledge

Develop safety awareness promotional materials, and organizing all-employee hidden

BEEHIEE danger inspection competitions;

HEC023FLEEEAEBTER) BRI AFRRI126HE

BEEY - BRLTRIEE/GE FOREE  2AHEERE

W 2ERBHEHES

e Conduct “Fire Safety Month” activities to comprehensively
enhance employees’ fire safety awareness; and

FRDENEGA RS 2MIERE TEH X228

e Provide on-site training for relevant parties, sign safety and
environmental protection agreements, and effectively control
outsourcing risks;

HBREETEREN - FIIRERRME - AREEZRING

G o
ZoN

e Form a part-time emergency rescue team consisting of 30
members, including retired soldiers, retired firefighters, and
physically fit employees;

IRIRT R - RIRBEMAE - HSREERIE THEKI0AN
FRELE S RUE S

e Organize multiple emergency drills, including fire, radiation,
mechanical injuries, and confined space emergencies, and
conduct on-site response scenario simulations, emergency rescue
competitions, and other activities. Achieve a completion rate of
100% for drills, with approximately 700 participants, to enhance
employees’ emergency response and coordination abilities in
handling unexpected events.

BRCETTHED - ]S WIEE AREHESFZHEEER -
SRENRER  BoSBELRESZEES - /;ﬁ%ﬂ;z,ﬁﬂmﬁ%$
100% - é&ﬂu/\?x#@mo/\ B TRIEREZMFHESMR
5E
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Safety production work of the Company

NELEEEMRBTIE

Development and training

The Group aims to build a management, technical, and operational
team that strongly identifies with the Company’s culture, actively
practices its values, and synchronizes with the Company’s
development as a strategic objective. To enhance the Company's
talent density, improve talent management systems, and promote
scientific, standardized, and systematic talent development, the
company has developed a talent pool operation plan. Through
exploration, the Company has established internal and external
training mechanisms for professional talents, continuously improved
talent development management systems, and enhanced the
systematic and targeted nature of talent cultivation.

The Company divides employee career development into two
categories: managerial and technical. Through annual talent
assessments, talent management improvement projects, GPI
personality interpretations, 360-degree evaluations, etc.,
personalized career planning is provided for employees, allowing
them to “re-discover themselves” and facilitate self-evolution. It
adheres to hierarchical development, using mentor-apprentice
systems, mentorship, and other methods to fully utilize the “passing
on and helping” role of middle and senior managers and technical
personnel, accelerating the enhancement of individual professional
capabilities. Within the entire organization, the focus remains on
the goal of applying what is learned, continuously optimizing the
“learning organization construction” model. Through collective
learning, sharing experiences, and using motivation, promotion, and
leadership as levers, an organizational atmosphere of “learn what's
missing, do what's needed” is created from top to bottom.

el

AEESITE-XRERRAX BEERTX
b~ EOAERFERNER - KM RIEKMAIE
RATNEEER - REARFATEE @ =&
AT ERER  REARBEL - R - B
LETAT BEER - ARFEAT MEL TIE
R ERERPEKREZAT AN REEH
B FEREATHETERR  REeATESR
B R AEFIET I HE

AR B TRIERRE D AE BN ME MR E
Bh o BBEBFOASTRE AT ERIEIIA
B - GPHEMEAZE - 360RIFF S R B THREME M
fEMBELERS - FRETIEHAMEC ] B
hBaFtl  BRBAEE  RAGMEESH
BEREENR  ANBEPGEEREMT SR
BT ABWMEES ER - RS AT BEEE
MRS - EEBHEN - EEEES2ABANE
B FHEE(C EFNEGER BN - BEKR
BE . LEEERR - AMEIHEEMEEEE
RF - B L T ITE RIS - g2
MAEEESE
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During the Reporting Period, the Company formulated an annual
talent training implementation plan, determined the training idea
with the theme of “borrowing things to repair people”, and at the
same time, with the personal IDP self-development plan and special
topics as the main line, and the high-level and middle-level dual
tutor tutoring mode was operated, the IDP self-development plan
for 27 students was established, and the progress of the IDP plan
and special topics of the students was tested through phased PK
activities, and the next step of promotion and improvement was
clarified.

Furthermore, the Company has established a comprehensive
training system covering all employees. It has formulated the
“Regulations on the Management of Employee Training” ({& T
EHNIEERFE)) and “the Code of Work for The Implementation
of Training Organizations” ({IFFILEEHE TIER%E) ), and the
“Training Organization Implementation Work Norms” to provide
institutional guarantees for employee career development. During
the Reporting Period, leveraging the HR training platform, the Group
created rich, flexible, and diverse training courses for employees.
Specialized management training such as TPM, 6S, and team-
building exercises were also organized offline. Additionally, to
familiarize new employees with the company’s work environment as
quickly as possible, we provided various training programs including
corporate culture, rules and regulations, confidentiality awareness,
environmental health and safety, intellectual property rights,
job skills, management procedures, and operational processes.
In addition to offline safety training, approximately 450 training
programs were completed throughout the year.

BEHA > RAGEFEATHRERNER
ETUMEEEA IR ENEE B - RENUE
ADDPERERE  FERBAEIR  SE
hELEEHIEHESET  BYT27UER
HIDPE R ERFTE - WS R IEHEIR SR
RPEIDPEI N BHREER - RKHAET—
HRAMBETM -

5 RARVABEEEEMEIIRE - FIEA
(EIBEIIEERE)MUSNNABE R TIER
) WHEEEAE THRERRRERRE - &K
SHIREBHRIEIF G - AEBERETITET

ANREE - BEAZTEREIIRE /T

HHERTPM ~ 65« MRIIREZEE R [
FAENETIERAEAKETIERE  BMA
FETREPECE L - HEHE - REE
% RBREELTS - MEEE  BARE T
BRBERREEANNSIEED - BRET L2
BEION » 2 F HEEH SR 44508 5T & -
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Case Study: Individual Development Plan (IDP) Training
R4l : 1DPEEF

Building on the “Deep Blue Plan” and “Young Blue Plan” in 2022, during the Reporting Period, the Company
conducted in-depth IDP training. This training utilized various methods such as intensive workshops, external mentors
+ executive mentors + 1-on-1 coaching with students, and action-based learning. The focus was on analyzing
students’ self-awareness of their personalities and identifying personalized communication points. Based on students’
interests, development goals, strengths, areas for improvement, and other factors, multidimensional communication,
confirmation, and optimization were conducted to help students create the most suitable personalized IDP plan. This
approach aimed to promote the sustainable development of both individual employees and the Company as a whole.
1E2022FF [REETE A BEERT &I I ARG | - SREHEAAQ FIR AR EIDP(Individual Development Plan + {E A
EREDFN - RAKI - NS BE+SEBM+ 281 HURERHE THEBFHN - RASNBENHER
RAMEMCEREER  BREZENEE  BRAR BZIK FRAENE  SHEETER  ERINE
1t - BHHEEHIEHEENEMLIDPREFRE - DME#ES TEAAR D REKA AT FEERE

~

—— — — ——
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Case Study: Total Productive Maintenance (TPM) Management Enhancement Project
=6 TPMEERAIEE

From September 2022 to July 2023, the Company conducted and completed a TPM Management enhancement
project. The entire project was goal-oriented and focused on specific topics. With the support of a three-tier
organizational structure and bi-level meetings, TPM training was provided to all frontline employees. This initiative
resulted in the creation of various management documents such as the “AM1~AM3 Promotion Manual,” “Defect
Handling Process,” and “Equipment Operating Rate Improvement Guide.” These documents effectively increased the
operational efficiency of ail pipelines and reduced equipment failure rates. Additionally, mutual learning, witnessing,
and promotion among the learning groups significantly improved the management and technical capabilities of
group members. This initiative provided assurance for building a proficient professional team and establishing
long-term lean management groups within the Company.

R20225F9 A F2023%7 8 © A aIFEI K T TPME I (Total Productive Maintenance)i2 78 B o Z&{&E B LA
BIEREM  AREANF @ E=RAHBERE  MANENAGRKRET - MAE —F8 THETTPMEI - X
CAMT ~AM3HEE FAD <<TE¥£§*%J‘%EEMLE>> (RBEEERERESZHBTEXM - ARRARHER
BRIEHEE  BERBHREEX - AR - R2F/MACZEHEESE  RENES - NMEAKENERREHMEER
fiTee W RMRIRTT - RITHE Lﬂj%ii?%@f% B RAES B/ MERRMH T RE o

Case Study: Soft Skills Development Training
= REARIIK

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to explore different forms of talent development, focusing on
both internal cultivation and external talent acquisition, to solidly promote the training of middle management teams.
The Company organized team-building training activities for middle management and university students, including
experiences like “Thunderstorm,” “Team Engineer,” “Invincible Dice,” and “Energy Transfer.” These experiential
training sessions were designed to boost team morale and enhance employees’ sense of responsibility, communication
skills, innovation mindset, and teamwork spirit. They also stimulated everyone’s planning and critical thinking abilities.
Overall, these activities contributed to the implementation of corporate culture and the improvement of cross-
departmental collaboration and service quality.

HRERA - RAFERRTARANATEESR - S0 5|RE - ?L%Tﬁi&%ﬁﬁ:ﬁ%ﬁiiﬁ% FREEEEA
BMABERRIRES @ BEHETER  BEEITEM  BERT  ASEESREREI HBEF LR -
FERIETIEETHEEER  BRER A SR ERSEES  UABEARNKENBEZ4 ) - RED
EXeET KRB BTG RRSmERTT -
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Case Study: 6S Management Enhancement Project
RA - 6SEEREHEE

During the Reporting Period, to enhance the management capabilities of our teams, we invited an external consulting
firm to provide guidance and conducted a 6S Management Enhancement Project. This project assessed the
management standards of the site across six dimensions: sorting, setting in order, clean, clear, quality, and safety.

The goal was to promote refined management within the teams and gradually improve the abilities of the team
leaders on-site. Simultaneously, the project addressed tools, methods, and personnel mindset issues encountered
during the implementation of 6S at the working level. This initiative aimed to establish a robust team evaluation
mechanism.

BEHR - REOEVHABIRR NI - BHFBFEINEHARRRERES - R TSERRAER - BARE
BIE B/ BR  RE - RENERERFEIRISHNEIRKE - (BUtHEEAABAER - BFRARSIHT
HRRIERS - REAREEIEECSHERNTERTNIER HERABBBEEHE  2U@2ITEZE
el o
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During the Reporting Period, there are a total of 1,658 employees of
the Group received training. with a total of 73,569 training hours.
The following is a statistical table of employee training:

18T

WEHRE - AEBXIIABILE,658A
I B A73,569/ N\ AT A8 TIFFIFET* -

Percentage of Average

employees training hours
trained per employee
(%) (hours)
B£ER
FIMELE T2 FI B
Training ZIER (%) (/NEF)
By Gender X by
Male 5 100 44
Female o8 100 47
By employment category RERERE S
Senior management SRERAS 100 121
Middle management RRERAE 100 67
Others EEAB 100 43
Supply Chain Management HrEgEEE
The Group adheres to the principle of quality first and attaches great ARNEFEBRSTEEFE—WRE]  SEEREFEER
importance to sustainable supply chain management. To standardize  1FHEEIE - AR HERIZE « 718 - EENE

supplier selection, evaluation, training, elimination, and nurture
competitive and sustainable suppliers, we have formulated internal
policies such as the “Supplier Management Policy” (/& E 12
#%Y) and “Procurement Control Procedures” ( (EEEEIEHIFER))
During the Reporting Period, we have improved supplier selection
and ESG management matters to ensure strict compliance with
requirements in selecting and managing suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, after statistical analysis, we identified
a total of 109 major qualified suppliers (2022: 103), all located in
mainland China. These suppliers underwent evaluations covering
aspects such as supply quality, delivery times, and service quality.

The Group has established a mechanism for supplier stock-
in and exit. Suppliers are classified and managed based on the
materials they supply. We develop supplier development plans for
important materials according to the annual production plan and
the current supplier list, and then select suppliers based on these
plans. Leveraging our procurement platform system, we strengthen
communication and supervision with suppliers, conduct regular
evaluations, and ensure that suppliers have the ability to provide
products and services that meet the Company’s requirements.

K BEAEHFINOAIFEERMERS - 1M
HIEC R B IR DR ) R CRIB IR B2 Fr ) A ED
BR - YRS RS & ERESGEE
FH  BREBREERIELEIRHER -

MEHM - KHEHE - TEAREEF 109K
(20224 : 103%R) » B EBALAFRE AL - HREHE
NEEISETREREES - RERRE - kiEx

BEHE -

AEERT B HEREARR LS - RHEHEY
BHHBHETOM N HEE  BRFELE
eI R EEIIREN - SIEERYEHERR
BHER WIS RETHREANER - BIEPK
AERBET e R BHEEERMES  E
Hi e 1T RE ﬁﬁﬂ%{%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁh%ﬁi
NRIRE BRAEmMIMRIEEEES
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Supplier Stock-in, Review, and Exit

HEREEA « T > FE - BRHRE

Undergo strict screening, with specific requirements for quality, safety, environmental protection,

Supplier Assessment

HererER iz
el

Supplier Review

HERHERIER

,

Supplier Exit
HERR L

the quality and safety requirement.

(ORI T LOBA

Supplier ESG Management

We prioritize the sustainable development of our supply chain,
particularly in Supplier management. We encourage suppliers to
adopt environmentally friendly production methods, reduce resource
consumption and environmental pollution, and gradually require
suppliers to obtain certifications for quality, occupational health, and
environmental management systems. We integrate ESG principles
into their business management and operations. Currently, we
require suppliers to sign a “Compliance Commitment Letter” ([&
AEAFEE]), requiring them to comply with ESG management
requirements such as product quality, labor standards, environmental
management, and ethical business conduct. Each supplier commits
to and assumes corresponding corporate social responsibilities.
During the Reporting Period, we conducted two special training
sessions on Green Supply Chain and Anti-Corruption, with a total of
over 300 participants. Additionally, we issued an ESG questionnaire
survey to key suppliers to preliminarily assess their ESG performance
and have begun implementing Green Supply Chain management
practices.

BN TREITH B TAR

and other professional management and qualification documents for new suppliers; and
FRREREATECUER - HHIBNES 22 RREUXEBMEEER
Implement classified management for different types of suppliers and require specific permission documents for special materials.

ST RRAM A T RER - SERE RS ERRTAIX

Conduct an investigation on the information provided by suppliers and complement it with onsite inspection according to

IR RAE R AR TR  SHMRAMERETRS - WHATHER - IWRRRBIFAIERTIEST -
B [ hERR] - SRR AR -
Conduct annual evaluations of suppliers and compile a list of qualified suppliers, based on the suppliers’ performance;
RBANEREEE R MRS ENERERE SRR ETE - ARARMTRE
Guide the suppliers, that fail to meet the requirement, to formulate corrective measures for their products and services,
track and verify the effectiveness of these corrective measures;
AR ERE - RGP IR A S S RS T P RARTE BB A - WO RERMEERHE ¢
Promote management requirements to suppliers of the Company to encourage suppliers to obtain certification related to
quality assurance, occupational health, and environmental management systems. Thereby enhancing the combated assurance capabilities.

FHERE EARISRERER - #BHREETER  BERFEORAEREARE - G BANREED -

Upon approval, eliminate the suppliers which fail to fulfill contracts, meet quality, safety, environmental protection,
anti-corruption requirements, engage in illegal activities, or meet rating requirement.
THEMREE Z2RIR - REESER - BRERUNHRERAREERAHERS -

REBESGEE
BfTEREENFEER - THERESGE
BHE - RS EHEERREGRREETN © &
REREREFIRE 5L - WiEkS Bk EmEE T
e BERRERREEEREZRE  BESGHE
SRMAHERETEMEES - BRRMIERMHE
AR AREARE] EREETERESE - &
THA  REEENUNEERERTEESGER
TRk SHEFYEABTEEHENCELSE
£ - REMH - ZRMMEERARE TSRt EE
DUERESMEEEBE - 25200 AX30084
A AR EEHEREHESGRERAE « 92
TEREFERIESGRIR - B FREITARCEER
BIE o
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Case Study: Building a New Model for Collaboration and Development in the Refractory
Materials Sector

B BEM AR EFHSERRHES

During the Reporting Period, the Group signed a strategic cooperation agreement with RHI Magnesita (China) co.
[td. Building upon the foundation of supply chain cooperation, both parties elevated their collaboration to establish a
strategic partnership in the refractory materials sector. This partnership aimed to jointly promote cooperation in various
long-lasting refractory materials for high-end energy equipment, such as magnesia-carbon bricks for smelting, electric
furnaces, ladles, and tundishes, in order to improve production efficiency and product quality.

HRERA > AEFRRZE(FE)ERAFZZERESIERT - EHEHBES (EER LB - £ AMEE
HRTHBESERHBER  HARSSHEREBREEMRBERE BE - 16 - HeSFEM A

REmAEMNEE - J//\hmiﬁxﬂ?ﬂ@uuuu,\

RHI Magnesita is a globally leading manufacturer of refractory materials, with its products widely used in various
industries including steel, cement, non-ferrous metals, and glass. It enjoys a high reputation in both domestic and
international markets. This strategic cooperation focused on various types of refractory materials used in new clean
steelmaking processes, covering six cooperation directions including extending the lifespan of electric furnaces,
technology for steel tapping from electric furnace cones, and temperature measurement technology (Super Brick) for
ladles and tundishes. By leveraging their respective strengths and combining their industry layouts and positioning,
both parties jointly built a new model for collaboration and development in the refractory materials sector.
RESEREHALNMAMBLER  HERBEZEARSRME - K - AESBNBBEANNZET
¥ BEBERINTSZESERGEE - WRAMBSEE&NIZFHM e RATASEMAME  EXEEERRE
Tt BB L OB - e RPEEA DRNRRM(Super Brick)ZF /NRIEAES M - EHRABEERAED
mAERBEXMBNEL - ARBEMAMHERESEERAOMESR -

:z:tiﬂ]:’mi.ﬁi‘ﬁlﬁ
RE(pE)AR2
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Product Responsibility

Corporate culture on quality — Every piece is for the user, every piece
constitutes a market, and every piece creates the brand. One pipe,
one well, one tube, one market.

Product quality is the lifeblood of an enterprise. At Dalipal, we
adhere to the philosophy of continuous improvement, along with
a rigorous and meticulous approach, in strict compliance with laws
and regulations related to product health and safety, labelling, and
privacy matters, including but not limited to the Product Quality Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({F#ZEARKEFBEEREEX)),
the Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China ({# % AR LA
BIRR)A#)) and the Hong Kong Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap.486) (BHBENIFA86E (BB FAER (ALFR) 15&H1) ) etc. We
firmly regard quality as our business card and believe that products
reflect our integrity. We consistently implement comprehensive
quality management, exercising strict control over product quality
through full-team, full-process, and full-element approaches.

Continuously Improving Quality Management System

The Group continuously improves the quality management
system, strengthens product quality supervision and control,
enhances the quality awareness of all employees, and promotes
the standardization of quality. With the aim of ensuring product
quality, safety performance, and enhancing customer satisfaction,
we have formulated a quality policy of “Quality First, Customer
Foremost; Continuous Improvement, Striving for Excellence;
Providing First-Class Products and Services to Customers.” We have
established comprehensive quality management systems such as the
“Quality Risk Identification, Assessment, and Control Management
Procedure” ( {mERZR - FHEEZEHIEIRIERX) ) to identify
and assess risks and opportunities in raw material procurement,
product manufacturing, and product testing processes. This ensures
that quality risks are manageable during the product production
process. Through training, meetings, and publicity efforts, we
communicate these quality standards to all employees, fostering a
quality culture of “Customer-Centric, Market-Oriented, and Brand-
Building” at every level. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not experience any serious violations of quality management-related
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.

RE - HERERRS
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The Company has obtained certifications for its quality management
systems, including APl Q1, ISO quality management system, and
product certifications such as API 5CT/API 5L, and API 5DP from the
American Petroleum Institute. These certifications ensure product
quality through system construction and implementation of lean
production principles. The Company’s testing and experimental
center has been accredited by the China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), providing a quality
guarantee for high-quality and high-performance product
manufacturing. In 2023, the Company was honored with accolades
such as “Hebei Province Manufacturing — Single-item Champion
Enterprise,” “Hebei Province Integrity Enterprise,” and “Enterprise
credit rating certificate AAA” for its outstanding achievements.

T R T

NaRBEISAPI QIESEEEZRE - 150
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During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to improve and
unify the job operation standards, enhance the monitoring efforts,
and promote the establishment of quality system management
thinking among all employees to ensure the effective operation
of the quality system. During the Reporting Period, the internal
and external APl Q1 quality management system certification
and ISO quality management system certification audit were
completed, and 15 quality improvement tasks were carried out.
Establish an enterprise standard quality control system, focus on
the characteristics of product structure, and complete Q/DLP 104-
2023 “DLP80S/SS, DLP90S/SS, DLP95S/SS Anti-sulfur Oil Casing —
“this year Technical Conditions for Delivery” and QDLP-002-2023
“Seamless Steel Pipes for Trenchless Drill Pipe Body” were recorded,
and participated in the formulation of the industry standard YB/T
6068-2022 “Technical Specification for Oxygen Supply for Electric
Arc Furnace Steelmaking”, which was officially released and
implemented in April 2023.
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Maintain product competitiveness

To maintain the competitiveness and brand value of the Group,
we focus on market and customer demands, benchmark against
industry leaders, continuously optimize processes, enhance product
quality, actively drive technological innovation, and improve
manufacturing techniques. We also apply for intellectual property
rights for our seamless steel pipe products and manufacturing
technologies. We actively promote supply chain management with a
comprehensive system for supplier stock-in, review, and assessment.
This ensures quality control throughout the entire process, constantly
selecting excellent suppliers to ensure our products are made from
high-quality materials. We continuously strengthen the management
of raw material procurement, promote quality warnings, share
information, and supervise in real-time to enhance the quality of
raw materials through an effective management system. During
the Reporting Period, we successfully obtained certification
from international petroleum companies and were included in
the supplier lists of Sonatrach S.P.A., the largest oil company in
Africa, and Sumitomo Corporation in Japan. This demonstrates
the international recognition of our brand in the global market.
Furthermore, breakthrough progress has been made in the research
and development as well as sales of new products, enriching our
product portfolio and enhancing the competitiveness of the Dalipal
brand.
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Efficiency Improvement for Customers
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Case Study: Economical Corrosion-resistant Oil Casing Contributes to Cost Reduction and

The Company conducted customized product design based on the corrosion conditions of coalbed methane,
developing economical corrosion-resistant oil casings DLP80-2Cr and DLP80-3Cr. Among them, the 3Cr material
anti-corrosion oil casing underwent a pilot test from Well 2-58 to Well 3 in the Xinzhou Gas Management Area. The
low-chromium alloy material anti-corrosion oil casing achieved excellent results during on-site evaluation, with the
corrosion rate reduced by 89%. The expected service life increased from the 80 days recorded for N8O oil casings to
approximately 280 days, assisting PetroChina’s coalbed methane BaoDe Block in creating a new model of material
anti-corrosion treatment, encompassing “coating, spraying, hot melt, and material” types.
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Case Study: Development and Mass Production of L80-13Cr Oil Pipe
=P L80-13Crh ERMB AT AMELEE

Due to the prominent CO, corrosion failure in gas well exploitation and the increasing demand for 13Cr pipes in CCUS
projects for CO, collection and transportation, the Company embarked on independent research and production
of 13Cr seamless pipe products. Starting with L80-13Cr, the Company explored two manufacturing processes:
one involving pre-heat rolling followed by cold rolling for extended production cycles, and another involving fully
autonomous hot rolling. The Company successfully delivered its first export order of 88.9*6.45 EU L80-13Cr oil pipes,
marking a milestone in its production capabilities.
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Case Study: Company’s Marketing Team Participates in the 2023 Abu Dhabi International
Petroleum Exhibition and Conference (ADIPEC)
6 1 A7) HE S IN20235F fi 46 +1 Lt Bl FR A S & (ADIPEC)

During the Reporting Period, the Company participated in the 2023 Abu Dhabi International Petroleum Exhibition and
Conference (ADIPEC). The booth attracted old clients such as Kuwait Oil Company (“KOC") and Marubeni-ltochu Steel
Inc., as well as internationally renowned oil companies like Saudi Arabian Oil Company (“Saudi Aramco”) and Abu
Dhabi National Oil Company (“ADNOC"). The exhibition was an opportunity to promote and showcase the company’s
excellent image, further consolidating and enhancing the Dalipal brand’s visibility in the international market.
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Corporate culture on service — Anticipate what customers think,
respond promptly to customers’ urgent needs, and meeting
customers’ demands is our eternal goal. We adhere to the belief
that service creates value and strive to enhance service value.

Complaint Handling

The Group is eager to listen to customer feedback as it helps us
understand consumer needs and inspires continuous improvement
in our services and products. To achieve this, we have established a
customer complaint mechanism to promptly understand customer
demands and feedback. Customers can provide feedback to
the Group through verbal communication, phone calls, emails,
faxes, visits, or other means. The Marketing Center has set up a
Sales Objection Ledger in accordance with the “Sales Objection
Management Regulations” ({$HEEZEEIET)) to record and
analyze various issues raised by customers, create case studies,
and disseminate them to employees for learning purposes. If any
substandard products are identified, they will be recalled and
processed centrally.

During the Reporting Period, we expanded the “technology +
service model” to strengthen technical exchanges and after-sales
service in emerging markets, increased the frequency of technical
exchanges, and improved service effectiveness. We strengthened
the organization of after-sales service, providing timely after-sales
service for key products and first-time customers, tracking and
guiding customers in product usage, and increasing customer trust.
Internally, we focused on improving packaging, loading efficiency,
basic management, and enhancing the professional capabilities
of business personnel. This year, the overall customer satisfaction
score was 97.42, with no complaints received regarding products
or services, and no products requiring recall due to safety or health
reasons.
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External customer complaint handling rate
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Privacy Protection

The Group is well aware of its responsibility to protect customer
personal data and is committed to ensuring customer privacy
throughout the business processes. We handle customer, employee,
data, supplier, and any external partner information with utmost
care. We have established a Confidentiality Management Policy
((RZEEHEY) and the Management Rules of Confidential
Personnel (CHFZABEIEMA)), which clearly stipulate that
customer information should not be disclosed to personnel outside
of their normal duties. It also outlines confidential matters, key
areas of confidentiality, and a list of important personnel involved
in confidentiality, and we instill awareness of confidentiality among
employees through various means.

During the Reporting Period, combined with the requirements of
the Company’s system, we carefully sorted out the relevant business
processes and policies of the confidentiality module, organized all
functional units to carry out confidentiality work and self-inspection
of confidentiality matters, focusing on checking and resetting the
authority of customer information and microdisk files.

The Group has also placed increasing emphasis on information
security. In 2023, the Company formulated a plan for information
security mechanism construction, conducted offensive and defensive
drills and penetration testing on existing information security
mechanisms, initiated data storage and security upgrade projects,
and prioritized protection of network areas where core data is
stored. The entire security mechanism of the Company was divided
into eight zones for management, establishing an information
security zone management mechanism. Additionally, the external
network boundary firewall was enabled with intrusion defense
and antivirus features to detect and block intrusion attempts and
malicious code. A data backup integrated machine was deployed to
regularly backup core data to prevent data loss. For all information
systems published on the external network, VPN encryption channels
and HTTPS encryption protocols were added to ensure data integrity
and confidentiality.

If anyone is found to have disclosed customer confidential
information without authorization, we will impose strict disciplinary
measures, and in severe cases, termination of employment may be
considered.
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Intellectual Property Rights

The Group recognizes that intellectual property is an intangible
asset obtained through the efforts of others, and therefore, we
actively protect intellectual property to ensure that we will not be
involved in infringement cases. The Group has obtained GBT 29490-
2013 Intellectual Property Management System certification and
has established policies such as the “Intellectual Property Rights
Management Control Procedures” ((HE#EIEEHIEF))
and the Intellectual Property Rights Operation Control Procedures
(IS EREETTIEHIT2E) ) to maintain and safeguard intellectual
property. During the Reporting Period, the Group applied for 29
patents, acquired 13 new patents, and obtained 5 new software
copyrights. We also received honors such as the “National
Intellectual Property Advantageous enterprises”, and we are aware
that any major intellectual property-related matters have not had an
impact on the Company.

Innovation Incentives

The Group adheres to the belief that “innovation is the source of
development and the main theme of enterprise development,”
embracing openness, keeping pace with the times, proactively
seeking change, and adapting to changes. We continuously improve
the innovation system, vigorously collect and promote innovative
initiatives in technology, management, and other aspects, persist in
technological innovation, and promote quality improvement.

In order to fully mobilize the innovation initiative and enthusiasm
of employees and reward employees and teams who have made
outstanding contributions to scientific and technological innovation,
the Company has increased investment in innovation incentives,
established management documents such as “Management
Innovation Implementation Measures” ({EIRAIFE iIH%)) and
“Scientific and Technological Innovation Management Measures”
(CBHEZAIFREIRYE) ), and submitted a total of 236 rationalization
suggestions and 24 management improvement projects in 2023.
During the Reporting Period, we built and continuously optimized
the “innovation incubation platform” for all employees, continuously
stimulated the innovation vitality of employees, promoted the
transformation of innovation achievements, continued to create
an innovation atmosphere for full participation, comprehensively
improved the Company’s technology and management level, and
helped the Company to innovate and develop new momentum.
In 2023, a total of 502 proposals were received for the innovation
incubation platform.
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Case Study: Optimization of the “Zhangjianji increases wall thickness” Process Shows
Effective Results

RO REMIEE TEE/EBRAK

In 2023, the Company combined the product structure and fully utilized the characteristics of continuous rolling
production line technology to explore a rolling process suitable for high yield of medium and thick-walled pipes.
This initiative aimed to reduce material loss and eliminate ineffective material waste. As a result, the yield rate of the
5-1/2 series oil casing products increased by more than 1.5%, and the average yield rate of oil cylinder tube products
improved by approximately 2%. The optimization of the wall thickness increase rolling process not only enhanced the
yield rate but also reduced manufacturing costs. It provided more adjustment directions for the company’s small-batch
contract production processes and enhanced the flexibility of production organization and on-site operation rates.
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Case study: Self-developed Dalipal Visitor Management System
RO BEHRERNEBTERS

To improve the efficiency of visitor access card processing, we systematically identified issues in the paper-based entry-
exit card application, production, usage, and retrieval processes. Starting in November 2022, the Company launched
the “Visitor Management System — External Visitor Entry-Exit Information Management Enhancement Project.” This
system is based on an Internet WEB architecture platform, developed using the ThinkPHP5 backend framework and
LayUl frontend framework. It integrates both mobile and PC platforms, enabling end-to-end management of visitor
applications, approval, and entry-exit processes during the Reporting Period.
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Intelligent Manufacturing

The Group values innovation-driven development and follows
the path of quality development, implementing manufacturing
intelligence and digital management. It is committed to integrating
new-generation industrial Internet technologies, deeply integrating
cutting-edge technologies such as 5G, Internet of Things (loT),
cloud computing, big data, and artificial intelligence (Al), to achieve
customized, flexible, and green manufacturing. This includes
creating dark factories, digital twin factories, and green factories to
comprehensively enhance the Company’s overall competitiveness
and core competitiveness.
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Case study: Songbo System Optimization and Upgrade
=0 MERFEECAR

In 2022, the Company independently developed the Songbo System and continued to optimize it during the
Reporting Period. Detailed analysis was conducted on data such as system inspection overtime information, equipment
abnormal occurrences, personnel inspection anomaly hit rates, and inspection cycles. In response to various needs,
the system’s daily and weekly reporting functionalities were enhanced, allowing it to automatically push analyzed
data to relevant personnel’s enterprise WeChat accounts on time. This improvement provides strong data support for
equipment management, ensuring the accuracy and timeliness of management decisions. These measures contribute
to fully unleashing the potential of the Songbo System and enhancing the efficiency and precision of equipment
management.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company obtained “National
Green Factory”. It possesses the first intelligent pipe turnover
warehouse in Asia, four sets of intelligent coupling thread processing
units, an intelligent processing production line for oil casing, and
various automatic inspection equipment. Additionally, it has a data
command center to monitor the operation status and production
data of all production lines in real time, effectively supporting the
Company’s efficient and intelligent operation. During the Reporting
Period, the Company carried out intelligent transformation for
scrap steel measurement and grading, improving the efficiency and
accuracy of scrap steel inspection.
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Case Study: Launch of Intelligent Scrap Steel Grading System

The Company'’s previous scrap steel grading mainly relied on visual inspection and auxiliary tools for measurement,
lacking objective, consistent, and digital detection methods. Additionally, due to the diverse types and complex shapes
of purchased scrap steel, there were hidden risks in quality control and low inspection efficiency. To improve accuracy,
efficiency, and working conditions for employees, the Company actively introduced an intelligent scrap steel grading
system. Through remote operation and monitoring, the system enables automatic vehicle allocation and tracking,
automatic photo analysis and grading, automatic impurity removal and grading, and automatic generation of
grading reports sent to the ERP system, while also featuring data traceability functionality. The deployment of this
system significantly reduces the labor intensity of employees and promotes safe, precise, and efficient operation
in scrap steel inspection work.
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Case Study: Development of Autonomous Scrap Steel Weighing System

RE| - BEMRBERHEBTERS

In 2023, the Company identified that the existing scrap steel weighing system was manual and required operators
to perform operations. After a comprehensive analysis of the entire scrap steel loading and weighing process, as well
as an in-depth analysis of weighbridge operator positions, the Company decided to develop an autonomous scrap
steel loading and weighing system with unmanned operation. The system is an H5 application developed based
on JavaScript + ASP.Net Core, and it achieved synchronized display across multiple device terminals for the first
time. The system automatically records the start time, end time, net weight per load, and total weight of each
load during the loading process. It also generates documents in the background, automatically calculates the
total weight per furnace, and calculates the total weight of loading for each month, reducing the time required
for electric furnace and logistics accounting. Utilizing MongoDB database, the system ensures synchronized
operations across multiple devices, with consistent content display and real-time synchronization of operations
among all devices.
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Community investment

Practice public welfare and charity

The Group regards contributing to society as one of its focus areas
and has been consistently giving back to the community, fostering
harmonious development with residents. We strive to contribute
to projects that promote community development, hire sustainable
development professionals for expert advice, and assist in planning
activities related to environmental and social responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively participated
in various public welfare activities, including employee mutual
assistance one-day donations, voluntary blood donations, donations
on "99" public welfare days, donations to disaster areas, volunteer
services, and more. The total amount donated amounted to
RMB108,300.
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Case Study: Employee Mutual Assistance One-Day Donation

=0 BIEB—HBHE

The Group's labor union organized the “Employee Mutual Assistance One-Day Donation” activity, actively mobilizing
all employees to generously donate and show their love and care. A total of RMB66,450 was raised and fully handed
over to the Cangzhou Bohai New Area General Union to assist families of employees facing difficulties. Every small
contribution adds up to a great act of kindness. The Company will continue to carry out “Employee Mutual Assistance
One-Day Donation” and other social welfare activities, bringing warmth and assistance to more families in need and
embodying the corporate mission of “creating harmony for society” through practical actions.
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i Case Study: Over 100 “Oil Blue” Employees Donate Over 30,000 Milliliters of Blood
RO BRRE] AHE IRERNEIBZEA

On 14 June 2023, which marked the 20th World Blood Donor Day, the Company organized a voluntary blood
donation activity. More than 110 employees enthusiastically signed up, and the cumulative total of blood donated
reached 30,800 milliliters. At the event, under the guidance of medical personnel, everyone proceeded in an orderly
manner to donate blood on the blood donation vehicle. Among the blood donors were both “rookies” participating
for the first time and “veterans” who had donated blood multiple times. They rolled up their sleeves, clenched their
fists, and contributed their humble efforts to the relay of life.
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Case Study: National Volunteer Day Special Event
RO BREHEEBEEEE

To promote the spirit of “dedication, friendship, mutual assistance, and progress” and to unite the strength of
volunteer services, the Company’s labor union collaborated with the Gangcheng District Work Department to carry out
various heartwarming volunteer service activities. These activities included comforting special children, environmental
cleaning initiatives, assisting students on the streets, and more.

RENGIER - KE - BB - EX NERSE  REERRGNE AR ISEFERRERTIENRET
BERERRE  RFFE  TERHBSEZEROERRE TS -

Case Study: Showing Care for Firefighter “Blue Friends” — August 1st Warmth and Comfort
RO BREBIERR ] \—EEROME

In order to ensure the safety of people’s lives and property, firefighters bravely fought on the frontlines despite the
scorching heat. As the August 1st Army Day approached, the Company organized a “Welcoming August 1st”
summer coolness event to express gratitude to the Cangzhou Bohai New Area Shuhangang Road Fire Station. Both
sides hope to achieve further cooperation and mutual benefit in the joint construction of firefighting enterprises by
conducting on-site firefighting drills, firefighting training, safety production lectures, etc.

RERBEREGVELZS BB EEEHRSEHAE & £\~ |BEHREZRF - RrREENA—IEH
FERRE - RAMNDERERER B XA B AR - RN EHT 5 2R RARERREHEER - B
B - REAEEANZERS  MEERETAE —SEREGERR -
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Appendix 1: Key Performance Index

B 8% 1 E BRI ISR

Category
el

Index

EE

2023 2022
20235 20224

Corporate
Governance
TEER

Board Diversity
BEEgz it

Executive directors (%)

HITESH(%)

55.6 55.6

Non-executive directors (%)

FEMITE AL (%)

Independent non-executive directors (%)

B IFRITERIEL(%)

333 33.3

Gender (%)
1% 51(%)

— Male

—~ B

77.8 77.8

— Female

-zt

22.2 22.2

Compliance Management and Anti-corruption

EREBRREH

Anti-corruption Training Coverage (%)
R &5 2 R (%)

100 100

Concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices (Cases) 0 0

BEISRARMTEREE (1)

Penalty (ten thousand RMB)
BER(BTARKE)

Environment
RIR

Pollutants

SR

Air Emissions?

SR BB

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (tonnes)
RAEI(NOX) (1)

31.77 33.96

Sulfur oxides (SOx) (tonnes)

&L H(SOX) (188)

0.95 1.70

Particulate matter (PM) (tonnes)

Fanry) (g )

48.52 39.54

3 In order to improve the consistency and comparability of the data, the emission
data for 2022 (including nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides and particulate matter)

have been relisted according to the actual situation.

3

REFTEEN —BUIE R AT - 2022 F 8 U BUE
(BEREMLY  HEyRENY) ERERIBERED -
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Category
5

Index

B

2023
20235

2022
20225

Environment
RIE

Sewage discharge

BRI BBk

Sewage (m3)

REKE (S 77K)

3,219.52

2,505.75

Waste
EEEY

Total Hazardous Waste (tonnes)
BEREEDBE(NE)

8,063.69

9,011.19

Hazardous Waste Intensity (tonnes/revenue in million RMB) 2.09

BEBERYEE W,/ BETAREKRES)

2.13

Total Non-Hazardous Waste (solid waste) (tonnes)*

EEERYEE(EREY) (N

71,620.82

76,778.94

Non-hazardous waste density (tonnes/revenue in million RMB)* 18.60

BEBRZRYEE MR,/ BETAREK)

18.16

Water Resources

XEIR

Total water consumption (m3)

FEKE (IZT7K)

674,260.39

659,980.00

Intensity (m3/revenue in million RMB)

BEGITK/ BETARER:)

175.13

156.10

Energy consumption

BERFER

Total energy consumption (GWh)
gEREREAE(FRE)

961.08

1,026.46

Intensity (GWh/revenue in million RMB)
TR (FRE /B8 TARERE)

0.25

0.24

Total natural gas consumption (GWh)
KARFEEAE (TR

488.29

515.32

Total gasoline consumption (GWh)
FURBREBE (FEE)

0.41

0.29

Total diesel fuel Consumption (GWh)
SomERERs (FEF)

1.4

1.55

Total Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) (GWh)

BRI AHR(E )

0.03

0.04

Total purchased electricity consumption (GWh)

SNBE N EREEE (FRE)

470.95

509.26

4 In order to improve the consistency and comparability of the data, the data and
density of harmless waste in 2022 have been rearranged according to the actual

situation

¢ REAEBS B RAT - 20220 M EEEEYE

BREECHERBRES
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ZHETAE(A)

Category Index 2023 2022
HERI EE 2023F 20225
Environment Greenhouse Gas Emission (GHG)
BiE BERE
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes COze) 98,518.15 103,589.58
ERAEREIHNE (BEN)(M_StiE=
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) (tonnes CO2e) 268,583.62 295,878.97
SEREEREREYR(EE2) (M —E(tixEE
Total (tonnes) 367,101.77 399,468.55
a2 (M)
Intensity (tonnes/revenue in million RMB) 95.35 94.49
mEME BT ARBKE)
Social Employee composition
HE EI&S
Total number of employees 1,658 1,777
BTHAZ(AN)
— Mainland China 1,652 1,770
—FRE A
—Hong Kong 6 7
—&8
Employment Type
BTIEREER
Full-time (number of employees) 1,658 1,777
2BET AZ(A)
Part-time (number of employees) 0 0
FBETAH(A)
- By Gender
—ETMHEE D
Male (number of employees) 1,346 1,456
BHEETAZ(A)
Female (number of employees) 312 321




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Annual Report 2023 FF3k

RIE - HEBREAR

wE

Category
5

Index

B

2023
20235

2022
20225

Social

HE

- By Age Group
- BIFRED

18-30 (number of employees)

18-307%(A)

486

519

31-40 (number of employees)
31-405%(A)

666

705

41-50 (number of employees)

41-505%(A)

382

414

51 or above (number of employees)

S51RaUA E(A)

124

139

Employee Turnover rate

BIRKE

Total turnover rate (%)
KR (%)

18

10

- By Geographical Region
—BETEHES

— Mainland China (%)
— AN E T (%)

18

10

— Hong Kong (%)
—BEBE T (%)

- By Gender
- BIMRIES

— Male (%)
—BHE T (%)

18

— Female (%)
— B T (%)

15

- By Age Group
—BIFRED

—18-30 (%)
—18-305%(%)

31

—31-40 (%)
—31-405%(%)

14

—41-50 (%)
—41-505%(%)

— 51 or above (%)

=515 A (%)

14

Employees returning to work and retaining jobs after

maternity/paternity leave rate (%)
ERR/TEERE LR TEFRRE T 8 THHI(%)

100

100
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— XM B THHIE(%)

Category Index 2023 2022
HERI EE 2023F 20225
Social Occupational Health
e BEEE
Employee occupational health inspection rate (%) 100 100
BTRIREREERE(%)
Employee occupational health monitoring management 100 100
files establishment rate (%)
B TR EREEERETR(%)
Occupational hazards in the workplace detection rate (%) 100 100
ERIG B ERETEAZRAE(%)
Employee social security coverage rate (%) 100 100
BTHERBBEE(%)
Employee Training
BT
Total training hours (hour) 73,569 70,574
RS R (/N )
Average training hours (hour) 44 40
AR & (/)N )
— Senior management training hours (hour) 121 212
—BREBABFIIRR(NE)
— Middle management training hours (hour) 67 109
—HhREE AR IR ()
— Other employee training hours (hour) 43 37
—HEABFIIRR(NE)
— Male employee training hours (hour) 44 40
—SMETIHISR ()
— Female employee training hours (hour) 47 38
— M B TIFFIRR ()
Total number of trained employees 1,658 1,777
=HIECYN- (PN
Employee training rate (%) 100 100
B TH55I1%(%)
— Senior management training rate (%) 100 100
—BRERANEEIIE(%)
— Middle management training rate (%) 100 100
—HPRERABEIIE%)
— Other employee training rate (%) 100 100
—EBABHIIE(%)
— Male employee training rate (%) 100 100
— B8 THIIE%)
— Female employee training rate (%) 100 100
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Category Index 2023 2022
Ll BE 2023%F 202245
Social Health and Safety
e BRERZZ2
Work-related fatalities (number of people) 0 0
SERSIARN (N
Work-related fatalities rate (%) 0 0
ETERT (%)
Lost days due to work injury (days) 471 828
EITHEBATIEREH(X)
Licensed operators rate (%) 100 100
TEEABFFFE(%)
Special equipment inspection passing rate (%) 100 100
FRRRERBERE(%)
Special accessories inspection rate (%) 100 100
22 2 M AR SR 2 (%)
Supply Chain Management
i A
Number of suppliers 109 103
HEREE (R)
Number of suppliers by relevant geographical region
HEES S NHEEEAE
— Foreign country 0 0
—BISMR)
— Mainland China 109 103
—BR(R)
Supplier ESG training (number of participants) 312 323
HERIESGEEFIN(AIR)
Product Responsibility
EmEE
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to 0 0
recalls for safety and health reasons (%)
PRl 22 2 B {2 e R ] [ T ) 2 em 2R (%)
Customer complaint rate (%) 100 100
B PR FBERE(%)
Customer satisfactory rate (score) 97.42 97.46
BEFEMERE ()
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Category Index 2023 2022
$HEl BE 2023%F 20224
Social Innovative Development
He RIFTR
Annual patent authorization (number) 13 16
FREENRES(1)
Annual patent application (number) 29 24
FEENEBFE(F)

Community Contribution

HEE R

Tax paid (ten thousand RMB) 14,137 14,503
WHE(BETARE)

Charity (ten thousand RMB) 10.83 18.59
NEHEE(BITARE)
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Appendix 2: Index to Appendix C2 M2 EBHERXBAERAT LS
“Environmental, Social and Governance REMECQORIE - HEREARE

Reporting Guide” to the Listing Requirements  #§5|)Z& 35|
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Subject area Content Chapter/Disclosure
TEHE AES HEREED
Mandatory Disclosure Requirement

BRERERE

Governance A Statement from the board containing the following elements: Sustainability
Structure Governance
EREE (i) disclosure of the board's oversight of ESG issues; AIEFEERER

(i) the board’'s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritize and manage
material ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s
business); and

(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to
the issuer’s business.

MESFHHMNER  EPHE MIAT

() WEEFSHRE ?i“&%?i“%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ”q ;

(i) EFERR L@ REAEIETH MR - BT -
BIXHY R EBEZNIRIER - Zi/\&ﬁ/mﬁ%%ﬂ(@%fj
BITAEBRER)RBIE - K

(i) EFFWAIRERE - Zi@&e./ﬂﬁf'ﬁﬁ’fﬂ AR - WA
A EET AXBARE

Reporting Principles | A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the Reporting Guidelines
E R E A Reporting Principles (materiality, quantitative, and consistency) in | & 248

the preparation of the ESG Report.
RS RERERE - £ RE AR ER (A R ERRA
(BEZM - S —5E) -

Reporting Boundary | A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report | Reporting Period and

EmEE and describing the process used to identify which entities or Scope
operations are included in the ESG report. HMEHRRBE
RERR S RERRENIERDE - MM YEMLL T

EBMARE g REARENBRE -
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Subject area Content Chapter/Disclosure
TEHRE Ak HERSEDS
“Comply or explain” Provision
[ TESTRBRRE R
A. Environmental
AJRIE
Aspect A1: Emissions
ATEERRYD
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
— R E HER
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BREERIOREREEHEN - M/KRTHEEDS - BEREEER
MEEEH
(@ B K
(b) BTHEHETAGERZENRMERLROINER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BREMIERAL e RS AR R BB - HER)
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Emissions
HRENRIERAL2 emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. HEm)
B (HBEN) ReeRREE (BE2) R =REBEBINE (AN HE) &
(WER)ZE -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes) and where appropriate, | Emissions
BRERIERALS intensity. 71935t
FEABEREEMEE(LIEAE) R(WER)EE -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emissions
BRANERALL appropriate, intensity. e
FrEAEEZEZMEE (LT E) R(WER)EE -
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Emissions and Resource
FREMIBIEZEALS them. usage
UM PTR] LAV HENE B IR R IE DS L B IR P EREREY 28K - PeR - BIREA
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Emissions
HRERIEREALE handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps e
taken to achieve them.
HEEEEREZEEYN A - MERTETHRERER
RIED|E L B IRPTEREREY 8K o
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Subject area

E-3

Content
AR

Chapter/Disclosure

HEBREEED

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2EREHA

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water,
and other raw materials.

BRERBR(BIELIR - K REARMEL)HBER -

Resource usage

BIREM

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total (kWh in | Resource usage
B RAMIERA2.1 '000s) and intensity. BRfE A
BFAEIS N EE RAMERARE AT ET RHHE) RE
B
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Resource usage
BRERIERA2.2 BREKERRE o BIRERA
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken Resource usage
Eﬁﬁ%%@ggp«23 to achieve them. ﬁ/ﬁ1§ﬁﬁ
Fe P AT SZ BV BEIR(E A an B R M iE B35 Lk B AR PRERERE 27
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that Resource usage
BERERIEZRA24 is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s), and steps taken to BIREA
achieve them.
Rt SKEGE R /KR SR B AR - ARPAET S8R B AR
NORERE L B RATERI A P8R
KPI A2.5 Total packing material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, Due to the nature of
RRENIERA2.5 if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. the Group’s business,

KT A BEMEREE (LA E) & (ER ) 8 £ EBL1h

=
=N

packaging material used
for finished products is
not applicable.
Ez)iN-SEIEOE Sk

g - REBE®KMATE
BRI NEM °

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

AZRERRRER

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

EEITABRIBRAREREREAZENBK -

Environment and

Natural Resources
RIBERRAER

KPI1 A3.1
RARENISIEA3

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HilEBEBHIRBERAAERNEAZE LD ERNEEEHER
BH1TE) ©

Emissions, Resource
usage and Environment
and Natural Resources
e - ERER R
RIBRARAER
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Subject area

-3

Content
AR

Chapter/Disclosure

HEBREEE

A4SRIRE{E

Aspect A4: Climate Change

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer.

HETAELEZENEARGHBEENBEK -

Combating Climatic

Change
e SRIRE b

—RIRE

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

BT RE  BEREA  TERE - RE TSKe %
Tt~ RIBARIA R EMAFE RAEFIA

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Combating Climatic

RRERIERA4 impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the Change
actions taken to manage them. FEET R
AR AT Re @ H BT AEEFENEARKEREE - MEY
178 o

B. Social

B.ALE

Employment and Labour Practices

BREETER

Aspect B1: Employment

B1{E(E

General Disclosure Information on: Employment,

Remuneration and
Benefits and Employee
Communication and
Care

B - i kEd k8
&R ks

IR FAR KRB DHEERKLE -

@ B : Rk

(o) BTHETAGEAZENHRERNROINER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment
BRENIEEB1 geographical region. 1EfR

RIER - EEEE - FiER MitRE DRSS -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Employment
BRSNS RB1.2 region. &R
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Subject area

E-3

Content

Chapter/Disclosure

o

HEBREEED

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

B2 REERZ 2

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BRRHEZE2THERREIMRERERLBELEEN

() BxE: &
(b) BTEBEITABERFEMIERERLBHINER -

Health and Safety
Rk R

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the | Health and Safety

B RENIEEB2.1 past three years including the reporting year. REREZE
BE=ZF(BEERFE)EFRICTHHABMILE -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety

R ENIESEB2.2 EHITGHEATIERS - BERZE

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Health and Safety

RS EMIE1EB2.3 and how they are implemented and monitored. EEkEZE

I PR B R 2 R B R 2485 - PARABRETT R EERITE -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

B3 R R3ZII

General Disclosure

— R

Policy on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BERTHE BB T TIERE & A AR RE OV BUR - HHtIEFIE
& o

Development and
Training
TR MIEF

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Development and
BREAMIEEB3.1 category. Training
BRI REEEFIBISNXIEEB DL - R MIEFI
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender Development and
R ENIE1EB3.2 and employee category. Training
RUERREEERIE S - 8RESTKIINN TR - R MIEFI
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Subject area Content Chapter/Disclosure
FEER RE HEREEEH
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B4%5 T8
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
—RIRE &R
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.
A EET FaH4TH
(@) B K
(o) BTHETAREAZENEBERNMRDINER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid Employment
R ENIEEBAN child and forced labour. &%
et BB O E LA R E T RoAKI4T -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Employment
BRENIEEBA.2 discovered. =7
LSRR AR AR SRR ARR SR -
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
BSfESEE TR
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply | Supply Chain
— R E chain. Management
ERHEENRE I SRREBGR - HEEER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain
B R A 515 B5.1 ritm oy H R 2R - Management
HrEgEE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of | Supply Chain
B EIEIEBS.2 suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how Management
they are implemented and monitored. e E R
G RHEERNED - mERTABENNHESHE
AREREEHINMITREERTE
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social Supply Chain
BEEIEIEBS.3 risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and Management
monitored. HrEsRE
A RS R RS RN RIE A SRRV EH] - LAKAE
BT RERITA -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain
BBREENIEIEBS.4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and Management
how they are implemented and monitored. HrEsRE e
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Subject area

E-3

Content
AR

Chapter/Disclosure

HEBREEED

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

B6EmEE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.

BRFREERMRGNEFRERZE - BS
K RTT R -

BB LAREEIA

@ BUR: &k
(b) BTHBITABEARFENEBERLMROIWER -

Product Responsibility
EmEf

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for | Product Responsibility

BREMIEEB6.1 safety and health reasons. EmAE
EEXEEXEREHTRR 2 HEZFIEHMARKNA D

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and Product Responsibility

B ENIE%B6.2 how they are dealt with. ERET
BEERARNE o RIS HVIREF B B AR B 7% »

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Product Responsibility

AR ENIE1EB6.3 intellectual property rights. and Intellectual Property
Fie it B o RS AN E RE B AR ] - Rights

EmBENABERE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Product Responsibility

BERENIEIEB6.4 F 3 B B AR E A2 M E m B AR Fr » EmEE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and | Product Responsibility

BRENIEEB6.5 how they are implemented and monitored. EREM

HWIUREEERRERALBBEE - ARBERITRERTTE -
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Subject area

-3

Content
AR

Chapter/Disclosure

HEREEE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

B7IRES

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud, and money laundering.

BRABTLERERE ~ B - RFRORRER -

@ BE: &
(b) BTHEITABERFENEBERLMOINER -

Anti-corruption
R&ES

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Anti-corruption
BRAENIEEBT.1 brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting k&S

period and the outcomes of the cases.

RERIAANE BT AR ESRE T EBENE TRARTHE

ERSEENEE S
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
R ENIEEBT.2 procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored. R&5

TP S b MR RIZ T - LA RABBII T REE R % o
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and Anti-corruption
BAREMIEERT.3 staff. R&5

WimES R E TRENREISHE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

BSHERE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs

of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
FRADES2ERTREEMEHEREENRREERISDES
JERt 8 A a HBR ©

Community Investment

HERRE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community Investment
B R EIE1EBS.1 BT R RIS o HERE
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community Investment
ERENIEEBS.2 T FHBAEBAENR HRRE




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB ENR S

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Dalipal Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dalipal
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 192 to 275, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes, comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023 and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Timing of revenue recognition

W 2 R R R

FREEITEE

REZMINERHE - BREFTFASRMAEAN
AN BHRRNBARAEENEER - BLF
R ERPIEABBREMHBRR LD AT RE
HEITRE - MRATEHELFTREHEBNE
8o

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(t).

DEE A FEIRZ N ARG 200 89 B 5HEE °
The Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAEFT P OIEE

The Group’s revenue is principally generated from the
manufacture and sale of oil and gas pipes, new energy pipes and
special seamless steel pipes and other products.

The Group's sales contracts with customers have a variety of
terms relating to goods acceptance. Such terms may affect the
timing of the recognition of revenue with these customers.
Management evaluates the terms of each contract in determining
the appropriate timing of revenue recognition.

BEREMRaE T EEL ARENEERRRARME - MELRA
BB E MR o

BRI WEANTSE S REEREY L
o BT S B H BRSPS BB RS ORERN Y « BT
BERTE 1 UGS TR B R RS S & SRR -

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of
revenue recognition included the following:

Obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the Group's
key internal controls in relation to revenue
recognition;

e Inspecting customers’ sales contracts,
on a sample basis, to identify terms and
conditions relating to goods acceptance
and assessing the Group's revenue
recognition policies with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

BARHE S R BB T B2

o TERYFHME BHEBEFEUEER TR
HIRASE M BRI I I RRGT - e SR F
EHERIE

o ZERITEMERZAE  WMEFLEEF
HHE A NIATEE RN & f ik W2 1R K
Rl - WaHh BERBEUWREERECR



Key audit matters (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

FERENSEHE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRETEE RMEF P R

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a key audit e Comparing, on a sample basis, sales
matter because revenue is a key performance indicator of the transactions recorded before and after the
Group which increases the risk that revenue may be manipulated financial year end date with underlying

to meet financial expectations or targets.

documentation, which included goods
acceptance notes, to assess whether the

BRI AR EARREAFE  RERKSY S5H relevant revenue had been recognised in
EVRASE A TRIR - S Uka Pl B R AL DAE B B TR B S B AR R0 AL accordance with the terms of the sales

B E7t o

contracts and in the appropriate financial
year;

* Inspecting underlying documentation for
manual journal entries relating to revenue
which were recorded during the year and
which met specific risk-based criteria; and

e Confirming, on a sample basis, the value
of sales transactions for the year ended 31
December 2023 directly with customers
and inspecting underlying documentation
relating to the reconciliation of differences
between the transaction amounts
confirmed by customers and the Group'’s
accounting records to assess whether the
related revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate financial year; for unreturned
confirmations, performing alternative
procedures by comparing details with
underlying documentations.

o KRYMERFEBARIZBHNEER SRR
X (BREMmBUE) EITHEELL -
NN RE S REHES NG
REREE I RFE NFER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of inventories

BRIEE

FERENSEHE)

Refer to Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(k).

DT BT IRAME 13 KA it 2(k) ) & 5HBE °
The Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAEFT P OIEE

At 31 December 2023, inventories of the Group comprised raw
materials, work in progress and finished goods. The carrying
amount of the Group’s inventories at 31 December 2023
amounted to RMB576,105,000 which represented 14% of the
Group's total assets.

The Group's inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The net realisable value is determined by
management on an individual item basis by taking into account
the estimated selling prices of the Group’s pipe products,
the estimated costs of completion of work in progress at the
reporting date and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

M2023F12A31H - ESENGERRERVA - AR K
R m e EBEEEFER2023F12A3MBNEEEAARE
576,105,0007C ' 1§ EEBEREEM14% °

BEEEFERKARZFEMETNREEGE - JRRF
EREEEEZE BESEEMEMNGEE  REREEHZTK
R MmO AR RIEH I E SR PR AR - RIERITRE &

ﬁ_‘io

Our audit procedures to assess valuation of
inventories included the following:

e Obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s
key internal controls over inventory
management;

e Obtaining an understanding of
management’s basis of estimating the net
realisable value;

e Performing a retrospective review of
the historical accuracy of the prior year
estimates, discussing any significant
variances with management and
considering whether there was any
indication of management bias;

BPRRFEFERENEAEFEEATE
18

s THRIFMEEEHFEEENHERAMN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

Key audit matters (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
GE RS

FERENSEHE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREF P RE

The selling prices of the Group’s pipe products are mostly
affected by the price volatility of raw materials and commodities
caused by economic environment. Management assesses the level
of provisions for inventories required at each reporting date after
considering the raw materials prices. This assessment involves
significant management judgement and estimation.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
because of its significance to the Group’s total assets, and
because determining the net realisable value involves significant
management judgement and estimation, which can be inherently
subjective and increase the risk of error or potential management
bias.

EREEEMERNEB T EXKQERFERRMH M mERK
BT E - ERETEEERMHERR - SR ENSHRE B M
BHFEREKF - ZeHEF REREEEHIE R -

B EEAERTESARESFR  REREY SXERE
ENBRN  UREEAERHESNEANTEREHE LG
MZEHE LA AE LA e B8N E - AT HEsE
EEEERIER

Evaluating, on a sample basis, the
reasonableness of the estimated selling
prices of pipe products, with reference to
selling prices as indicated in sales order or
sales invoices subsequent to the reporting
date for the finished goods or market prices
for raw materials and work in progress,
and the reasonableness of the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated
selling costs with reference to historical
information; and

Re-performing the calculations made
by management in arriving at the net
realisable values of the inventories, on a
sample basis.

mMEFHEEVEMBLEEN/EE(KS
ERHERRREK MO EER FHIHE
BHENEE  IEVMHRERROTE)IA
RAbtSE TR R AT ER AR S I 1%
(R2E2EFELEM) &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

B BRI ()
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chu Man Wai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2024

B BRI ()

BRI E R S MWK ARRE
MEE(E)

BEMEEN  RMRBREAERT MY
EiHOE - EERY  EABRHERS - 08ER
P 5o B PO B O (E AT ARG -

BRI REZZESRRER - FARMETE
BRI MEAMERBERERENR - WRMFIER
Br A EHMRR RS ERMBLIENE R
REEMEIR - ARSEREE M RIRETTEI X
g fE e (AER) ©

tREZZESRBNERT - RIFEEHLSE
R AR A M BRIV BTRASER - AME
PREBSEE T F IR - RAITERBENRE TR iE L
FH BRIPERERTIANARRBEELER
FEBBFROERT - RS ERHAERFIR
SPERRERERNNEARRBBELENAR
i BPYVRE T RERETBBZEE

HARBT ZBERENEAEEARARKX

(E

EERE BT
HEDFAT
EBTIR
EFTE1098

AT RESE
202443 H228

191



1 9 2 Dalipal Holdings Limited 3 &2 i% 5 R 2 &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBREkEMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”)) £ 72023412 A31H 1FFZ (U R EZIR)

2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARBT T ARETTT
Revenue = 4 3,850,020 4,227,802
Cost of sales $HE R AN (3,321,840) (3,616,874)
Gross profit EX 4(b) 528,180 610,928
Other income HAp A 5 45,106 33,209
Selling expenses SHERY (156,967) (186,864)
Administrative expenses TR (174,957) (171,499)
Profit from operations R 241,362 285,774
Finance costs BhE Ak AN 6(a) (88,994) (108,828)
Profit before taxation BiAIFE 6 152,368 176,946
Income tax FTiS 7 (17,845) (25,362)
Profit for the year attributable to equity Zx2 TR RES
shareholders of the Company FERER 134,523 151,584
Other comprehensive income FRAHMSERE (BR) -
for the year (after tax):
Item that may be reclassified subsequently — E & A]fEEH 7 A2 187 7Y
to profit or loss: IEH -
— Exchange differences on translation — 8 A 25| EEEHE
into presentation currency ZH (3,804) (5,090)
Total comprehensive income AR ERRREN
for the year attributable to equity FREZHEKREEE
shareholders of the Company 130,719 146,494
Earnings per share SREF 10
Basic (RMB) HEAR(ARE) 0.09 0.10
Diluted (RMB) BEARE) 0.09 0.10

The notes on pages 198 to 275 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company are set out in Note 23(d).

1982275 B MM B Z S SRR — 3B
Do ERARRA R RS 2 FHEE M

23(d) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

At 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) 820234 12 531 H (A E#%IR)

2023 2022
20234F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M5E AR¥T T AREEFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB NG 11 1,781,575 1,831,450
Deferred tax assets RERTBEE 146 -
1,781,721 1,831,450
Current assets REEE
Derivative financial instruments THESR T A - 3,639
Inventories PRy 13 576,105 753,917
Trade and bills receivables B S RYHIBRENER 14 1,270,182 1,095,685
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIA ~ Re REAM
other receivables FEUW FRIB 15 69,798 36,797
Cash at bank and on hand RITAFEIRE 16 432,589 464,892
2,348,674 2,354,930
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables B 5 RIE RN R E 17 724,571 560,730
Other payables and accruals E b e ROE K fEET B A 18 136,129 234,952
Interest-bearing borrowings STEMER 19(a) 1,176,235 1,176,756
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,680 3,203
Current taxation BNEATR 18 21(a) 5,904 12,448
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2,046,519 1,983,089
_Netcurrentassets =~ #RBEEFHE 302,155 366,841
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRBEE 2,083,876 2,198,291
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Interest-bearing borrowings FHEER 19(b) 591,262 762,300
Lease liabilities HERE 4,107 6,711
Deferred tax liabilities EIETIEAE 21(b) 16,423 12,438
Deferred income EIEWA 22 10,986 12,542
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 622,778 793,991
NET ASSETS BEEZE 1,461,098 1,404,300
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXR#E 23
Share capital P& 134,518 134,140
Reserves =B 1,326,580 1,270,160
TOTAL EQUITY Rz 1,461,098 1,404,300

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

22 March 2024.

Meng Fanyong
=NE
Chairman
T

The notes on pages 198 to 275 form part of these financial %
b

statements.

Gan Shuya
F it zs
Director

EF

R2024F3 A22 HEE St E NI -

198 =275 B W B L F R A Rk /) — 2B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

f"' \%E%Eb %

nVT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB)  #Z20234F 12431 H 1 F/Z (A EHZITR)

Share Share  Treasury Capital Other  Exchange  Retained Total
capital  premium shares reserve Teserves resene profits equity
e RhEE ERRGEE  EREE  ApRE  EERE  REAE  ERiE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETL ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Note 23(b)  Note 23(c)() Note 23(c)(i) Note 23(c)ii) Note 23(c)iy) Note 23(c)v)
W30 ME2300  MER230)  WE00)  HE30N 300
Balance at 1 January 2022 RORF1R1AMNES 134,362 160,354 - 711 543,882 (1673) 502,497 1,346,539
Changes in equity for 2022: MONENERES:
Profitfor the year EREF - - - - - - 151584 151584
Other comprehensive income Ep2Eka - - - - - (5,090) - (5,090)
Total comprehensive income AhaEE - - - - - (5090) 151584 146494
Shares isstied under share option scheme REEREERTHRG 104 1341 - (981) - - - 64
Dividends approved in respect of EERHENRSHE2300)
the previous year (Note 23(a)(i) - (36,584) - - - - - (36,584)
Fquity settled share-based transactions NERLEN RN BB S
(Note 20) (i20) - - - 2875 - - - 2875
Shares held for share award plans (Note 23¢)(i) 5Tk B BB B HRY
(W23000) - - W) - - - - W)
Purchase of own shares (ote 23(i) EEaERR W20 - - (6,275) - - - - (6,279
Cancelation of treasury shares (Note 23(¢)fi) ~ sFEBRR(IE23/) (326) (5,949 6,275 - - - - -
Appropriation to reserves BREEE - - - - 16,236 - (16,236) -
O N I
Balance at 31 December 2022 RNRENANANES 134,140 119,162 (49213) 9,011 560,118 (6763 637,845 1,404300

The notes on pages 198 to 275 form part of these financial

statements.

7 e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
GARSEEE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) & Z20234F 12 A31H |FFZ (U REEZR)

Share Share  Treasury Capital Other  Exchange  Retained Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserves reserve profits equity
ke ROEE EFkfiRk  E5BR  AREE  EXRE  RERE  EREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR ARWTZ ARBTr ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR
Note 23(b) Note23(c)) Note23(c)(ii) Note23(c)(ii) Note23(c)iv) Note 23(c)(v)
HiE3)  ME23(0)  WE(O6)  WE23(00 KE30M)  KEBOW

Balance at 1 January 2023 ROBE1R1BHER 136,180 119962 (49213) 9011 560,118 (6763 637,845 1,404,300
Cangesheqiyfor2z:  RunEmEE®s: 0
Profit fo the year ERgH - - - - - - M3 13453
Other comprehensive income Hih2EE = = = = = (3.804) = (3.80)
Total comprehensive income 2ENAEE - - - - - (3804) 13453 130719
eisedudrsheopionshene  REBRESBEGARSE W oam - em - - Y

Divicends approved in respect of

SLERREORS (Ba230)0)

the previous year (Note 23(c)i) - (53,892) - - - - - (53,892)

Equity setted share-based transactions EREE LR RN S
(Note 20) (Hit20) - - - 7,426 - - - 7426
Shares held for share award plans (Note 23(c)(i) - 5t R 8t Bl ARR B 22300 - - (9281) - - - - (2928
Appropriation 1o reserves EREGE - - - - 14,316 - (14316) -
_________________________________________________________ g Wams)  @oa8) A0 w36 - (4316 (r3821)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R0B3E12831 LR 134,518 69,454 (78,494) 13,701 574,434 (10,567) 758,052 1,461,098

The notes on pages 198 to 275 form part of these financial  5198Z%F 275 B WM ST Ak 2 S B AR = 60 — &6
o

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
nVT\ IE:%/JH;E%‘:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) & Z220234 12831 H 1 EE (YA REFT)

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥T AREFTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELERERE
Profit before taxation BERIAE 152,368 176,946
Adjustments for: BATSIEEL AR
Depreciation expenses ERX 6(c) 135,281 128,867
Finance costs BhE R AN 6(a) 88,994 108,828
Interest income FILEMA (4,189) (3,359)
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREH
plant and equipment Wz F R 5 (58) (174)
Amortisation of deferred income IEIEU A 5 22 (1,556) (1,583)
Equity-settled share-based payments LARERS S5 E AR 1D A ETE
0NN PN 6(b) 7,426 2,875
Net loss/(gain) arising from derivative PTHESRMTAEENE
financial instruments B (W) F5 5 3,739 (3,639)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiary HEB QRS FHE = (89)
Changes in working capital: HEESE
Decrease in inventories FERD 177,812 25,677
(Increase)/decrease in trade and 2 WA KW R &
bills receivables (3gm),md (173,996) 423,005
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERFRIA ~ e REAME
other receivables W RIEIE hn (1,290) (9,545)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills Z S ERE Iﬁ&ﬁﬁm?ﬁ
payables O 163,574 (132,583)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and Ei\{’ﬂﬁ’géﬁ%’tlﬁi\&%%;ﬁﬁﬁ
accruals G A), /& m (70,279) 12,776
Net (increase)/decrease in SR FITF R (3800), R
restricted deposits gt 16(a) (22,308) 42,336
Cash generated from operations REMBES 455,518 770,338
Income tax paid BRFEH 21(a) (20,550) (6,199)
Net cash generated from RETHMBREFR
operating activities 434,968 764,139
Cash flows from investing activities REEZYELERSRE
Payments for acquisitions of property, WWEBEMZE - R KRR
plant and equipment (BN (126,731) (82,944)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BB MERED
plant and equipment FriS /18 1,460 485
Net payments in investments WENFFEE (26,795) -
Net payments for settlement of forward RHEAINE & RS FE BN K
foreign exchange contracts FEE (100) -
Interest received EHFIE 4,189 3,359
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFFABSEE (147,977) (79,100)

The notes on pages 198 to 275 form part of these financial $198F275E MM Tk ZE B Bz a9 —2F
statements. S o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

HERETREBR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in RMB) & Z=20234F 12 531 H 1 F/Z (A B #5IT)

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
5T AR®T T AR#EFIT
Cash flows from financing activities RETHELERSRE
Proceeds from bank and other RITREAET BB
interest-bearing borrowings FriSs08 16(b) 650,861 1,017,385
Repayment of bank and other BERITREAMET BEK
interest-bearing borrowings 16(b) (822,420) (1,545,555)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT D PSR 23(b) 1,826 464
Payments for shares held for AR R EIF B
share award plans F&AD ST 3R 23(c)ii) (29,281) (49,213)
Payments for purchase of own shares BEEERG 2R 23(c)(ii) - (6,275)
Capital element of lease rentals paid P HEERSERILD 16(b) (3,427) (1,067)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BNHAERESHNF BEY 16(b) (492) (88)
Interest paid BERFE 16(b) (86,278) (113,827)
Dividends paid BIRE 16(b) (53,892) (36,584)
Withdrawal/(placement) of REL(GiE) R #1717 50
restricted deposits 16(a) 24,745 (4,746)
_Net cash used in financing activities == BMAEBHARSFHE (318,358) . (739,506)
Net decrease in cash and cash HeRESEENRL FE
equivalents (31,367) (54,467)
Effect of exchange rate changes on EXEHHEERRS
cash and cash equivalents ZEBYHNEE 1,501 5,337
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHEERRESZEY
beginning of the year 16(a) 381,058 430,188
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRESRESEEY
of the year 16(a) 351,192 381,058

The notes on pages 198 to 275 form part of these financial

statements.

e

F198E 275 B MM @A % S ISR R A — [
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR AR ML

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

1 Corporate information

Dalipal Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 28 August 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 8 November 2019 (the “Listing Date").
The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the development, manufacture and sale
of oil and gas pipes, new energy pipes and special seamless
steel pipes and other products.

Material accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable IFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB™) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Material accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.

1

AREF
ENEERERAT(ARARALIR20184F8
A28 RIERAESHE XM FE2R2E(RTE)
(1961 FFHEIFEN + LA RIBFT)NFEE
HEAMK L AEREER AR - AARK
HR2019F 11 A8B ([ LB ) EH B
AR GMBRAR([BRAT])ERET < &
REIREWBAR(GE AERE])EE/RSE
F% « BERKIHERBAARBE - FER
BEREREENEAREMER °

BEREBER

(a) &=
ZEMBRRELREE @ ERIEE
2 ([HResrEBEE ) BHNE
BRAMNBEBRTERES ST ERRTER
AUEHIMHEER TRE - IWEPHERE
NHFEEEHAERSMBERARES L
TR BT _ETAR A ) &y A4 165 -
AEBERMNDERSHTBRERERENT
\X o

RS EREE S BMmE T RIFRE
BREEAEANETA - ZFEAR
REE A S HIRE B IR £ AR
FHRA - BRERZETEAKEERED
#a] M B RTERIPT 5| B A R B 75
BRARBRO AR HEOEAER
BURE E 2 HPNMEE2(C) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments and investments in equity
securities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out in Notes 2(e) and 2(f).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS Accounting Standards requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRS Accounting Standards that have significant effect on
the financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

2 ERETTEHEE)
(b) HBHRMRERE

HZE2023F 12 A31HILFEMGZEEH
BHRRETEAEBNIEHRE -

BV EREAPIEANERERES
PRAESE - HPTAE SR T ARRAES
BRERRFEFIIRRRIN GRANHT E2(e) &
2()EFI S FTBERPIEAL)

RENTBBERMBRE ST ME
BEATEEEBFELHE - HerMNRE
& MREHE - A NRREFER
ROERAREE - 8fF WAEH
HEREEE - R F bt RAERRRRE
BELRMEZFENTRASBEEN
HibZIREREL - HERBRHE T
HRHMREBANEERBEREE
MER - BERERAEEINZSHA
e

ZEMFT RAERRREELEEER
A1 o RANEEHAR BRI B EIERTE
HEAR - RN BAMIRERR - anE BER]
HEHNARBEOETE - MERH
ERTHE L B RoR SR BRI RERR o

ERENEABERMEHRE ST ERR
FRYEh BB IS IR B EAF B A A
KAl st A REE = 6 E B AR M EE3

R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE TSR AR MIEE (4E)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 EAFEBER(A)
() BETEREH
(i) FATRAIET BB HREB1E

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies
(i) New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
the IASB to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

e |FRS 17, Insurance contracts

e Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting estimates

e Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

e Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred
tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction

e Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes:
International tax reform — Pillar Two model rules

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new
and amended IFRS Accounting Standards are discussed
below:

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

IFRS 17, which replaces IFRS 4, sets out the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
requirements applicable to issuers of insurance
contracts. The standard does not have a material
impact on these financial statements as the Group does
not have contracts within the scope of IFRS 17.

RIEF1EE

AEECER S RN ZEFR
BHmREABER G ERIEEEMR
R A T a] R A 1E 7T B BR B 75 4R

SRR HRE

o BIRMBmEERFE17RIF

e iy ]

o BB EAFSR G K
F AN EERES  #
SR RO

o BIRESFHERFEVRIGFHA
Z 2R B SR EELE
BEBHE2L  (FHEZEH
B - @ETR B |ER] AR

. RE Rt ERIE125%RT A3
W BERRZELNEER
B IEHBAIFEL R HERTA

. RetERE 2% 7
BN E -
JERRIR JHERT AR

AEEHAEBRE RS HRE R
REEEAIFT R LA R - K
AT BT BRI IS S & 5

BRGHRENTZEF W T

BB A i 2 e BRI 1 73 (RIE A AT
BIFR B A RS R F 1 7SR T B
BREI s ERISE A5 - REEA
RRBE KN AR - 5T8 -
2 REREENR - ARAEE L E
B S R 7R EE A
AR BMZEATSHAREEE
WRELBATE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS R AR A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)
2 Ejtﬁf"h—tk%( E‘”‘)

0} ﬁﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁﬂ@ﬂﬁﬁ%gﬁﬁ

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies, changes

in accounting estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

The amendments provide further guidance on
the distinction between changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates. The
amendments do not have a material impact on
these financial statements as the Group’s approach
in distinguishing changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates is consistent with the
amendments.

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

The amendments require entities to disclose material
accounting policy information and provide guidance
on applying the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosure. The Group has revisited the
accounting policy information it has been disclosing
and considered it is consistent with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption such that it does not apply
to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences on initial recognition such as
leases. For leases, the associated deferred tax assets
and liabilities are required to be recognised from the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment
to retained earnings or other components of equity at
that date. For all other transactions, the amendments
are applied to those transactions that occur after the
beginning of the earliest period presented.

RIEFEE(E)

B 2 BRIES T BT K - &
FHGETEE REE - Bal1Gat AE
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ZEFTRBRD G BREH RS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards
(Continued)
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction (Continued)
Prior to the amendments, the Group did not apply
the initial recognition exemption to lease transactions
and had recognised the related deferred tax, except
that the Group previously determined the temporary
difference arising from a right-of-use asset and the
related lease liability on a net basis on the basis
they arise from a single transaction. Following the
amendments, the Group has determined the temporary
differences in relation to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. The change primarily impacts
disclosures of components of deferred tax assets and
liabilities in Note 21(b), but does not impact the overall
deferred tax balances presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the related deferred
tax balances qualify for offsetting under IAS 12.

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: International tax
reform — Pillar Two model rules

The amendments introduce a temporary mandatory
exception from deferred tax accounting for the income
tax arising from tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organization for Economic Co-
operation and Development (“OECD") (income tax
arising from such tax laws is hereafter referred to

s “Pillar Two income taxes”), including tax laws
that implement qualified domestic minimum top-
up taxes described in those rules. The amendments
also introduce disclosure requirements about such
tax including the estimated tax exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes. The amendments are immediately
effective upon issuance and require retrospective
application. However, because no new legislation to
implement the Pillar Two income tax was enacted
or substantively enacted at 31 December 2022 in
any jurisdiction in which the Group operates and
no related deferred tax was recognised at that date,
the retrospective application has no impact on these
financial statements.

2 EAFEBER(A)
(0 EHBREH(H)
(i) FATRAIET BB HREB1E

RIEFEE(E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS R AR A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 EAEEBER(A)
CR-pr:et-LiI¢ )
(i) BEEGHTABEBRENEHE

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting

implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment
and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come into effect
from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Once the
Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an employer can
no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived
from its mandatory contributions to mandatory
provident fund (“MPF") scheme to reduce the long
service payment (“LSP”) in respect of an employee’s
service from the Transition Date (the abolition of
the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in
respect of the service before the Transition Date will
be calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary
immediately before the Transition Date and the years
of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides accounting
guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism and the
abolition of the mechanism. In particular, the guidance
indicates that entities may account for the accrued
benefits derived from mandatory MPF contributions
that are expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable
to an employee as deemed contributions by that
employee towards the LSP.

However, applying this approach, upon the enactment
of the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is no
longer permissible to apply the practical expedient in
paragraph 93(b) of IAS 19 that previously allowed such
deemed contributions to be recognised as reduction
of service cost (negative service cost) in the period
the contributions were made; instead these deemed
contributions should be attributed to periods of service
in the same manner as the gross LSP benefit.

This change in accounting policy did not have a
material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 ERETTEHEE)
(d) B H

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised
income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and
any related non-controlling interests and other components
of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary is
measured at fair value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(e) Derivative financial instruments

(f)

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to manage
its foreign currency exposures. Embedded derivatives
are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and
certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with changes therein
recognised in profit or loss, except where the derivatives
qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedges of net
investment in a foreign operation.

Investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, are set out below.

Investments in securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") for which transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see Note
24(e).

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL,
unless the investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income (“OCI"). Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. If such election is made for a
particular investment, at the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is
transferred to retained earnings and not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or
FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which
includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (see
Note 2(j)(ii)).

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment less their estimated residual values,
if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

2 ERETTEHEE)
(9) M3 > BMERRE

ME - BELRRERAKKN(BEER
{EtE KA ) B Rt T & MR R &
IR ERTR IR CRHTE2())

W - BERREEE FNEKRID
BRI RIERER - RIFHE®E
ME K TV IR B (X ZARE

) e

HEWME - BB RREHRBEEHERA
Wt BT IR IR N RERR

WEDNERERENE G A ERES
AHE LMY R - BE M EIE B B
TREGAFSREE(WE) - T —RR

1BERER -

RERRLLBHRE - W% - BB MR
FEETAIE R F T

Estimated useful lives

CRRkEdEE
Plant and buildings 20-40 years
R K 2T 205 40F
Machinery and equipment 3-15 years
W28 MR 3E15%F
Vehicles and other equipment 3-8 years
IR R EL A 5% 3E8%F
Right-of-use assets Over the term of lease
EREEE HEHR

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(h) Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. Development expenditure is capitalised only
if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, future
economic benefits are probable and the Group intends to
and has sufficient resources to complete development and
to use or sell the resulting asset. Otherwise, it is recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. Capitalised development
expenditure is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As alessee
Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for leases that have a short lease term of 12
months or less, and leases of low-value items. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
item, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. If not capitalised, the
associated lease payments are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As a lessee (Continued)
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is recognised using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability, and are charged to
profit or loss as incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Notes 2(g) and 2(j)ii)).

Refundable rental deposits are accounted for separately
from the right-of-use assets in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to investments in non-
equity securities carried at amortised cost (see Notes
2(t)(ii) and 2(j)(i)). Any excess of the nominal value over
the initial fair value of the deposits is accounted for as
additional lease payments made and is included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes
its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
a lease modification, which means a change in the
scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract, if
such modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based
on the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are rent concessions
that occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and met the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has
taken advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration as negative
variable lease payments in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

As a lessor

The Group determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. Otherwise, the lease
is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(t)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 EAFEBER(A)
() FEBREEERE
() 2BTAWEEREREREEH

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease

receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL"s) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables) and lease receivables.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Generally, credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls between

the contractual and expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the

following rates if the effect is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the

measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the

Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are the portion of ECLs
that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the

instrument is less than 12 months); and

— lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model

applies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS R AR A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 EAFEBER(A)
() EEBEXEEEREE)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease

() ZBTAHEEBRXRENBEEH

receivables (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which
are measured at 12-months ECLs:

— financial instruments that are determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date; and

— other financial instruments for which credit risk
(i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when measuring ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment,
that includes forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held).

The Group considers a financial instrument to have low
credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B BRI AR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 EREHBERE)
() FERXREERMEGR)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease (i)

ETHTANEEEARERBEEH

receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default;

— the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not

consider otherwise;

— itis probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0]

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease
receivable is written off to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (“CGU"s).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 2 ERSTER(E)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets () EEEXEEEREE)

(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued) (i) B nEEERE &)
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They BEBENBRTHER - BEEBES
are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the TADE - IREHIBEZRCELE
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. AR EEMNREE -

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that BOREBEENELENRASREDT
the resulting carrying amount does not exceed the B 3B {1 4 W SR BN (BT 1R 5 AT RBE T O PR
carrying amount that would have been determined, HERR (BT ES#H) AR -

net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

(k) Inventories k) 78

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net TFEER AR I EE RN E P AERIE
realisable value. EZ5I|8R o

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula KAEBIEEHRAARTE I
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion EARERA EMRARAFERESE
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their EEHIBE B R AR E A E MK
present location and condition. 7K o

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the AR EADEESBRERNGETE
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of BRI Lt e AN R E T SHE st P EE
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the RIS o

sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(I) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see Note 2(t)(i)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set
out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs
(see Note 2(j)(i)) and are reclassified to receivables when the
right to the consideration becomes unconditional (see Note
2(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see Note 2(t)(i). A contract liability is
also recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such latter cases, a
corresponding receivable is also recognised (see Note 2(m)).

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see Note 2(t)(i)).

(m) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration and only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction
price. Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost (see Note 2(j)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and other short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs
(see Note 2()j)(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequently,
these borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with Note 2(v).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as the related service is
provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(r)

(i) Share-based payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based
payments granted to employees is measured using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model for share options
granted or at the fair value of the shares granted at
the grant dates. The amount is generally recognised
as an expense, with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the vesting period of the awards. The
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the number of awards for which the related service
conditions are expected to be met, such that the
amount ultimately recognised is based on the number
of awards that meet the related service conditions at
the vesting date.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises costs
for a restructuring.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.
It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in OCI.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable in respect
of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax
also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 2 EREFEK(E)
(r) Income tax (Continued) (r) FTIEH

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised
for:

— temporary differences on the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

— temporary differences related to investment in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred
tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered,
based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries
in the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised;
such reductions are reversed when the probability of future
taxable profits improves.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(t)

Generally provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods or the use by others of the Group’s
assets under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions
and recognises revenue on a gross basis. In determining
whether the Group acts as a principal or as an agent,
it considers whether it obtains control of the products
before they are transferred to the customers. Control
refers to the Group’s ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from
the products.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is
transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties such as value added tax or other sales
taxes.

—  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products.

If the products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii) Revenue from other sources and other income

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are
recognised as an integral part of the total rental
income, over the term of the lease. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. The “effective interest rate” is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. In calculating interest income,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is
not credit-impaired). However, for financial assets
that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of
interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised as other income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of
the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(u) Translation of foreign currencies

(v)

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
respective functional currencies of group companies at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit or
loss.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates at the reporting
date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(w) Asset acquisition

Groups of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
assessed to determine if they are business or asset
acquisitions. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group chooses to apply a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is an asset rather
than business acquisition, when substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or Group of similar identifiable assets.

When a group of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
do not constitute a business, the overall acquisition cost is
allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities
based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.
An exception is when the sum of the individual fair values
of the identifiable assets and liabilities differs from the
overall acquisition cost. In such case, any identifiable assets
and liabilities that are initially measured at an amount
other than cost in accordance with the Group’s policies are
measured accordingly, and the residual acquisition cost is
allocated to the remaining identifiable assets and liabilities
based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.

(x) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B BRI AR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(x) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

2 BERESFEEKR(E)
(x) BB (&)

(b) MEEBTE TG - BlFZ
ERSHIREE BB R

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi) 7

(vii) (a )()Fﬁ?‘%m/\iﬁa "

(viii)

KA REERMA R EZA TR
ERXHNREKE - XZALT
R HTENKEKE -

‘mﬂ}

E)ZE’AET °

ZEREASEBR —SE
RERR(BIEEAR - B
CIVAEES H)=INGIE A A sl
&) -
MREBHRRA—F=THE
Bx -
—XERBRE=ZNEBNGE
¥ ME—BRBRZF=]
BRMBZEQR -
ZERRAREREAKEA
PR A E BB LI B M st 5 LAY
BER IR R AETE o
ZEBX()PTREATIES X
R o

:m)m

EEE

ZE

/ﬂﬂﬁi
pall |Ir
kol

N

YENNBZEEH
DEATMEEEEA

=
H o
=

B RS S H PR S E e TR
BRAAAEEXAEET R
AR E2ER ABRE -

= =I13
X Xy

\|

~



Annual Report 2023 %43 2 2 5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

3 Accounting judgements and estimates

Note 24(e) contains information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(o)

Expected credit losses for receivables

The credit losses for trade and other receivables are
based on assumptions about the expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, which
are based on the Group’s past collection history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions and inputs used, see Note 24(a). Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional loss allowances in future periods.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
values. The management of the Group reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of the
property, plant and equipment regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded during any reporting period. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values, if any, are based
on historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated changes on how such assets are to
be deployed. The depreciation expense for future periods
is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. These estimates are based on current
market conditions and historical experience of distributing
and selling products of a similar nature. They could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions.
Management reassess the estimations at each end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MRS ER R M E ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting
(a) Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
manufacture and sale of oil and gas pipes, new energy
pipes and special seamless steel pipes and other products.
All of the revenue of the Group is recognised at a point in
time. The customers obtain control of the products when
they are delivered to and have been accepted at premises
determined by the customers. Acceptance notes are
generated and revenue is recognised at that point in time.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products is as follows:

4 WRRDEHHRE
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2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Sales of oil and gas pipes HEAMRARAE 2,459,943 2,635,098
Sales of new energy pipes and SHEMLRAE RSk EaE

special seamless steel pipes & 1,331,897 1,567,886

Sales of other products HEHMESR 58,180 24,818

3,850,020 4,227,802

Revenue from customers with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue for the year ended
31 December 2023 is as follows:

HZE2023F12A318ILEE - BER
SIEREEWRBBI0%NEPELN
WasgEpn T

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARBET T

Customer A ZEA 396,268 *
Customer B =FB 392,067 *
Customer C BFEC 385,915 *

* Transactions with these customers did not exceed 10% of the Group’s
revenue in the respective year.

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s
total revenue was derived from sales to a single customer
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from the
Group's customers are set out in Note 24(a).

* REREE  ARSEFNRXSLERBA
EEWZER10% °

HE2022F12A3181ILEE - mE—
B PSSR UGS (G AR EE B UL
§W10(VOEZJ/\/\J: ©

EXBAREEFHNEESETRBRFE
IR HIEE24(a) ©
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

4 Revenue and segment reporting

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by products. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

e Oil and gas pipes: this segment includes primarily the
manufacture and sale of oil and gas pipes.

e New energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes: this
segment includes primarily the manufacture and sale of
new energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes.

e Other products: this segment includes primarily the
manufacture and sale of other products.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
during normal operations. The measure used for
reporting segment result is gross profit, but excluded
depreciation expenses, staff costs and utilities expenses
incurred during the suspension of production as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic. No inter-segment
sales have occurred for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022. Assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets and technical
know-how, is not measured.

The Group’s other operating income and expenses,
such as other income and selling and administrative
expenses, and assets and liabilities are not measured
under individual segments. Accordingly, neither
information on segment assets and liabilities nor
information concerning capital expenditure, interest
income and interest expenses is presented.

4 WHEKDEBHRE(E)

(b) 7&K E
AEBEREMERERR - REBAR
ARAKERSTREREABRERD
Fo RV EETARHREN XL
AT=Er2HD 0 - MEAHLED
ERAMAAK T HIRT 25D & ©

o HHRARME WD HETEZEHE
SUENHERBRAARAE -

o MELRAE REHREZNTE - D
ﬁBI?&@%*”ﬁ&%% HeElREE
NS E AN E

o HMER: WoMEERERENM
ﬂél:./\'ﬁﬂﬁuu °

(i) 7E¥E TEREE
BTHEDBRELSEDE 2 E
BR AEEESATHERASR

BATEEEZRE A E2HRDEHNE
o

W RS TS 2 ERIE S & ER
MZENHEENHERBRZED
HEEANHAIBEIREETZ2RD
BHonmE2RoFEEMBNGTE
AER - BETBEETIE AT
EIEEBBEENITERY - 8T
MARKERT « BLE2023F &
2022F 12 A3MBIEFEIE S
FMHEE - WEE—E5 RS
—DEBRENHE  BIESEEE
RAAMTRER -

AEE AL WA R (10
HAWRA ~ SHE RITHFES) AR
BERBBEHTFAERDE - B
- EwmeERoMEERAREN
Bt XERABEARRAX - FIE
WARFMEFZHER  HTER
5] o
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RS R AR A ()
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4 Revenue and segment reporting 4 WamkoIPmE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7 EBERE (&)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) DEfE EEREE(E)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments OB E R L E D BRI M A4
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive SBEESATREEABRESH
management for the purposes of resource allocation REEE E2023F K2022F12 A
and assessment of segment performance for the years 3MHIEFERNR 2D ZE LT
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out below. R e

2023
20234

New energy

pipes and

special

Oil and seamless Other

gas pipes  steel pipes products Total

HERRE

vap RASH
AARAE EARE HitEm st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  AREMTR  ARBTR ARET:R

Revenue from external customers — MNERE F Uz 2,459,943 1,331,897 58,180 3,850,020
Reportable segment gross profit Al 2D FEF 399,825 126,841 1,514 528,180
2022
20224
New energy
pipes and
special
Oiland seamless Other
gas pipes steel pipes products Total
MRAE
vayi REHK
AARAE BT HivEm st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR

Revenue from external customers SNERE P U 5 2,635,098 1,567,886 24,818 4,227,802
Reportable segment gross profit Al 2D HEF] 442,159 169,849 328 612,336




Z 3 O Dalipal Holdings Limited 3% 1 ¥ i& B R A &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MR MR (&

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

4 Revenue and segment reporting
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment gross profit

4 Wk oAb E ()

(b) 7 & E (&)
(ii) 7T Z2#H 7 EBEFRIE

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Reportable segment gross A 2D EFEF
profit (Note 4(b)(i)) (HIFEAD)G)) 528,180 612,336
Depreciation expenses, staff costs and  F#¥7170E A 1T M5 & B AT
utilities incurred during production ELXNITERY - BT
suspension period as a result of AR KK B
the COVID-19 pandemic - (1,408)
Reportable segment gross profit KERNEEINEEFHR 2
derived from the Group's external o EEF
customers 528,180 610,928

(iii) Geographic information
The following table set out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s revenue from
external customers. The geographical information
about the revenue prepared by location at which the
goods were delivered is as follows:

(iii) #EEHF

TR EBAKEINEEF et
HIMIZM B E R o R dn b B
REBRKENIZERNT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Mainland China R B A 3 2,862,847 3,077,736
Overseas: AN

The Middle East AR 560,066 663,745

Africa FEM 322,605 278,034

Southeast Asia e 5,675 117,268

Others Hih 98,827 91,019

_______________________________________________________________________________ 987,173 1,150,066

3,850,020 4,227,802

All of the Group’s non-current assets are located in
the PRC. Accordingly, no segment analysis based on
geographical location of the assets is provided.

AEBEMAENRBEEBURH
o Eitt - WRRHIREE IR

EEHOD O -
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5 Other income 5 Hflg A
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Government grants (including amortisation EtfiT# B (B IERAEU ALY -

of deferred income, see Note 22) BM¥22) 24,018 6,885
Interest income FLE U A 4,189 3,359
Net gain on disposal of other property, HEEMYE - BELEEN

plant and equipment W5 Ea 58 174
Net foreign exchange gain PE H Wz H =8 5,727 7,619
Net gains on sale of scraps raw materials ~ $56& BERATE 8O U 25 F5E 9,512 8,712
Rental income WA 2,974 2,826
Net (loss)/gain arising from forward mHE N AMELN(EE)

exchange contracts (Note) Weas H &R (H15t) (3,739) 3,639
Others Htt 2,367 (5)

45,106 33,209
Note: Yoz
The Group entered into forward exchange contracts with certain banks to manage REBE A TIRITE] SR AAINES DS IEERBEINY
its foreign currency exposure arising from overseas sales. All forward exchange EELNINERE - FTERIAINEALHTHN2023F12A
contracts have been settled as at 31 December 2023. 31E&EE -
6 Profit before taxation 6 A FE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BATALE T &G (5H ) A& IB%EES
o
(a) Finance costs (a) BE A
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBT T
Interest expenses on borrowings EECISN R 80,093 90,756
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAEMNSMX 492 88
Others HAtb 8,409 17,984

88,994 108,828
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6 Profit before taxation (Continued)

6 HiEIAE(E)

(b) Staff costs* (b) E TR
2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMETR 206,482 216,714
Contributions to defined contribution  FEEHFURIRETEIH

retirement plan 13,688 11,811

Equity-settled share-based payment AR A E LA D A AR
expenses (Note 20) RRESZ (Hat20) 7,426 2,875
227,596 231,400

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong SAR) participate in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan managed
by the local government authority. Employees of these
subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits, calculated
based on a percentage of the defined salaries level in
the PRC (excluding Hong Kong SAR), from the above-
mentioned retirement plan at their normal retirement age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$") 30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately.

The Group has no further material obligation for
payment of other retirement benefits beyond the above
contributions.

AEBEHE(TEEEBRHIITTHR)
7 E Y B 0 B 2 L 75 BT R FT
B EREFRKBAIGE - ZFH
BARNEEZIEEERARFRES
BE AR LAURRGET 8RR RE R (2P
B(TEREBRRITTRE) R EFEK
FHEDLEHE) ©

REBTRIB(CEBRBIERE S E
O BRIBCEERBIEDDAEIEE
ERERNES BRI AESTE
([aEeTE]) - BRESFETIABIL
ZREANEIERTEREEFGRRGTE - BRI
wiESEE - BEERHEEBHERE
BEBUWARNSY% RAFFEIELER -
HABBWA LR A30,000%8 T (178
JC)) o BIESETEIMHKENEERS -

B _EALRON - AR I R ST B AR
RiEFEE — P ERER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS R AR A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

6 BiAlFE(E)
(c) Hf1EH

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETTT
Depreciation expenses* (Note 11) e (A1)
—owned property, plant and equipment —BEYE « HME MRE 125,132 121,771
- right-of-use assets — (AL E 9,733 7,096
— Leasehold improvements —HEMFEEE 416 -
Impairment losses (reversed)/recognised  (¥[a) /B HERE 5 FEKFIA
on trade receivables (Note 14(b)) REEE (M5 14b) (422) 1,759
Impairment losses (reversed)/recognised  (#[E]) /B FERIENR FRIE K
on prepayments and other receivables — E th FEUR R IE (B &8
(Note 15) (B7at15) (117) 66
Auditors’ remuneration % 4R 25 B
— audit services —FWET RS 2,323 2,200
- non-audit services — IEFFT R 1,030 1,025
Research and development costs R AR 40,397 39,792
Cost of inventories* (Note 13(b)) TFERA(HaF13(b)) 3,321,840 3,615,466

# Cost of inventories include RMB238,961,000 (2022: RMB232,860,000)
relating to staff costs and depreciation expenses, which amounts are
also included in the respective amounts disclosed separately above or
in Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

7 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income

t o OFERABREEETIAARNTERZAE
# A R % 238,961,0007T (2022 F + ARM
232,860,0007T) * ZERBENERZESHE
BRI 5T A L X8 7 1% BE /& 18 & BB sk
FE6(b)A °

melEmkAtEERERPH
Frig®

(a) REBBERHMEE KRR OB
HiE -

represents:
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Current taxation (Note 21(a)): BIHATR IR ¢
— Provision for the year — F R 16,004 18,647
— Over-provision in respect of — BT FEBEEE
prior years (1,998) -
14,006 18,647
Deferred taxation (Note 21(b)): EERIE
— Origination and reversal of —EERBOERER
temporary differences 3,839 6,715
3,839 6,715
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7

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

mealEakAEtEERERPH
Fr&%i (&)

(b) HEX HEARERARRAE 2S5
AR

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARETTT

Profit before taxation BRI 152,368 176,946
Expected tax on profit before taxation,  FHATFEATEHAFIE - LH

calculated at the rates applicable to BERE R i P s N B R R

profits in the jurisdictions concerned sTE BTG ~ ()3T)

(Notes (i), (i) and (iif)) 38,411 46,112
Tax effect on preferential tax rate BEMRE BT E (15,574) (19,506)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  RNA]FIFHF 2 2 B2 & 1,934 2,206
Tax effect on bonus deduction of SR A ANEHE N 2 TS s 28

research and development costs (4,928) (3,450)
Over-provision in respect of prior years — iB1F F/E HREE R (1,998) -
Actual tax expense BERBIARS 17,845 25,362

Notes:

it :

0

(ii)

(iif)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") are not subject to
any income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of their respective
countries of incorporation.

The Company and the Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries of the
Group are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax, which is calculated at
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was
calculated at the same basis in 2022.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC (excluding Hong
Kong SAR) are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 25%). One of the
subsidiaries was qualified as a High and New Technology Enterprise’
and is entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2023.

() RIS B EMACIATERRARREARD
AARRAEERAESRENABERRE
S EBHARES DEMRZOMEAR
ERRMNERPRER -

(i) ARARAEERESTMALONE R
B RAFE M ERTE M8 16.5% (2022
F:16.5%)TE - BRFSBMAGIETEE
BARMAEE —MEHEAEIN

FULMBARME - 52,000,000 7T &R
8. 25% KT R TR - MR T BRI
FEFIR16.5% BB R HH o W BR R
ERMIS T HRE2022F ARMNEETE -

(i) #E2023F12A31BIEFE » AEBERFEH
(TREEBFIITHRE) KM EBARA
1%25% (20224F : 25% ) B RN BB ZEFT
B HP—HMBRARMA @E it
¥ &1 RNEZE2022F M2023F12A31H
IFFEEZHIS%HEERREK -
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8 Directors’ emoluments 8 EEM&
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RBIEBEBRNNEHIEIBMNIER AT (HE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EEREZERDEME2NBENEESME
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors' and benefits- Discretionary scheme payments pLIE]
fees in-kind honuses contributions  Sub-Total  (Note 20) Total
WA
B4 28 g | ERHNR WBE

EShe RRUBN  BERAL i N WE) it
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBON  RMBO00
ABMTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTZ  ARBTr  AREIR

Executive directors Yz

M. Meng Fanyong (Chairman) INERE(ZE) - 1,945 = 16 1,961 = 1,961
Mr. Zhang Hongyao RTELAE - 1,89 - 8 1,980 34 2304
Ms. Xu Wenhong ik - 851 - 16 867 - 867
WIr. Meng Yuxiang EFAGE - 1,164 - 51 1,215 - 1,215
Ms. Gan Shuya Figat - 880 - 16 896 155 1,051
Non-Executive director 97EE

Mr. Yin Zhixiang b - 709 - - 709 - 709

Independent non-executive directors ~~ BuFHTES

. Guo Kaig| IRERE 200 - - - 200 - 200
Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing B i3 270 - - - 270 - 200
Mr. Cheng Haltao REEkE 200 - - - 270 - 200

810 1445 - 183 8438 479 8917
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8 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 8 EEME(E)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and benefits-  Discretionary scheme payments 200
Directors' fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Sub-Total (Note 20) Total
WA
g2 VG ERNAH W

E5he  REMRH  BEEL f5 (57 it
RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RVBOOO0
ARRTTL  ARBTR  ARRTT  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Executive directors il

Mr. Meng Fanyong (Chairman) ENEREZE) - n - 17 489 - 489
Mr. Zhang Hongyao FiIEEE - 288 - 75 2903 808 3
Ms. Xu Wenhong eI an - 11% - 13 1,209 - 1,209
Mr. Meng Yusiang ZFRE - 1,014 - 46 1,060 - 1,060
Ns. Gan Shuya Fiizgt - 1,200 - 3 1,234 547 1,781
r. Yin Zhiiang (Note) BTERLE) - 210 - 4 214 - 214
Non-Executive director gz

M. Yin Zhisiang (Note) RN - 51 - 6 518 - 518

Independent non-executive directors BukyfEeE

Mr. Guo Kaig IR 258 - - - 258 - 258
Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing TEREE 258 - - - 258 - 258
Wrr. Cheng Haitao hAETE 258 - - - 258 - 258
Ti4 7432 - 195 8,401 1,355 9,756
Note: pit
Mr. Yin Zhixiang was re-designated from executive director to non-executive B RAER2022F4 4B BT ES T AIERITE
director on 4 April 2022. e
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join AEBMAERESS NS @ EARS| ENAKRERS
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no MIAE R IZE) Sk BER i (E - FNESMERR T LZHE
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration WEL R B RET B -

during the year.



Annual Report 2023 %43 2 3 7

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS R AR A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 REHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments two (2022: AEESHEALTH  BWZ(2022F :
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8. ZVEE HENSHENHNIFs - Hép=4
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (20224 : =) ATHBIS@EEINT -

(2022: three) individuals are as follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFT
Salaries and other emoluments e MEMHNe 7,095 17,714
Share-based payments (Note 20) VARG (D BERER R (AT220) 815 836
Retirement scheme contributions IRPRETEIHESR 48 46
7,958 18,596
The emoluments of the individuals who are not directors and AEBRAAESHFATHRIIFEENATH
who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group e N FATEBER
are within the following bands:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AEX
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 TE 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 L% 3,500,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 9,500,001/ T2 10,000,000/ 7T - 2
3 3
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the above AREEWER FMEAZNNE  EERS
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group EMAREES AR RE S BEREEE -

or as compensation for loss of office.
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10 Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2023 is calculated based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB134,523,000 (2022: RMB151,584,000) and the
weighted average of 1,470,586,000 (2022: 1,494,269,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary
shares is as follows:

10 BREF

(a) BRELXER
HE203FNA3NBILEENE
BERAF TEF R AN B ERR
B OE G % A A R ¥ 134,523,000 7T
(20224 + AR #151,584,00070) &
&2 % 77 1,470,586,000 A% ( 2022 & :
1,494,269,000/% ) & 1/ A% &) hn#E - 15 £4
AT -

BB EIR N TR E

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
‘000 ‘000
TH T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M ATEMEBEITERR 1,498,468 1,501,200
Effect of shares issued under BRSBTS
share option schemes (Note 20(a)) (Hts£20(a)) 1,110 766
Effect of shares repurchased BER RO E
(Note 23(c)(ii) (Htat23(c)ii)) = (2,752)
Effect of shares held for share award A% (D LB T B35 AR (0 HY
plans (Note 23(c)(ii)) S (KT5F23(c)i)) (28,992) (4,945)
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 8318 #)& @A H1#E F 1o £
shares at 31 December 1,470,586 1,494,269

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB134,523,000 (2022: RMB151,584,000) and the
weighted average 1,478,551,000 (2022: 1,503,200,000)
ordinary shares (diluted).

(b) ERE#ERR
HZE2023F12A31 B ILFEN TR
SEEF Th IR A A B s AR B A i A
AR #134,523,0007C(20224F « AR
¥ 151,584,000 7t ) & 1,478,551,000 %
(20224 : 1,503,200,0000% ) E@A% (2
BEE )R BETE -

Calculation of weighted average number of ordinary shares TRk (BHE) MEFABIRM T
(diluted) is as follows: &
2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A31 B #)% @ A& hnfe
shares at 31 December g 1,470,586 1,494,269
Effect of deemed issue of shares SAERE AR DRI AR S E A
under the Company’s equity settled R BEMEHZ Z R 31T
share-based transactions (Note 20) eI sc 2 (Hfat20) 7,965 8,931
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ 12 A31 BRI @R (D #E)
shares (diluted) at 31 December hkEEH 1,478,551 1,503,200
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11 Property, plant and equipment 1 9% BERRKE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREE¥ R

Machinery Vehicles
Plant and and  andother  Construction Right-of- Leasehold
buildings ~ equipment  equipment  inprogress  useassets improvements Total
HERET  REREE RERELRE EEIE  GREEE BEZE &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEfT  ARETr ABETr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Cost: S
At 1 January 2022 R0E1R1R 1,013,365 1,356,638 26,130 70,082 266,156 - 2,732,311
Additions HE - 6,666 1961 57,523 20,578 - 86,728
Transfer inout) #)/(#) 44524 13810 - (8343 - - -
Disposals e (16) B) (2,644) - - - 2,663)
At 31 December 2022 R0NENANE 1,057,973 1407111 25,447 39,171 286,734 - 2,816,436
Additions HE 57 36,101 3520 8,916 175 2,804 53210
Transfer infout) 8)/(&1) 90 16,314 465 (17679 - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-EHEAA
(Note 12) i) - - 12 15,863 17723 - 33598
Disposals HE (044) (2.431) (1,774) - - - (5,149)
At 31 December 2023 RNBENANA 1,057,986 1,457,095 21610 46,211 306,209 2,864 2,898,095
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHE:
At 1 January 2022 R0NEAIE (237,115) (551,800) (14,029) - (54,927) - (858471)
Charge for the year FRgH (32,527) (86,468) 2,776) - (7,09) - (128,867)
Written back on disposals HEEED 6 1 2345 - - - 235
At 31 December 2022 R0NENANA (270,236) (638,267) (14,460) - (62,023) - (984,986)
Charge for the year ERg (33.910) (88,203) (3,019 - (9,733) (#16) (135,281)
Whitten back on disposals HERED 1 2,081 1,665 - - - 3747
ADecember23  RABENANE Bl kg (584 S el e (1116500
Carrying amount; RAEE:
At 31 December 2023 ROBENANA 753841 732,106 11,85 46,211 234,453 2448 1,781,575
At 31 December 2022 RRENANA 181737 768,844 10,987 39,171 24 - 1831450
Notes: Wit -
(i)  The Group's property, plant and equipment are located in the PRC. The () AEENYE - BERKBLRFE - A
land use rights included in “Right-of-use assets” represent premiums [EREEE | fERERERNEERLR
paid by the Group for land situated in the PRC. The lease terms of B R M TS AT BB o R T T R
these land use rights ranged from 37 to 50 years. FEHIN T 372506 ©
(i) At 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment of the (iy 20234 12A831H » NEEFEEEARYE
Group with carrying amounts of RMB1,220,828,000 (2022: 1,220,828,0007T (20224 = AFR#1,193,511,000
RMB1,193,511,000) have been pledged as collateral for the Group's T EIE - R RERFEE B EASE AR

interest-bearing borrowings (see Note 19(d)). TEREEAR(REE19d)
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e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

11 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

1 9% BEKREE)

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EREEE

The analysis of the net book values of right-of-use assets by R EERBEEERERY RNEER

class of underlying assets is as follows: SFEDWIT -
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

Properties leased for own use, EREEYE
carried at depreciated cost: BITERATIER

— Land use rights — TP A 227,264 215,122
— Office premises e YN=L7/ES 7,189 9,589
234,453 224,711

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

RBmERNEERBRIER SN

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: N
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use IZIREAEEER Y R
assets by class of underlying assets FREEE
(Note 6(c)): FER (Ait6(c) :
— Land use rights — T A 6,033 5,763
- Office premises N NELYES 3,700 1,333
9,733 7,096

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Note 16(c),

respectively.

HERSRHARMEEREZIRER
DTS BB K EE16(c) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS R AR A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

12 Investments in subsidiaries 12 AMBARINIRE
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries LT REFETFTEFEREFEE  BE
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the B ENHTBARFFE °
Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERSLA
Place of
establishment/
incorporation/
operation and date Particulars of ~ The Group's
of establishment/  registered/issued and effective  Held by the Held by Principal
Company name incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries activities
RL/HRRL/ i/
BEARAYT/ BEfR AEEH &
ARER HMALEH BRRAGHE EREE  RDERE AL ELY:1)
Dalipal Pipe Company Limited The PRC RIMB600,000,000 100% - 100% Design, manufacture
("Dalipal Pipe") 18 September 1998 ARH and sale of oil and gas pipes,
ENERBEREERAT i 600,000,0007T new energy pipes and specia
(Notes (i) and (i) 1998594184 seamless steel pipes and
BNLRAEREARAA other products
([ENEERE)) Fit BEREERD
(K i) AARE FREER
RERE I RELER
Agile Rise Global Limited BV United States 100% 100% - Investment holding
26 April 2018 Dolar ("US§")1, RERRK
AERIES 1 share of US$1 each
2018547268 ESHETAE
REHEEIZTHRA
Dalipal Hong Kong Company Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100% Sale of oil and gas pipes,
ENEEAERAT 19 September 2018 1R new energy pipes and
B special seamless steel pipes
2018594198 HERRAARRE
MERREREREMRE
Dalipal (Cangzhou) Industrial Company The PRC RMB 420,000,000 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited (“Dalipal Industrial”) 14 November 2018 AR REER
EhE(eM)EZARAA 8 420,000,007
(Notes (i) and (i) 2018117148
ENECRNEEARAR
([EngEx))
(Watink(i)
Cangzhou Bohai New Area Xingang The PRC RMB 15,000,000 100% - 100%
Color Steel Engineering Co,, Ltd. 4 March 2010 ARE15,000,0007 Note (i)
("Cangzhou Color Steel”) Gl JiiHi)
NSRS RVELRERAR 20106348

(Notes (i), (i) and (iv))
BN SHEEAVATEERAA
(laM&ERaA) W) inkiv)
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FE SRR MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (E:5B7:7855) AN EEESIT)

12 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes:

(i) These entities are registered as limited liability companies under the laws and
regulations in the PRC.

(i) This entity was registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the
laws and regulations in the PRC.

(iii)  The English translation of the names are for identification only. The official
names of these entities are in Chinese.

(iv)  Dalipal Pipe acquired 100% of equity interest in Cangzhou Color Steel at
total consideration of RMB34,677,000 in September 2023. Cangzhou Color
Steel did not conduct business as at 31 December 2023.

This transaction is accounted for as acquisition of assets, rather than a
business combination.

13 Inventories
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of

12 RMTB A RINIRE (&)

i

@

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

ZEBREFEARARBLAERETAR -
ZEBREPEAEEAEBLAIEEERE -
EWMBRNIREHRBIAR -  ZFERBNESE
BARF -
ENETEAEN2023F9ALAREBARY
34,677,000 70 8RN BB 100% A% HE < AN
BEYIMN2023F 12 A3 1B RFARER -

ZR PN AEWNEE - MIAIFDEAD -

13 FE
(a) GABMBRREPWEEEIELUT

financial position comprise: K17 :
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Raw materials B 161,607 152,312
Work in progress ERG 229,809 329,704
Finished goods UK M 187,191 273,823
578,607 755,839
Less: write-down of inventories S TEE MR (2,502) (1,922)
576,105 753,917

As at 31 December 2023, inventories of the Group with
carrying amounts of RMB174,167,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB250,000,000) have been pledged as collateral for the
Group's interest-bearing borrowings (see Note 19(d)).

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

MR2023%F 128318 AEBETES
AR #174,167,0007T (2022412 A 31
B : AR¥250,000,0007T) FE 2K
FREARE B B AR F R (R T
19(d)) °

(b) ERARMAXAFAGSBEERN

recognised as expense and included in the FESEINWT :
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold B HEFEMREE 3,320,191 3,614,268
Recognition of write-down of FEMBRER
inventories 1,649 1,198
3,321,840 3,615,466
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS R AR A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

14 Trade and bills receivables 14 ESBENFIEREKRE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 584,533 501,730
Less: loss allowance (Note 14(b)) W BERE T 140) (5,429) (5,851)
579,104 495,879
Bills receivable TENEE 691,078 599,806
1,270,182 1,095,685
All of the trade and bills receivables, net of loss allowance, are Fr7B 2 5 e GRTE M E IR R i (F0 ks B 18 4
expected to be recovered within one year. )BT R —FAE -

The balance of bills receivable represents bank and trade EWE B AHRIEA T PIEM R HIR DR —

acceptance notes received from customers with maturity dates FRRITREGEREER -

of less than one year.

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRiR D #T
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the REBEERBEZEHARNBREBEED
invoice date and net of loss allowance, of the Group is as B S W IERE ST ¢
follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREFIT
Less than 1 month DR1EA 354,972 231,423
1 to 3 months 1231EA 126,563 208,117
3 to 6 months 3%6(EA 88,731 53,695
Over 6 months %616 A 8,838 2,644
579,104 495,879
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in BEASEEREEBRNEZFBER
Note 24(a). RITE24() ©
(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (b) EZEUBRIEAREREENRE
The movements in the loss allowance account are as B R R EREE T -
follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARETTT
At 1 January M1A1R 5,851 4,092
(Reversal)/recognition of (M), HERIEEEE
credit losses (Note 6(c)) (B17t6(c) (422) 1,759

At 31 December ®12A31H 5,429 5,851
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e MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

14 Trade and bills receivables (Continued) 14 ES5RNFBEREWEE(E)
(c) Transfer of financial assets (c) EESREE

The Group has discounted certain of the bank acceptance RAREBTHETEETEARP,WERE
notes it received from customers at banks and endorsed 1T TEZHETT T RRIR - Wi H ALy
certain of the bank acceptance notes it received from LEMEBERAEEETEERLIEH
customers to its suppliers and other creditors for settlement RITANIEE DR BREREL
of the Group’s trade and other payables on a full recourse BAREEHWNE S ENRIE L H M ER TR
basis. Upon the above discounting or endorsement, the TH o (LA EFRuiBAIR s A 1% - AEE
Group has derecognised the bills receivables which in PRIETEREWREZE - KARIEER
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group B AREBPDEBZEZENMEREL
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of BRIy R MBI - WE BT E
ownership of these notes and has discharged its obligation HEREMEEANNZIET - %ZEDH
of the payables to its suppliers and other creditors. These BRI ERMIRITA L ZE I EH B ®R
derecognised bank acceptance notes have maturity dates of EHREFTRANER - REERAEX
less than six months from the end of the reporting period. LEENRERTATREE2R TR
The Group considered the issuing banks of these notes TEEERIFEEE = WD HIE R
are reputable banks in China and of good credit quality BRI EE X E TR ] e IR -

therefore non-settlement of these notes by the issuing
banks on maturity is highly unlikely.

The Group’s maximum exposure to loss and undiscounted HEEFEITHRE AR EEE=RE - B

cash outflow should the issuing banks fail to settle the bills REBNEAEREARRS RERE
on maturity dates is as follows: SAIERRINT ¢

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

R2023%F FA20224F

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT
Bank acceptance notes RITEH BB 262,332 242,349
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS R AR A ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

14 Trade and bills receivables (Continued) 14 EZERFTERERE
(c) Transfer of financial assets (Continued) () EELREE
The analysis of bills receivables discounted at banks or HRERITAN R S (Mt B E A E
endorsed to suppliers with recourse which were not REARARER G EEKESE KEERE
derecognised as the Group remains to have significant @ MAT R AR FEREEIREE 7 540
exposure to the credit risk of these bills receivables is as T
follows:
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
"2023%F 720224
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Bank acceptance notes RITHEAZE 233,989 144,784
Trade acceptance notes B 5EHER 88,833 149,781
322,822 294,565
(d) At 31 December 2023, trade and bills receivables with an (d) ®2023F 128318 » BREAEAAR
aggregate carrying amount of RMB404,804,000 (2022: #404,804,0007C (2022 12H318 -
RMB430,804,000) have been pledged for the Group’s AR #430,804,0007T) B 5 EM R
interest-bearing borrowings (see Note 19(d)). BN ENEERE AERBAT BERE

i (RMIEE19d)) -
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e IBERRMEE (R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

15 Prepayments, deposits and other 15 AR » RERHEMWEWIR
receivables
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Prepayments for TERTFIE
— purchase of raw materials —BERMK 15,441 17,093

— transportation service and other

— B 1% M L TR S

miscellaneous expenses 12,852 14,358
— other services — HA AR 30,811 -
Value-added-tax recoverable AT SHIB(E RS 439 654
Advance payments TERT 434 844
Rental receivables FEUSFE & R I8 5,755 2,832
Others Hith 7,104 4,171
72,836 39,952
Less: loss allowance W RS (3,038) (3,155)
69,798 36,797
All of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables are FRBTENFIE « 1d F B Ath & W RRIE 78 HA R
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within one —F R EI R B o
year.
The movements in the loss allowance account are as follows: EriERHERRME BT ¢
2023 2022
20234F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARBETTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 3,155 3,089
(Reversal)/recognition of credit losses (B[R, THRIZEEE(H76()
(Note 6(c) (117) 66

At 31 December

®12A31H 3,038 3,155
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

16 Cash at bank and on hand and other cash 16 RERBFEEEYURHEMIRE

flow information REER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BERRLEEYEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Cash at bank RITHRE 429,982 460,120
Deposits with other financial REAM S BB TR
institution 2,555 4,746
Cash on hand FoER S 52 26
Cash at bank and on hand included st A4R A BIEIAR R 2 81T K
in the consolidated statement of FoEIR S
financial position 432,589 464,892
Less: restricted deposits (Note (i) R ZBREIFERA ) (81,397) (83,834)
Cash and cash equivalents included in St AGZEREREXR RS
the consolidated cash flow MIREEED
statement 351,192 381,058
The Group’s operations in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong AEBRHE(FEIEEBFNITHE)
SAR) conducted its business in RMB. RMB is not a freely EBUAREIES - ARBTAIEARR
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the B BESHEERFEBIINTEBES
PRC (excluding Hong Kong SAR) is subject to the exchange BRERITERE )R - B BTN
restrictions imposed by the PRC government. EANE R Sl FTES & ©
Note: PRRE -
() Restricted deposits mainly represent deposits placed at banks as () ZREEFERFBEAEEFHNRITIESE
collaterals for interest-bearing bank borrowings of (see Note 19(d)) and BERITE R (R EE19(d)) RERTTHEN ZE -

bank acceptance notes.
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REMBRRME (R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

16 Cash at bank and on hand and other cash 16 RERBFEEEYURREMIRES

flow information (Continued) REER(E)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) MEETBHELENAEHIR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TR AREFER B EERELAEY
from financing activities, including both cash and non- BE) > BIERS MRS EE c BB E
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BMEAAEARS TR (KHED
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows HeEneage ) N AEEEAHRESRE
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow XN AREEHEL RS REZE
statement as cash flows from financing activities. & o
Interest-
bearing Interest  Dividends Lease
borrowings payable payable liabilities Total
FEER  EAME  ERRE  HEEE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT
(Note 19) (Note 18)

(Biit19)  (Hii18)

At 1 January 2022 20221818 2,467,226 9,209 - 1,203 2,477,638
Changes from financing MERSRESD .

cash flows:
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank R &t ERITREMETZ

and other borrowings {5 IE 1,017,385 - - - 1,017,385
Repayment of interest-bearing bank B&st 28817 REMER

and other borrowings (1,545,555) - - - (1,545,555)
Capital element of lease rentals paid EfTHEREHEALH - - - (1,067) (1,067)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2~ EH&HF EHH - - - (88) (88)
Dividends paid ERRE = = (36,584) - (36,584)
Interest paid BRFIE - (113,827) - - (113,827)
Total changes from financing MERSREELEY

cash flows Py ke (528,170) (113,827) (36,584) (1,155) (679,736)
Other changes: Hih 2% -
New leases entered into FRETIRHEE

during the year - - - 9,778 9,778
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)) MBRX(Hatea) - 108,740 - 88 108,828
Dividends approved in respect of  FRFEEIAERKE

the previous year (Note 23(d)) (Hi223(d) - - 36,584 - 36,584

Total other changes Hin@ e - 108,740 36,584 9,866 155,190
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

16 BERVEFEWUAREMRES
REER(E)
(b) MEFBEENEEHIR(E)

16 Cash at bank and on hand and other cash
flow information (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

Interest-
bearing Interest  Dividends Lease
borrowings payable payable liabilities Total
MR FERRIS RS HERE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE  AR®Tr ARETr ARETR ARETR
(Note 19) (Note 18)
(Kist19) (Hiz#18)
At 31 December 2022 and R2022F12A318 K
1 January 2023 2023%181A 1,939,056 4,122 - 9914 1,953,092
Changes from financing HERERELD:
cash flows:
Proceeds from interest-bearing  REGHEFTREM
bank and other borrowings B FETE 650,861 = = = 650,861
Repayment of interest-bearing BB EHRTREMET
bank and other borrowings (822,420) - - - (822,420)
Capital element of lease rentals 2 REEHRLHERLD
paid - - - (3,427) (3.427)
Interest element of lease rentals 2 REERE TS5
paid - - - (492) (492)
Dividends paid RN - - (53,892) - (53,892)
Interest paid BRFIE - (86,278) = = (86,278)
Total changes from financing REREREELY
cash flows Ze)iaz (171,559) (86,278) (53,892) (3,919) (315,648)
Other changes: Hih &5
New leases entered into ERETUMFES
during the year - - - 1,300 1,300
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)) HEE% (#2606 = 88,502 = 492 88,994
Dividends approved in respect of  RtiBfEEEH ERRE
the previous year (Note 23(d))  (Hiz23(0)) - - 53,892 = 53,892
Jotalotherchanges  AwE®E®E - .. 88502 53892 1792 144186
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12A831H 1,767,497 6,346 - 1,187 1,781,630




Z 5 O Dalipal Holdings Limited 3% 1 ¥ i& B R A &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IBERRMEE (R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U ERESIT)

16 Cash at bank and on hand and other cash
flow information (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement

16 BERVEFEYUAREMRES
REER(E)
() MERSHEAE
HABARSRERNBEETESIMN

for leases comprise the following: TIER
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Within operating cash flows BREEIReRE = 518
Within investing cash flows BREERERE 452 10,800
Within financing cash flows BRREARESRE 3,919 1,155
4,371 12,473

17 Trade and bills payables

17 EZRAREBERENRE

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Trade payables B SRR 597,474 545,263
Bills payable AN 127,097 15,467
724,571 560,730

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on the

invoice date, is as follows:

BB ZRNFARENZEER/N —F
N#EF - HBRBERERE -

IRIREE A2 5100 E BB BUE R
BOERATIT -

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREFIT

Less than 1 month DA E A 568,220 336,780
1 to 3 months 1&231E A 111,300 140,912
3 to 6 months 3%&61E A 30,912 53,326
Over 6 months 6fE AU E 14,139 29,712

724,571 560,730
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB85) AN EESITR)

18 Other payables and accruals 18 HtENFIEREFTE R
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBFIT
Payables for construction of property, ERE - R N ERIER
plant and equipment FERIFOR 24,627 64,771
Payables for transportation and Eig MKEFREZH
utilities expenses FE FIE 33,052 45,269
Payables for other taxes HuhFH B B IR 11,106 19,873
Payables for staff related costs 8 TR A HY B 5B 1,444 14,733
Interest payable FERHFIB 6,346 4,122
Others Hib 7,197 9,324
Financial liabilities measured at LABESHR ARNET E /Y
amortised cost SRBE 83,772 158,092
Receipts in advance TEMEIR 52,357 76,860
136,129 234,952
All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled FiE H A JET B R FERT B R TEET R —4F
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on NEEBHER BN - HERERERE -
demand.
19 Interest-bearing borrowings 19 FTEfB R
(a) The Group’s short-term borrowings comprise: (a) *EENEHERERE
2022 2021
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Bank loans: RITEN -
— Secured by the Group's property, —IAAEEYE - BER
plant and equipment BB IEER 266,000 261,800

- Secured by the Group's trade and — LAZREEZ 5 FEW IR K
bills receivables and/or restricted  FEWZEIE [ 5% Z PR H 17 5K

deposits YEH AR 384,824 415,116
- Unguaranteed and unsecured — PR MR 117,111 303,840
767,935 980,756

Add: current portion of long-term o REREFRZ BNERER >
borrowings (Note 19(b)) (K1:£19(b)) 408,300 196,000

1,176,235 1,176,756
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19 Interest-bearing borrowings (Continued) 19
(b) The Group’s long-term borrowings comprise:

BESEENE D)
(b) @ REMEREIE -

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Bank loans: RITER
— Secured by the Group's property, —UREEYE - HER
plant and equipment FABEE A 665,262 478,500
— Secured by the Group’s inventories  — LAZN & B 17 S /EHK R 104,500 148,000
- Unguaranteed and unsecured — (R IR 138,000 240,000
907,762 866,500
Borrowings from a related party RE— A8
(Note 26(b)): &R (Arit26(b)) -
— Unguaranteed and unsecured — SR IMEK T 91,800 91,800
999,562 958,300
Less: current portion of long-term B REME R Z BNEREE S
borrowings (Note 19(a)) (H15#19(a)) (408,300) (196,000)
591,262 762,300

(c) The Group’s long-term borrowings are repayable

() *EERBERERUTNHEEE :

as follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEFTT
Within 1 year 1R 408,300 196,000
After 1 year but within 2 years 1 LA EB2F AR 505,300 488,300
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA EESFEA 85,962 274,000
999,562 958,300
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19 B AR (&)
(d) ZEEE FEREAEETIEE

19 Interest-bearing borrowings (Continued)
(d) Certain of the Group’s borrowings are secured

by the following assets of the Group: VEIRFR :
2022 2021
2023%F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

R =Y &

Property, plant and equipment

(Note 11(a)) (Hfz£11@) 1,220,828 1,193,511
Inventories (Note 13(a)) GE(Hi130) 174,167 250,000
Trade and bills receivables (Note 14(d)) & 5 FEWGRIE & fE U = 1%

(HiaE14(d)) 404,804 430,804

Cash at bank and on hand - RITRFHEES —
restricted deposits ZERHFR 50,000 79,089
1,849,799 1,953,404

(e) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the

(e) AEEETRITERAZKN SRS

fulfilment of covenants commonly found in the lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the loans would become
repayable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
24(b). At 31 December 2023, none of the covenants
relating to the interest-bearing bank borrowings had been
breached.

MEBELZHERERNRE - WAEEE
REBZE  BREKAREREE -
AEETHERAETZEZENE
e BEAEBERERHESRBNE
% B IS E M 5T 24(b) « 7A20234E12 A
318 BHEERE B BRITHERHE
& o
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions 20 URERZEEURGAERNRZS
(a) Share option schemes (a) HBARRESTEI

On 19 June 2019, the Company has adopted pre-IPO MR2019F6 7198 « RARRME IR
share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) FEE g IR E ([ B r A Eq
and share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). BENEREST B ) B RERE ST 2 ([ BERR ST
Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the directors 2] ]) o ABIEE IR AR ER B
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite 2 AR ESERENSEBAEE
certain directors and senior management of the Group, to HETESENSREIREEMNFEIRELR
take up share options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the BEANTLmAL -
Company.
A consideration of HK$1 had been paid by each grantee on BIERFRACDREWNAERHBRRERS S N
acceptance of the share options granted. Each option gives KREBIBT - BMHBIRELTEEG AR
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in NRBE—RAQATEEIT - WA R
the Company and is settled gross in shares. HEE o
The number and weighted average exercise price of share REARERI S B RN L 1TEEW T -

options are as follows:

2023 2022
2023%F 200F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price Options  exercise price Options
METFATHEE BRESE METHTRE BRENE
Outstanding at 1 January MATBRRITE HK$0.76 29,500,000 HK$0.72 34,900,000
076387 0728
Exercised during the year ERETE HK$0.477 (4,200,000) HK$0.477 (1,200,000)
047747 0477% T
Forfeited during the year EREEN HK$0.477 (4,200,000) HK$0.477 (4,200,000)
047787 047737
Outstanding at 31 December R12A31BEATR HKS0.87 21,100,000 HK$0.76 29,500,000
0.87% T 0.763T
Exercisable at 31 December W12A31BA T HK$0.79 HK$0.477
0.7938 7 6,700,000 047737 5,700,000
The share options outstanding at 31 December 2023 had a M2023F12 A31 B AR 1T HE R
weighted exercise price of HK$0.87 (2022: HK$0.76) and a DNETTE(E £0.8778 L (20224 : 0.76
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.04 years L) - IR FEIB A NEIR 53.04

(2022: 4.04 years). F (20224 : 4.045F) »
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions 20 URERZEURGAERNRZS
(Continued) (#&)

(b) Share award plans (b) B1p 5B 2

On 31 May 2022, the Company adopted share award plans
(the “Share Award Plans”). Pursuant to the Share Award
Plans, the Share Incentive Committee of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to make award of the
Company’s shares to any of eligible participants the Group.
The Share Award Plans will be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing from 31 May 2022.

Up to 31 December 2023, for the purpose of Share Award
Plans, the Company repurchased 32,701,000 ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange, details are set out in Note
23(c)(ii).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
granted 8,848,974 shares to the Group's employees with
a fair value of RMB30,827,000, which is measured at the
share price of the Company of HK$3.87 per share on the
grant date.

These shares will vest in three batches and the grantees
shall be vested with such shares for nil consideration if
service period conditions are met. 40% of the total shares
granted will vest on 1 May 2024 and 30% of the total
shares granted will vest on 1 January 2025 and 1 January
2026, respectively, provided that the relevant grantees
remain, as at the vesting date, employed by the Company.

202258318 » AR BIERMAR 7 42
Bt a8l ([BRD 8@ ETEl)) - RN IR
Bt 2l - AATRG BEL B e R
RERAEBEMAEERSEER DA
BRI o B EEEET SR 820224
SA31BEBFT10F BE A B AR -

BHZE2023F12A31H © st 18
Bhstalms @ AQ AR TR
32,701,000 Ei@AX - BEAFHIBEHAW
FF23(c)ii) °

HZE2023 F12 A31 BILFE » AAA
mAS%EE B 1% 18,848,974 B fn
NFE A AR30,827,0007T © ARQF]
PR A B G IRARES. 87 LA E -

ZEBRMOBIRZ=MRE - WS REH
& ABRATUSZREERBZSR
7 o FTiIR MM R EE R 40% 15 722024
F5ATHEB - FIRERMDEERN30%
#&5 BIRA2025F 1 A1H KX2026%F1 81
HEB - BIRIKG AEEEAR ARG B
B ARNARAMERS -
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b) Share award plans (Continued)

(%)

Set out below are details of the movements of the shares

20 LESEHURODBERNIRS

(b) Bt E BT &I (&)
TXEHFIE AN EB RS

granted:
2023 2022
2023F 202265

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price shares  exercise price shares

ik 83! it 8!
ke Rt #E {7668 i8R
Granted during the year FRE®RE HK$3.87 8,848,974 - -
Outstanding at 31 December K12 A31HERITE HK$3.87 8,848,974 - -

21 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

21 REMIBMRIR R BT EH

(a) #REMFRIR R A BN EABIIRTE ¢

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARETTT

Income tax payable at 1 January M ATBERENSEH 12,448 -

Provision for the year F NG 16,004 18,647

Over-provision in respect of prior years @7t & BEERIE (1,998) -

Income tax paid ERETEH (20,550) (6,199)
Balance of income tax payable at 12 A3 BENPTSHA R

31 December 5,904 12,448
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement 21 GEMBRARTHVAER (&
of financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) CREREEREEERERE
(i) Movements of each component of deferred tax (i) BEHBELSEREBELZSTEE
assets and liabilities
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the e & B R 3= P IR A IR E R
consolidated statement of financial position and the BEE/(BE)REANES N
movements during the year are as follows: T
Assets Liahilities
i ]
(redit
losses Retained Accelerated tax
on trade Interest profits ~ Deprecation  allowance for
Unused ~ andother  Writedown  Deferred ~ onlease  Unrealized tobe  ofrightof-  depreciation
Deferedtaxarsing fom: ~~ FETAAEZERERE: tlosses  receivables  ofinventores  ncome  abiies  ganorloss  Subdotal  distbuted  useassets epenses  Subeotal Net
BRREL i £53
A B BE  ERdE EFAR RAREE it

BEEE  EEEE  FEMM EEWA REmAE i Mo REE i | hHER it L
RAB000 RAB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 AMB000 AMB000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETn ARETR ARETR
At January 2022 R02F1R1R 4
(Chargededitedto the MraBek
consoldatedseementof (1) /3HA

proftorloss (ote 7) (ha7) [£33) i 18 134 1831 (624 (2.8%) - (1831) (1.988) (3819 (6,715)

3=t

3 107 108 1118 - I 8414 (184) - (1229) (14137) (573

At31 December 2022 and R02E128318R
1 January 2013 WB3E1R18 - 1351 it 184 181 164 5518 (1841) (1831) (14,284) (17,956) (1238)
(Chargereited o e REABER

consolted staementof (1188) /31

potorkss ot (#37) - ) U N TN - N1 - 5 uyoLm B
331 Deente 23 HI0FEIENE - FIAR T T VN VIR B 1) NV s
(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (i) HEBBMN IR
financial position
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T AR#EFIT
Net deferred tax assets recognised — JA4RA BAFSHARN R EEZHY
in the consolidated statement of EETIREEF5R
financial position 146 -
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised E’\,m/\ﬁﬁ‘%ﬂhﬁi‘%ﬁﬁu/u
in the consolidated statement of EEFIBAE TR
financial position (16,423) (12,438)

(16,277) (12,438)
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Except for deferred tax liabilities already recognised in Note
21(b), taxable temporary differences relating to the retained
profits of the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong SAR) amounted to RMB645,440,000
(2022: RMB542,623,000), where deferred tax liabilities
in respect of the PRC withholding tax that would be
payable on the distributions of these profits, have not been
recognised as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it
is probable that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

21 REMEIRR R T AREHR (F)

() AERZEEHREE

BRWE210)FPNERRBELHIEE
BN BAEERFR(CTRIEERE
BRITTE R ) BSIE M B A B IR
mFAEMEREBREEZEAAR
¥ 645,440,000 7T (2022 F : AR
542,623,0007T) *+ B ERE 9 IR ZFE
FmEMH P RBNRERELR AR
& AARAHEHZEWE QRN
BB - BEBEZEEFNA g
BAREDIK o

22 Deferred income 22 JEFEWRA
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
At 1 January R1A1R 12,542 14,125
Credited to the consolidated STASREERREM
statement of profit or loss and 2EEER
other comprehensive income (1,556) (1,583)
At 31 December »W12A31H 10,986 12,542

Deferred income represents government grants received to
compensate the Group’s cost of construction of property, plant
and equipment. The grants are amortised over the useful lives
of the related property, plant and equipment.

ELEWASESLERAEENE - BB K
AR 85 32 SR K AN HO 78 18 P U B RS A
8 - MR EEME - BB RREHE
FEHIR#H -
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends 23 EXR - RERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) RO S EY
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REFSSERS DM ERT REIRGES
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated B BREN G AR F R o KA FHE
equity are set out in the consolidated statement of changes HERE S BB EFEEHN Tk ¢

in equity. Details of the changes of the Company’s
individual components of equity are set out below:

Share Share Treasury Capital  Exchange Retained Total
capital premium shares reserve reserve profits equity
Bx  RBEE  ERRE  EABE  EXBE  REME  RReE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR
Note23b) ~ Note23() ~ Note 23(cli) ~ Note 23(c)i) ~ Note 23(c))
W) B BE  FEG W

Jmedttamayn O Hoowmaees A s SO L L UL
Changes in equity for the year ended BEARENANALEEN
31 December 2022: i H
Loss for the year EhER - - - - - (5,446) (5,446)
Other comprefensive income ErEhE - - - - 28261 - 28,261
_Jodompehensenconefortheer | FREERESE I T oD B bl ass
Shares issued under share option scheme BEEREZZ ARG 104 1341 - (981) - - 464

Dividends approved in respect of the previous year

RARFEILENRSHa2ad)

(Note 23/ - (36,584) - - - - (36,584)
Equtysetled share-based transactons (Note 20) ~ DUEREE R BRBMR Z(Fa20) - - - 285 - - 2815
Shares held for share award plans (ote 23()f) SR BT R BRRDFEE2300) - - e - - - )
Purchase of own shares (Note 23(Ci) BERERR T30 - - (6275) - - - (6.275)
Cancellaton of treasury shares (Note 23(c)) SHEERA 200 (326) (5.949) 6,75 - - - -

2 RO 112 RO . A 1 R o &)
Balance at 31 December 2022 and RUNENANAR

1 January 2023 UBEIRIANES 134,140 119,162 (49.213) 9,011 2,844 69,962 285,906
Changes in equity for the year ended BENBENANALEEN

31 December 2023: ERgy.

Loss for the year EhER - - - - - (13.980) (13.980)
Other comprefhensive income EbrEhE - - - - 3,034 - 3034
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2ENREE - - - - 3,034 (13,980) (10,946)
Shares issued under share option scheme REEREERTHRG 318 4,184 - (2,736) - - 1826
Dividends approved in respect of the previous year 3t £ B ENRE 230/

(Note 23/ - (53,892) - - - - (53,892)
Equity settled share-based transactions (Vote 20) -~ EEREEN R BERNR (M 20) - - - 7426 - - 7426
Shares held for share award plans (Note 23(0)i))  StRIRSESE 2 MR A He230) - - (29281) - - - (29281)

378 (49,708) (29,281) 4,69 - - (13,921)

Balance at 31 December 2023

RNBENANANES 134518 69,454 (78,494) 13701 5878 55,982 201,039
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)
(b) Share capital

23 EX - RERBRE (&)
(b) A%

2023 2022
2023F 2022F
Number of Number of

shares Amount shares Amount

KRB k2 PO e

‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000

TR TR Tk FAT

Authorised share capital (Note (i) EERAHH) 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000

2023 2022
20235 20226
Number of Number of

shares Amount shares Amount

REHEE k2 RinEE ©H

RMB000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRETZER :

At 1 January ®1A1A 1,498,468,000 134,140 1,501,200,000 134,362
Shares issued under share REBERES 2 ETH

option scheme (Note (ii)) BEL 4,200,000 378 1,200,000 104

Cancellation of treasury shares FEEERRBHE2300)
(Note 23(c)(ii)) - - (3,932,000) (326)
At 31 December R12A31H 1,502,668,000 134,518  1,498,468,000 134,140
Notes: MisE

(i) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 28 August 2018. Its initial authorised
share capital was HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares with a
par value of HK$0.1 per share. On 19 June 2019 and 8 October 2019,
the equity shareholders of the Company resolved to increase the
authorised share capital of the Company from HK$380,000 divided
into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.1 each to HK$2,000,000,000 divided
into 20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.

(i) On 29 November 2023, share options were exercised at HK$0.477 per
share to subscribe for 3,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
total consideration of HK$1,431,000 (equivalent to RMB1,341,000).
RMB273,000 and RMB1,068,000 were credited in the Company’s
share capital and share premium account respectively. RMB1,926,000
was transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account
in accordance with policy set out in Note 2(q)(ii).

On 21 April 2023, share options were exercised at HK$0.477 per
share to subscribe for 1,200,000 ordinary shares in the Company at
a total consideration of HK$572,000 (equivalent to RMB485,000).
RMB105,000 and RMB380,000 were credited in the Company’s share
capital and share premium account respectively. RMB810,000 was
transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account.

iy ZARAFR2018F8A28BRHSEEEMAK
VRAEBRRARAR - AVBEERKA
380,000 7T * 9 /3,800,000/% & AAEI{EO.1
BITERR ) © 7A2019F6 A19H KX20194 10
A8H » AARIEHREIRFEG AR DEE K
19 F1380,0007%5 7T (43 43,800,000 % &A% &
0.178 L% ) #2 2 2,000,000,0005 7T (5 &
20,000,000,0004% A EEO. 178 LRI (%) ©

(i) H2023F11A298  BEE L E0477
HBILITE  DAFREE 3,000,000 B AR 2 B E B
B% - BR(EA1,431,0008 7 (HHERARE
1,341,00070)  AR#273,0007T & AR
1,068,000 7T 9 Al 5 AR 2 8] i 2 K A% 17 V4
B - RBHME2QNFAENEE - AR
1,926,0007T B B AR EERERMDEER -

202354 4218 - BBRELAEAR0.477H T
1T{E - LARREE 1,200,000 % A8 A B X 5@AL - 48
1B /4572,0007% 7T, (& 7 A R 1 485,000
JT) ° AR 105,0007T & A R #380,0007T
D REF AR A BB A KD S EERE - AR
810,0007T B A A BB ERDEER -
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(b) Share capital (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

On 13 May 2022, share options were exercised at HK$0.477 per
share to subscribe for 1,200,000 ordinary shares in the Company at
a total consideration of HK$572,000 (equivalent to RMB464,000).
RMB104,000 and RMB360,000 were credited in the Company’s share
capital and share premium account respectively. RMB981,000 was
transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(0]

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time.

23 EXR

- EERRE (E)

(b) BRZA (%)

iz (&)

(i)

€

2022658138 + BR#EAER0.4778 T
7748 - LARREE1,200,00008 K A B @A - 48
K AE £572,000% 7T (18 E R A K% 464,000
JL) o AER#104,0007T & A B # 360,000 7T
D RIEF AR R RRA RO EER - AR
981,0007T B E A EE R EIR MG ERR ©

() EENEERED
() RtpiEE

B RERNERZASEE AN
F228NELE(1961EE35EM -
BIEA MIEET) B34 (BRI E

7] WRIARAMA BB RE

Treasury shares (i) EFRG

Treasury shares for the purpose of share award plans MR EE R B B8 7R
Shares held
Number Highest Lowest for share
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate award
Year repurchased per share per share price paid plans
£ BORGHE CASRESE CHSREEE BfEE  RROKE
HKS HKS RMB'000 st EHENRA

BT B ARBT T
2023 11,548,000 449 2.3 29,281 32,701,000
Shares held
Number Highest Lowest for share
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate award
Year repurchased per share per share price paid plans
Ep BEROEE BENERERE 2NEREEE RANECAES SR 2R
HKS HKS RMB'000 & &l BBk

BT AT ARETR
2022 21,153,000 3.0 2.16 49,213 21,153,000
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii) Treasury shares (Continued)
Treasury shares for the purpose of cancellation
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company repurchased its own shares on the Stock
Exchange as follows:

23 EX - RERBRE (&)
() FEMEHEER B o ()
(i) EERLG (E)

R B 8989 E 77 A%
REE2022F12A31HIEFE -
ARRARRBZAZA T AN ER 8
L

Number Highest Lowest Number Number
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate of shares of treasury
Year repurchased per share per share price paid cancelled shares
G2 BOkHEE ENBR&SE ENERREER EfEE HERHEE BEREA
HK$ HK$ RMB'000
B BT ARBTR
2022 3,932,000 210 1.59 6,275 (3,932,000) -

The total amount paid for the repurchased shares was
paid wholly out of share premium.

(iii) Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the portion of the grant date
fair value of unexercised share options granted to the
directors of the Company and the employees of the
Group that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
Note 2(q)(ii).

(iv) Other reserves
The other reserve at 31 December 2022 and 2023
comprised (i) the difference between the net assets of
Dalipal Pipe and the consideration of RMB27,902,000
received from the reorganisation; and (i) the statutory
reserve of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and
regulations, the Company’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China are required to transfer 10% of
its net profit to the statutory reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the respective subsidiaries’
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distributions to equity holders. This
reserve can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses
or increase capital of the respective subsidiaries and is
non-distributable other than in liquidation.

SRR T e A IR
fE BT

(iii) EXFE

EAREBEETARAEE AL
EEB M EARTTEBRENR LA
HRFESD - DREMHEE20)I)
FREARR () 2R BB RO R A & &5t
BRHER,

(iv) Rtz

MR2023F 2022412 A31HME
tEERRENENEERAENEE
FEHEASEHEMEBRNREARE
27,902,000 T 2 AR Z58  R(i)A
EEFBEWERRIAETERHE ©

RIBABHBEERIER - AQA
FA R B P9 5 37 O B B 8 R R TRA
T REEEARNI0%  HEEM
BRESREDZHEAREMEARN
50% ° [Ala% B B BN I st i
BADIKAIEL & EATARE
HEMBARMRFBRIEER
BIRBIM AT DK ©
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 23 &4 - EERKE (&)
() RENMERBE)
() EZm@E

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into RMB. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy

[ 4 E BB INES B ISR
RIRE B ARMERTE £ R IME =
B o EBERENEF20MEN
RRIE ©

set out in Note 2(t).

(d) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

d) B2
() FRENEL AR RRLRE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Final dividend proposed after HEHRENREZRPRE
the end of the reporting of B EEAR0.048 T
HK$0.04 per ordinary share (20224 : 0.04/87T)
(2022: HK$0.04) 54,470 53,541

RERREZN R BN R
EHRE RARERRAE -

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

(i) BIEFEEGRFACSHERER
HIEN K L Al i IR R R

(iij) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

2023 2022

2023%F 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFTT
Final dividend in respect of RERHLE RN

the previous financial year, E—WBREENREKRE

approved and paid during BIREBAR0.048 T
the year of HK$0.04 per (20224 : 0.03% 1)

ordinary share (2022: HK$0.03) 53,892 36,584

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

AEEEEEAZTEAMNEESB
A mm K BRFS AT E B B /K T AR AT
BB 1% R IR BEIA & A A EUS Bl
B REAEEBRNFELE
fEmABRRSERRER - LER
Hip Mz E%E -
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)
(d) Dividends (Continued)

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the year
(Continued)
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholders returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

24 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. The Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents, bills
receivables and derivative financial assets is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
a high credit standing assigned by the management of the
Group, for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period, 26.3% (2022: 16.9%)
and 63.3% (2022: 55.7%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
Group's five largest trade debtors, respectively.

238X #FERRE(E)
(d) RE (&)

(i) BEFEEGRFEFACHEREIR
1T RIFET A 1 El s IR R IR B ()

AEETHEMBHREEEER
BE - UEERSBREHRBERT
ATREHEBE 2 BB A EK T ERAR 2 A
BARRFEREES N2 2 B
5 - WRREEMR (Y
BARRBIEHFE -

24 I EREEREMTAATE

K%lﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁqﬂﬁ&ﬁ =8 REBE
MR EERR

Zﬁglﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ REBARNEEZ
i ) B 755 [ B 3 ISR R 1B D) et 4
jto

(a) EERE

EERBEHF I TIRTANEEME
HASEAZMBERNER - AEH
MEERRETZREE S MEAMEYKK
B AEEMAR KBRS MNREEE
- J%H&%‘%TE&@TE%EQE?E@FEH
RER  REARHF I A/AEEEERE
Fﬁ%iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂa SHERTT M B
B Buns  ARERSEERREK
I o

BSEKE

AEEERNEERREIESSEFEN
ERIE RS2 ﬁﬁakg)f%«**ﬁmzaﬁ
1% At EXEFEERBREER
A& E gk BRI & P WG E KRR E
Ao RIREHR - BEHERIAERRE
D RIE263% (20224  16.9% ) &
63.3% (20224F : 55.7%) JhfE AR EE
BEREBEFIEBAREBREIEERLKRES
B AR -
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 BiBEREERSMIAATEE
of financial instruments (Continued) (&)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) FERM(E)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are generally due immediately and up to
90 days from the date of billings. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated

using a provision matrix.

The following table provides information about the Group’s

EZERHEE)
AEEHMAERBE - ELREEN
EPETEEERE - ZFHEET
RE P BEMN B HIIR 2 L8 S RS
e AEEEEFPHAREHN
MEEFEEMEMNEERERRN
B - BRI —REAE ke ER
HEHMRORFH - AEE KT
HRE PR -

AREZAERENBRBERERRRE
E’J@%ﬁi.ﬁrg%ﬁ%}ﬂ% TR EEEE
TR AR E

TRIEHEBAEEE Z R KFIEME

exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: BRI LTEREEBAMNER
2023

20234
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowances
FEHEER IREAE BiEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR%ET T
Current (not past due) BNER(RmER) 0.2% 474,227 (789)
Less than 3 months past due 8 HFA A 31E A 0.5% 97,360 (533)
3 to 6 months past due mHI3E61E A 2.9% 3,785 (109)
6 to 12 months past due EHie = 1218 A 21.4% 6,565 (1,402)
Over 12 months past due wHIERB121E A 100.0% 2,596 (2,596)
584,533 (5,429)

2022

20224
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowances
TEHE R X FRE(E EERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT
Current (not past due) BNEA (SR8 HR) 0.2% 431,708 (897)
Less than 3 months past due ¥ ER D FA31E A 0.8% 61,111 (491)
3 to 6 months past due WHI3E 61 A 3.7% 3,981 (146)
6 to 12 months past due wHIe = 1218 A 51.6% 1,267 (654)
Over 12 months past due B HAER A1 21 A 100.0% 3,663 (3,663)
)

501,730 (5,851
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24 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the recent past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group'’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest dates the Group can be required to pay:

24 %%ﬁ%@?ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁuﬂﬁ¥ﬁ

(a)

(b)

EEmEE (&)

ES KSR (E)
BHERXDENOTAFNEREBERL
BATERL - ZRFHXREHEARBRE
SEHBEEE RO - FRTR
SR ER (8 5 R SR TR B F I AV S B IR
MBEZENER -

AEBNBREEHERRBEST R
RETRERERE  BRAKEEFTMR
MIREFEE - ARKEEZSBEEIG
RANAERERE  neEEHM
RHRBESHFR -

TRINRAEENFETESHEENR
SHROFHE ORI BANR - DHIRE
BHRMRB SR E (BREERI MR
BROMBMR - SEAEEFE - BIIR
HE PR E AR RFE) AR E A4
ERIFENRF BHEH

2023
20235

Contractual undiscounted cash flow

RNARRRERE

Within ~ Over1year  Over2 years
1 year or but within but within Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount

155 BB BmE
RER [EyVE:S BHRSEF @t REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET ARET T ARBT T ARET T
Trade and bills payables BORNTERERNRER 724,571 = = 724,571 124,571

Other payables and accruals RBERAHENEL

measured at amortised cost FERFERETER 83,772 - - 83,772 83,772
Lease liabilities HERE 3,971 3,659 520 8,150 7,787
Interest-bearing borrowings HTEER 1,231,242 521,656 89,128 1,842,026 1,767,497
2,043,556 525,315 89,648 2,658,519 2,583,627
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 I EREERSHBMIEATE

of financial instruments (Continued) (#8)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEL R (E)
2022
200%F
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
aNRERRERE
Within Over 1 year Over 2 years
1 year or but within but within Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
1F 5, preika BE
REX BAR2E DY @t REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG S NS AEETT ANEETT NS
Trade and bills payables EHRNFERENRE 560,730 - - 560,730 560,730
Other payables and accruals REFERAEOER
measured at amortised cost [ENTERELER 158,092 - - 158,092 158,092
Lease liabilities HEARE 3,646 3,687 3,380 10,713 9,914
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER 1,237.211 526,022 282,874 2,046,107 1,939,056

1,959,679 529,709 286,254 2,775,642 2,667,792
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 BIEREERSBITAEATE
of financial instruments (Continued) (#8)

(c) Interest rate risk (o)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s total borrowings at the end of the
reporting period:

e
AEENNXRARERKAFBER
127 BN R I BT ) R B B SRR AN
SEDRIEARBSREN KRR M AT
BFRER -

(i) FIEH#R
TRFMANEERNREHREKE
BROM B -

2023 2022
2023 2022
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAI= BRMZ
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
% ARETR % ANREFTT
Fived rate borrowings: EEER:
Bank and other borrowings FITREMAER 3.70% ~ 6.18% 1534924 3.60% ~6.18% 1,802,256
Variable rate borrowings: FEEH:
Bank borrowings BITER 4.00% ~7.33% 232573 4.00% ~ 436% 136,800
1,767,497 1,939,056
Fixed rate borrowings as EEEFGETaBN
a percentage of total borrowings ERls 87% 93%
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24 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately and RMB1,977,000
(2022: RMB1,163,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit after tax
and retained profits that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The impact is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest exposure of such a change in interest rates.
The sensitivity analysis is performed on the same basis as
2022.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales which give rise to cash, receivables and payables
balances that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they relate.
The currency gives rise to this risk is primarily US$.

24 IEREEREM I AN T E
(&)
(o) F=mpx(E)
(i) HBRESH
M2023F 12 8318  fHEt R
B2 FF T RK1001EESE - MAFA
EmES@FETE  BeFisE
M B 18 FE AR B = FR A48 hn
#ANEH1,977,00070(20224F = A
F#1,163,0007T) °

FRERE S NER - RERAE
Eﬁﬁiﬁiﬁiiaéﬁﬂiﬁ
FTEARE .Fﬁ?‘fﬁ SHBEERRESM
ENERBNZEFSREE BN
SE RN &R B R A& &K
BVENES & E) - B REN X
HmMENEZFITE - HRED
1T PABR2022F ME R B AEHETT ©

(d) E¥ER
$$@£xl§ﬁ¢ﬁﬁﬁ% = EE LB 0 3H
EeECNEFEEENEENEEY
LN EEESHERIR S « UGB M E
NFIBELER - SIBARBRNEBEER
ETC °
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 BiBEREERSMIAATEE

of financial instruments (Continued) (#&)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E% =k (E)
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the TRENMAERNRERRATAEE
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from FEENTGEEE NI EEAERND
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency HREESBBEENEERR - L2
other than the functional currency of the entity to which SImE - HRERHSETIAARED)
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of R AR EEEEANREEERKR
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the spot g . RiEINFHEBNEIEIREKR BANE
rate at the year end date. Differences resulting from the B2y EEmMEANZ=EYERERL
translation of financial statements of foreign operations A o

into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

2023 2022
20234 20224
Us$ us$
ETT ETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETTT
Cash and cash equivalents RITRFERS 68,761 92,329
Trade and bills receivables B S W RIE & R R & 394,998 418,365
Other payables and accruals HEmERZENETER (412) (2,978)
463,347 507,716
At 31 December 2023, an increase/decrease of 5% in US$ M2023F12 8318 © WETHE8
with all other variables held constant would have increased/ BE5%mAMh ] EREZEFIE  KE
decreased the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits BB 18 F1)58 R AR BE % &3 hn, SR >
by approximately RMB19,692,000 (2022: RMB21,578,000). HANRM19,692,0007T(20224F : AR
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between #:21,578,0007T) ° BLUL T E © R&%)
HK$ and US$ would be materially unaffected by any TCEAETTHRMAE R Y AR ETTL
changes in movement in value of the US$ against other HEENEEZFSMIINERLE -
currencies.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign BREEDTRBRIINEIEREFEERE
exchange rates had been applied to remeasure those BT EAEEBACERIA - Mz
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Eom T AFEAREBRREIREE I
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting MERE - BRENERARERAZIIGE
period, including inter-company payables and receivables BN B E 2 NEB RN A R]ME
within the Group which are denominated in a currency B FE SR IE K JE IR IE - DT B iR
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the B BINERIIF MR ENER 2| G
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would BERI A HIR 2 258 o DT T9iR20224F 48
result from the translation of the financial statements of [RIAY BT o

foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022.
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24 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows.

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available.

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Trading securities are categorised into Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy, and adopt the closing price in the
active market to determine the fair value. Forward
exchange contracts are categorised into Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy, and the fair value is determined
by discounting the difference between the contractual
forward price and the current forward price.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

24 IEREEREMIAEATRE

(e) A EFE
(i) BAFETENCHEERERE

RFEER
TREJNREEETHREERE
135 A FlEEFREN = AR
BER  NEERRREEERE
AENAEESBTANQTE -
RHEAEENWERTIZEGE
AP A A BB R BRI R
BEMETNT

o EIRMLE: ATEEERRS
—RBWARE
BRI EERE
ERFERNE
h BT 5 ) R
HERE

o E2RMEE: AFECAE=
A A BOE E
B ATHAR
—RAEBRE
UN ¢ SliE 34
REATAEER
WAHBE - A
B ARER
iSIEE ¢ EN|
PR8I A B0 -

o FIPHE: EAEATAE
R ABUBRE
M RHE

RHESRFBRR/RFERBRNE
—& > WERAEREMSTEHE
BEQTE - EHINESHRER
RRFEBRNE K MERF
BTHEERERREREDNE
R ENEZREEMETE -

(ii) HZRFEIEYEBEERE

EZ A FE

REBE A A SR AT END
BT AMBEEESESEENR2023F &
2022F 12 A31HWAFET£ES
KD A e
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25 Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2023 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as

25 AYE
7R2023F 12 A31 B ARG AP KRR AT
RS 2 RENEARAENT ¢

follows:
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AREFT
Commitments in respect of property, BEYE - BE&
plant and equipment: A8 7 A
— Contracted for —B54) 43,422 64,481
26 Material related party transactions 26 EXBEHARS
(a) Transactions with a company controlled by the (a) BEEAR DB EREREIEFIN AT 2
equity shareholders of the Company -]
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Borrowings received from B — @B AR
a related company BN Y & 3R
Interest expenses on borrowings —EEAs A RRIES
from a related company F BRI

- 22,500
KL
3,314 3,152

The borrowings from a related company are unsecured and
unguaranteed, bear interest at 3.7% per annum and are
repayable after one year.

(b) Balances with a company controlled by the
equity shareholders of the Company

— RN R A B BB REER - 1R
3.7 %HVFEFRETE MER —FRER -

(b) EARREBERRIZFHNDT 24

3
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Borrowings from a related company Sl NSOl P 91,800 91,800
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26 Material related party transactions 26 EXBH AR (&)
(Continued)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) TEEE AESEHN
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REBFBEEABNTH(B2IERA
Group, including amounts paid to the directors of the NaEF (A EE) M ETAER
Company as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the highest = iEES (RHEEE) e
paid employees of the Group as disclosed in Note 9, is as FEEHY T
follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Short-term employee benefits R E A 15,720 26,763
Contributions to defined contribution — EFEEFGRIRET 2145k
retirement plan 265 281
Equity settled share-based payments UARE R A B DARR 1 AR B ) 3R
(Note 20) (Hizt20) 1,488 2,875
17,473 29,919
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note FMasEl st AIEIAARI(RHF

6(b)). 6(b)) °
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27 A F) 8 E B AR R &

27 Company-level statement of financial

position
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RPN T 12 163,606 280,618
163,606 280,618
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H A el 218 30,901 89
Cash at bank and on hand BTN FHEES 7,313 6,767
38,214 6,856
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables Hofth JE (S RIA 781 362
Amounts due to a subsidiary FEST—FEIFT 8 A B 5RIE = 1,206
781 1,568
_Netcurrentassets  ~~~ hA®BEEF® 37433 5,288
NET ASSETS EEFHE 201,039 285,906
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#iE 23
Share capital % 134,518 134,140
Reserves e 66,521 151,766
TOTAL EQUITY AR 201,039 285,906

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
22 March 2024.

Meng Fanyong
=NE
Chairman

FE

28 Immediate and ultimate controlling party

The directors of the Company consider the immediate holding
company and ultimate controlling parties of the Company at
31 December 2023 to be Rosy Astral Limited, and Mr. Meng
Fanyong and Mr. Meng Yuxiang, respectively. Rosy Astral
Limited does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

R2024F3A 2B EFT o ERIKET)

%o

Gan Shuya
Fihzs
Director

EE
28 HiEERBAREHA

AKARESFRERNRARKR2023F12A31H
MEBEIZERAR RGEIES DR ARER
BABARZABAEREFARE - BE

BERARLEFEATHAR

|

AL ERE S
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29 Possible impact of amendments, new 29 EEMEREZE2023F12H31H
standards and interpretations issued but IFFEREARERZIERTA « #E
not yet effective for the year ended 31 ARBRENBESE
December 2023
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB HETIZZEREHE » B2
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are EEegB8me TREZ2023F12A31H
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and WFEE W RAERN - BZEIE R I M4
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. Y ETEET RIS ETHER o S EIEUT
These developments include the following which may be A REEi AR EFEFEBEE

relevant to the Group.

Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RT5 Bz %
BN ESTH—EEN
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: 1 January 2024
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
Rt ERIE VS - 2IHHHE - HEED BRI TREENERT A 2024F1 A1H
Amendments to IAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
R ERIE R - MEREL BB ERERT AR 202451 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BRI M5 2ERISE 165k - ERMLIAIHE BENEETAR 2024F1A1H
Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and IFRS 7, 1 January 2024
Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements
B et ERNETS - HenEXRERY HHEERETH 20241 71H
BHITA - H75E  RERHELHEFTA
Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: 1 January 2025
Lack of exchangeability
B &t ERIE215% - BEXEFHZE - S A LB IEIEET R 20251 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
an investor and its associate or joint venture
BB B 75 i 5 HE B S8 105 M BIRR & 512 RIS 285 5
KREZHERRE ) 0ol 6 10X 2 B8 B EHE ST AREET A
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what AEBIEFEZEBIA - FER RREE
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the HRE X ERABEEEENTE - 25 A1E
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the REERERAZFERIA - EARRED
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the ANAJRE A EBNGRE Y BMREEERY

consolidated financial statements of the Group. 2o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T EBEEE

Years ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLFE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 20204 20214 20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RESULTS B AREBFIT AREFIT AREFTIT AREFTT ARETR
Revenue g 2,825,969 2,259,402 3,762,629 4,227,802 3,850,020

Profit/(loss) before taxation  FiBTHE,(E1E) 409,731 (144,130) 99,755 176,946 152,368

Income tax FTiSHt (72,321) 26,226 (16,816) (25,362) (17.,845)

Profit/(loss) for the year FERHA(FEE) 337,410 (117,904) 82,939 151,584 134,523

Profit/(loss) for the year THALTEIEFERN

attributable to: Al (E18R) -
Equity shareholders of ZAUNSIE: £

the Company 333,729 (116,417) 82,939 151,584 134,523
Non-controlling interests  FEFERR#ESS 3,681 (1,487) - - =

337,410 (117,904) 82,939 151,584 134,523

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EBERERE

Total assets BEE 4,241,680 3,688,683 4,751,486 4,186,380 4,130,395
Total liabilities BwafE 2,715,701 2,426,102 3,404,947 2,782,080 2,669,297
Net assets BEFE 1,525,979 1,262,581 1,346,539 1,404,300 1,461,098

Net assets attributable to: LA TN ALEREE

FE
Equity shareholders of A RIERSIRR
the Company 1,514,901 1,262,581 1,346,539 1,404,300 1,461,098
Non-controlling interests  FEFERR#ESS 11,078 - - - -

1,525,979 1,262,581 1,346,539 1,404,300 1,461,098




	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	GLOSSARY
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

